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A combined network of more than 150 branches.
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To Our Shareholders

Columbia’s commitment to our communities continues.

When we opened our doors almost twenty years ago with four branches and about $200 million in assets, our goal was to
become a leading, customer-focused Pacific Northwest regional community bank. The merger with West Coast Bancorp
positioned us to achieve that goal. West Coast’s addition to the Columbia family has brought our footprint to about 150
branches throughout Washington and Oregon, over $7 billion in assets and a team of wonderful employees who are truly
committed to their legacy of customer service.

Our commitment to our customers and communities has not wavered despite our significant growth in size and in geographic
footprint over the past two decades. We will continue to emphasize our strong commitment to the hundreds of community
activities we support not only financially, but also by volunteering our time. As we often say, we want to be the community
bank in every community we serve.

Positive core performance trends - loan growth, credit quality, increased noninterest income and
controlled expenses.

Our core performance measures improved during 2012 compared to the full year 2011. This positive trend was a result
of our ongoing strategic initiatives, and resulted in solid loan growth, improved credit quality metrics, increased levels of
noninterest income and controlled expenses. Our net income was $46.1 million for the year, or $1.16 per diluted common
share, a decrease of 4% from net income of $48.0 million, or $1.21 per diluted common share, for 2011. Comparisons to
2011 are distorted by the favorable impact resulting from one of our FDIC-assisted acquisitions, which bolstered earnings
during the fourth quarter of 2011 by $0.15 per share, or $6.0 million.

Total shareholders’ equity at the end of 2012 was $764.0 million, an increase of 1% from $759.3 million at December 31,
2011. Total assets were approximately $4.91 billion at year-end 2012, up 3% from $4.79 billion at year-end 2011. Our net
interest margin for 2012 was 5.77% as compared to 6.27% for 2011.

Our loan growth in 2012 was a result of our banking teams’ ability to cultivate strong relationships with customers and
prospects throughout our market area. Our noncovered loans (loans not covered under the FDIC loss-sharing agreements)
were $2.53 billion at the end of 2012, up $177 million, or 8%, from $2.35 billion at the end of 2011. We saw the biggest
increase in our commercial business loans, which increased about 12% from the end of 2011, and our commercial real
estate loans, which were up about 9%.

Our commitment to a diversified loan portfolio continues to be a strength for us. At the end of 2012, 45% of our total
portfolio was in commercial business loans, 42% was in commercial real estate loans, 6% in consumer loans, 5% in real
estate construction-related loans, and approximately 2% in the for-sale housing segment.

Our overall loan quality continued its positive trend in 2012. At the end of December 2012, nonperforming, noncovered
assets were $48.5 million, down 43% from $85.4 million at the end of 2011. The allowance for loan losses was 2.07% of
total loans at December 31, 2012 compared to 2.26% at the end of 2011.

We reached $4 billion in total deposits at the end of 2012, a major milestone for our Company. This represented an increase
of 6% from $3.82 billion in 2011. Our core deposits, which are an important factor in maintaining a stable net interest margin,
increased 8% during the year to $3.80 billion, and comprised an exceptional 94% of total deposits.

Our total risk-based capital ratio at December 31, 2012 exceeded 20%), more than double the minimum of 10% required
to be considered “well-capitalized” under regulatory standards. Even after finalizing the West Coast acquisition, our capital




levels remain well above the standard requirement, giving us the flexibility to consider other options for effective deployment of
capital.

The FDIC’s most recent deposit market share analysis shows that as of June 30, 2012, Columbia’s ranking was 8th among all
banks operating in Washington State, and 14th in the state of Oregon. Our merger with West Coast will elevate Columbia to
7th in both states; we will be the number one ranked community bank in both Washington and Oregon.

For the second consecutive year, Columbia was ranked as the best bank headquartered in Washington State on the Forbes list
of America’s Best Banks; we were also listed as second in the Pacific Northwest and 30th in the country. The ranking reflects
our commitment to providing a strong and secure community bank, as well as the accomplishments of our outstanding,
customer-focused employees. We were also very gratified this year to again receive recognition as one of the best places to
work in Washington by Seattle Business Magazine.

We want to express our deepest thanks to Thomas Matson and Donald Rodman, who have reached the mandatory age for

retiring from our board. Tom has served as a director since 1998, and has been a member of the Compensation, Nominating
and Trust committees. Don has been a director since 1991, serving on the Compensation and Enterprise Risk Management

committees. We are grateful for their wise counsel and valuable contributions to Columbia’s success.

We are delighted to welcome David Dietzler, a former West Coast director, to our board. Previously a managing partner of
KPMG LLP’s office in Portland, Oregon, Dave brings a wealth of experience auditing public companies, SEC reporting, financial
statement preparation, internal control and compliance.

In the coming months, we will focus on our strategic plan to integrate Columbia and West Coast, with both banks playing
essential roles. We anticipate a smooth transition and have eagerly welcomed West Coast’s staff and customers to Columbia.
Additionally, we will continue to keep our bankers externally focused with the intent to continue to drive loan growth, expand
noninterest income, and to develop strong relationships with customers and prospects. Equally as important will be our
continued focus on improving the efficiency of our company. With the additional expense of new regulations and cost of
compliance looming largely for our industry, it will be even more important to optimize our operational structure. Having a
broader base over which to spread infrastructure investments should help with this objective. Without sacrificing customer
service, we plan to deliver our products and services more efficiently, continue to manage our expenses closely and take
advantage of revenue-generating opportunities by introducing our customers to our broad array of services to meet virtually all
of their financial needs.

We firmly believe we are in a good position to provide long-term benefits for our shareholders, and are looking forward to the
exciting opportunities ahead.

Sincerely,
William T. Weyerhaeuser Melanie J. Dressel
Chairman of the Board President and Chief Executive Officer

Columbia Banking System, Inc. Columbia Banking System, Inc. and Columbia Bank
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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This annual report on Form 10-K may contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, statements about our plans,
objectives, expectations and intentions that are not historical facts, and other statements identified by words such as “expects,”
“anticipates,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “should,” “projects,” “seeks,” “estimates’ or words of similar meaning. These
forward-looking statements are based on current beliefs and expectations of management and are inherently subject to
significant business, economic and competitive uncertainties and contingencies, many of which are beyond our contral. In
addition, these forward-looking statements are subject to assumptions with respect to future business strategies and decisions
that are subject to change. In addition to the factors set forth in the sectionstitled “ Risk Factors,” “Business’ and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations’ in this Form 10-K, the following
factors, among others, could cause actual resultsto differ materially from the anticipated results:

¢ local and national economic conditions could be less favorable than expected or could have a more direct and
pronounced effect on us than expected and adversely affect our ability to continue internal growth at historical rates
and maintain the quality of our earning assets;

< thelocal housing/real estate markets where we operate and make loans could continue to face challenges;

¢ therisks presented by a continued challenging economy, including the current uncertainty regarding sequestration,
which could adversely affect credit quality, collateral values, including real estate collateral, investment values,
liquidity and loan originations and loan portfolio delinquency rates;

« theefficiencies and enhanced financial and operating performance we expect to realize from investments in personnel,
acquisitions and infrastructure could not be realized;

e the possibility that the proposed acquisition of West Coast Bancorp (“West Coast”) does not close when expected or at
all because required regulatory, shareholder or other approvals and other conditions to closing are not received or
satisfied on atimely basisor at all;

e theeffect on the trading price of our stock if the acquisition of West Coast is hot compl eted;

e theability to successfully combine Columbia and the West Coast organizations;

« interest rate changes could significantly reduce net interest income and negatively affect funding sources;

e projected business increases following strategic expansion or opening of new branches could be lower than expected;

¢ our reliance on FHLB advances and FRB borrowings as additional sources of short and long-term funding;

¢ changesin the scope and cost of FDIC insurance and other coverages;

¢ theimpact of FDIC-assisted loans on our earnings,

e changesin accounting principles, policies, and guidelines applicable to bank holding companies and banking;

e competition among financial institutions could increase significantly;

e the goodwill we have recorded in connection with acquisitions could become impaired, which may have an adverse
impact on our earnings and capital;

¢ thereputation of the financial servicesindustry could deteriorate, which could adversely affect our ability to access
markets for funding and to acquire and retain customers,

« thetermsand costs of the numerous actions taken by the Federal Reserve, the U.S. Congress, the Treasury, the FDIC,
the SEC and others in response to the liquidity and credit crisis, or the failure of these actions to help stabilize the
financial markets, asset prices, market liquidity, or worsening of current financial market and economic conditions
could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations, and the trading price of
our common stock;

e our ability to effectively manage credit risk, interest rate risk, market risk, operational risk, legal risk, liquidity risk and
regulatory and compliance risk; and

< our profitability measures could be adversely affected if we are unable to effectively manage our capital.

You should take into account that forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this report. Given the described
uncertainties and risks, we cannot guarantee our future performance or results of operations and you should not place undue
reliance on these forward-looking statements. We undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements,
whether as aresult of new information, future events or otherwise, except as required under federal securities laws.



PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

Columbia Banking System, Inc. (referred to in this report as “we,” “our,”, “the Company”, and "Columbia") isa
registered bank holding company whose wholly owned banking subsidiary, Columbia State Bank (*“ Columbia Bank” or “the
Bank”) aso does business under the Bank of Astoria name and conducts full-service commercial banking business in the states
of Washington and Oregon. Headquartered in Tacoma, Washington, we provide afull range of banking services to small and
medium-sized businesses, professionals and individuals.

Columbia Bank was established in 1993 to take advantage of commercial banking business opportunitiesin our principal
market area. The opportunities to capture commercial banking market share were due to increased consolidations of banks,
primarily through acquisitions by out-of-state bank holding companies, which created dislocation of customers.

At December 31, 2012 Columbia Bank had 99 branch locations in Washington and Oregon. Included in these branch
locations are six Columbia Bank branches doing businessin Oregon under the Bank of Astoria name in Astoria, Warrenton,
Seaside and Cannon Beach in Clatsop County and in Manzanita and Tillamook in Tillamook County. Substantially all of
Columbia Bank’s loans, loan commitments and core deposits are within its service areas. Columbia Bank is a Washington state-
chartered commercial bank, the deposits of which are insured in whole or in part by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(“FDIC"). Columbia Bank is subject to regulation by the FDIC and the Washington State Department of Financial Institutions
Division of Banks. Although Columbia Bank is not a member of the Federal Reserve System, the Board of Governors of the
Federal Reserve System has certain supervisory authority over the Company, which can also affect Columbia Bank.

Business Overview

Our goal isto continue to be aleading Pacific Northwest regional community banking company while consistently
increasing shareholder value. We continue to build on our reputation for excellent customer servicein order to be recognized as
the bank of choice for retail deposit customers, small to medium-sized businesses and affluent households in all markets we
serve,

We have established a network of 99 branches in Washington and Oregon as of December 31, 2012 from which we intend
to grow market share. We operate 59 branches in western Washington, 15 branches in eastern Washington, 15 branchesin
western Oregon, and 10 branches in eastern Oregon. Washington counties include: Adams, Asotin, Benton, Clalam, Clark,
Cowlitz, Franklin, Jefferson, King, Kitsap, Klickitat, Mason, Pierce, Snohomish, Skagit, Spokane, Thurston, WallaWalla,
Whatcom, Whitman and Yakima. Oregon counties include Clackamas, Clatsop, Deschutes, Hood River, Jefferson, Marion,
Multnomah, Tillamook, Umatilla, Wasco and Yamhill.

In order to fund our lending activities and to alow for increased contact with customers, we utilize a branch system to
better serve both retail and business depositors. We believe this approach enables us to expand lending activities while
attracting a stable core deposit base. To support our strategy of market penetration and increased profitability while continuing
our personalized banking approach, we have invested in experienced banking and administrative personnel and have incurred
related costs in the creation of our branch network.

Business Strategy

Our business strategy is to provide our customers with the financial sophistication and product depth of aregional
banking company while retaining the appeal and service level of acommunity bank. We continually evaluate our existing
business processes while focusing on maintaining asset quality and balanced loan and deposit portfolios, building our strong
core deposit base, expanding total revenue and controlling expenses in an effort to increase our return on average equity and
gain operational efficiencies. Asaresult of our strong commitment to highly personalized, relationship-oriented customer
service, our varied products, our strategic branch locations and the long-standing community presence of our managers,
banking officers and branch personnel, we believe we are well positioned to attract and retain new customers and to increase
our market share of loans, deposits, investments, and other financial services. We are committed to increasing market sharein
the communities we serve by continuing to leverage our existing branch network, adding new branch locations and considering
business combinations that are consistent with our expansion strategy throughout the Pacific Northwest.



To that end, on September 25, 2012, we entered into a definitive agreement to acquire West Coast Bancorp, the parent
company of West Coast Bank of Lake Oswego, Oregon, with $2.49 billion in assets at December 31, 2012 (“West Coast”).
Under the terms of the merger, West Coast shareholders will receive a combination of Company stock and cash valued at just
over $500 million. Regulatory applications have been filed and special shareholder meetings for the Company and West Coast
are scheduled for March 18, 2013. The merger is scheduled to close on April 1, 2013.

Products & Services

We place the highest priority on customer service and assist our customers in making informed decisions when selecting
from the products and services we offer. We continuously review our product and service offerings to ensure that we provide
our customers with the tools to meet their financial needs. A more complete listing of all the services and products available to
our customers can be found on our website: www.columbiabank.com. Some of the core products and services we offer include:

Personal Banking Business Banking Wealth Management
*  Investment Services through CB

e Checking and Saving Accounts e Checking & Saving Accounts Financial Services
*  Online Banking *  Online Banking * Private Banking
*  Electronic Bill Pay *  Remote Deposit Capture »  Trust Services
e Consumer Lending e Cash Management *  Professiona Banking
e Residential Lending + Commercia & Industrial Lending
+  VISA® Card Services +  VISA® Card Services

e Agricultural Lending

* SBALending

e Small Business Services
* International Banking

e Merchant Card Services

* Redl Estate and Real Estate
Construction Lending

Personal Banking: We offer our personal banking customers an assortment of account products including noninterest
and interest-bearing checking, savings, money market and certificate of deposit accounts. Overdraft protection is also available
with direct links to the customer’s checking account. Our online banking service, Columbia Online™, provides our personal
banking customers with the ability to safely and securely conduct their banking business 24 hours aday, 7 days a week.
Personal banking customers are also provided with a variety of borrowing products including fixed and variable rate home
equity loans and lines of credit, home mortgages for purchases and refinances, personal loans, and other consumer loans.
Eligible personal banking customers with checking accounts are provided a Visa® Debit Card which can be used both to make
purchases and as an ATM card. A variety of Visa® Credit Cards are also available to eligible personal banking customers.

Online Banking

Columbia Bank’s Premier Personal Online Banking provides simple navigation, access to important information and
frequently used features, as well as the foundation for a best-in-class mobile banking solution.



Business Banking: We offer our business banking customers the foundation of a variety of checking, savings, interest
bearing money market and certificate of deposit accounts to satisfy al their banking needs. In addition to these core banking
products we provide a breadth of servicesto support the complete financial needs of small and middle market businesses
including Cash Management, Professional Banking, International Banking, VISA Credit Cards, Merchant Services and
Commercia Lending.

Cash Management

Columbia Bank’s diversified Cash Management Programs are tailored to meet specific banking needs of each individual
business. We combine technology with integrated operations and local expertise for safe, powerful, flexible solutions.
Columbia customers, of al sizes, choose from afull range of transaction and Cash Management tools to gain more control over
and make more from their money. Services include Commercial Online Banking, Positive Pay fraud protection, Automated
Clearing House (ACH) payments, and Remote Deposit Capture.

Our Cash Management professionals work with businessesto find the best combination of services to meet their
needs. This customized, modular approach ensures their business banking operations are cost-effective now, with flexibility for
future growth.

International Banking

Columbia Bank’s International services division offers arange of financial services to help forward-thinking independent
businesses explore global markets and conduct international trade smoothly and expediently. We are proud to provide small and
mid-size business with the same caliber of expertise and personalized service that national banks usually limit to large
businesses. Our experience with foreign currency exchange, letters of credit, foreign collections and trade finance services can
help independent companies open the door to new markets and suppliers oversess.

Commercial Lending

We offer avariety of loan products tailored to meet the various needs of business banking customers. Commercial loan
products include accounts receivable and inventory financing as well as Small Business Administration ("SBA™) financing. We
also offer commercial real estate loan products for construction and development or permanent financing. Real estate lending
activities have been focused on construction and permanent loans for both owner occupants and investor oriented real estate
properties. Commercial banking has been directed toward meeting the credit and related deposit needs of various sized
businesses and professional practice organizations operating in our primary market areas.

Business VISA® Credit and Debit Cards

We offer our business banking customers a selection of Visa® Cards including the Business Debit Card that workslike a
check wherever Visa® is accepted. We partner with First National Bank of Omaha to offer Visa® Credit Cards such as the
Corporate Card which can be used all over the world as well as the Business Edition® and Business Edition Plus® that earns
reward points with every purchase.

Merchant Card Services

Business clients that use Columbia's Merchant Card Services have the ability to accept Visa®, MasterCard® and
Discover® sales drafts for deposit directly into their business checking account. Merchants are provided with a comprehensive
accounting system tailored to their needs, which includes month-to-date credit card deposit information on atransaction
statement. Internet access is available, allowing business customers to review merchant statements, authorized, captured,
cleared and settled transactions.



Wealth Management: We offer tailored solutions to high net-worth individuals, families and professional businessesin
the areas of private banking, professional banking, financial services and trust and estate services.

CB Financial Services

Located at Columbia State Bank, CB Financia Services®, offersa comprehensive array of financial solutions designed
to grow, protect and transition wealth by delivering an unprecedented level of personalized service and expertise.

Comprehensive solutions include:

. Financial Planning: Asset Allocation, Net Worth Analysis, Estate Planning, Retirement Planning, Education
Planning, Insurance Analysis, Wealth Transfer.

. Investment Management Solutions: Professional Asset Management”, Strategic Asset Allocation, Fixed
Income (Bond) Investing (Municipal, Corporate, Government), Exchange Traded Funds (ETFs), Annuities, Mutual
Funds, Equities.

. Insurance Solutions: Long-Term Care, Disability, Life Insurance (Key Man Life Insurance, Buy-Sell
Agreements).
. Retirement Solutions: 401(k) plans, SEPs, IRAs, SIMPLE, Profit Sharing, Non-Qualified Deferred

Compensation Plans, Money Pension Plan.
Private Banking

Columbia Private Banking offers affluent clientele and their businesses complex financial solutions, such as deposit and
cash management services, credit services, and wealth management strategies. Each private banker provides advisory
services? and coordinates a relationship team of experienced financial professionals to meet the unique needs of each
discerning customer.

Trust Services

Columbia Bank Trust Services offer awide range of high quality fiduciary, investment and administrative trust services,
coupled with local, personalized attention to the unique requirements of each trust. Servicesinclude Personal Trusts, Special
Needs (Supplemental) Trusts, Estate Settlement Services, Investment Agency and Charitable Management Services.

Our highly skilled and experienced professionals are fully dedicated to providing the information, diligence and care to
help our customers achieve their financial goals and plan for a better future.

Professional Banking

Columbia Professional Bankers are uniquely qualified to help medical and dental professionals acquire, build and grow
their practice. We offer tailored banking and investment solutionsdelivered by experienced bankers with the industry
knowledge necessary to meet their business's unique needs. No matter what the needs are now or in the yearsto come, we
guide professionals through all their financial options to make their banking as easy and personal as possible.

(1) Securities, insurance products and advisory services are offered through Cetera Investment Financial Services, Inc., an
independent, registered broker/dealer. Member FINRA/SIPC. CB Financial Servicesis a marketing name for Cetera. *
Investment products are Not FDIC insured * No bank guarantee * Not adeposit * Not insured by any federal
government agency * May lose value.

(2) Advisory services may only be offered by Investment Adviser Representativesin connection with an appropriate
Cetera Advisory Services Agreement and disclosure brochure as provided.
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Competition

Our industry remains highly competitive despite challenging economic conditions. Several other financial institutions
with greater resources compete for banking business in our market areas. These competitors have the ability to make larger
loans, finance extensive advertising and promotion campaigns, access international financial markets and allocate their
investment assets to regions of highest yield and demand. In addition to competition from other banking institutions, we
continue to compete with non-banking companies such as credit unions, brokerage houses and other financia services
companies. We compete for deposits, loans, and other financial services by offering our customers similar breadth of products
as our larger competitors while delivering a more personalized service level with faster transaction turnaround time.

Market Areas

Washington: Approximately 30%, or 22, of our Washington branches are located in Pierce County, with an estimated
2012 population of 808,000 residents. At June 30, 2012 our Pierce County branch locations' share of the county’s total deposit
market was 18%, ranking first among our competition. Also located in Pierce County is our Company headquarters in the city
of Tacoma and one nearby operational facility. Some of the most significant contributors to the Pierce County economy are the
Port of Tacoma whose activities are related to more than 40,000 jobs in the county and well over 100,000 in the state of
Washington, Joint Base L ewis-McChord which accounts for nearly 20% of the County’s total employment, and the
manufacturing industry which supplies the Boeing Company.

We operate 13 branch locations in King County, including Seattle, Bellevue and Redmond. King County, whichis
Washington's most highly populated county at close to two million residents, is a market that has significant growth potential
for our Company. At June 30, 2012 we ranked 14" in our share of the King County deposit market or just over 1%%; however,
we continue to make inroads within this market through the strategic expansion of our banking team. The north King County
economy is primarily made up of the aerospace, construction, computer software and biotechnology industries. South King
County, with its close proximity to Pierce County, is considered a natural extension of our primary market area. The economy
of south King County is predominantly comprised of residential communities supported by light industrial, retail, aerospace
and distributing and warehousing industries.

Some other market areas served by the Company include Cowlitz County where we rank second, or 17% ), in deposit
market share, operating two branch locations; and Kitsap County, where we operate six branches with 8%™ of the deposit
market share. We also have locations in Adams, Asotin, Benton, Clallam, Clark, Franklin, Grant, Jefferson, Klickitat, Skagit,
Snohomish, Spokane, Thurston, Walla Walla, Whatcom, Whitman, and Yakima counties.

Oregon: With the acquisition of Columbia River Bank in January 2010, we significantly expanded our market areain
western Oregon, and entered the eastern Oregon market area, bringing our total to 25 branch locations in the state. Oregon
counties include Clackamas, Clatsop, Deschutes, Hood River, Jefferson, Marion, Multnomah, Tillamook, Umatilla, Wasco and
Yamhill. Columbia Bank ranks fourteenth® in total deposit market share in Oregon, with just over 1% of the deposit market
share. We are first®”) in deposit market share in Clatsop County (29%), Hood River (23%) and Wasco counties (30%). Oregon
market areas provide a significant opportunity for expansion in the future, particularly after the acquisition of West Coast.

For additional information regarding our branches, see Item 2. Properties of this report.

Employees

As of December 31, 2012 the Company and its banking subsidiary employed approximately 1,198 full-time equivalent
employees, a 5% decrease from 1,256 employees at December 31, 2011. We value our employees and pride ourselves on
providing a professional work environment accompanied by comprehensive benefit programs. We are committed to providing
flexible and value-added benefits to our employees through a*“ Total Compensation Philosophy” which incorporates all
compensation and benefits. Our continued commitment to empl oyees contributed to Columbia Bank being again awarded one
of the Puget Sound Business Journal’s “Washington's Best Workplaces 2012” .

(1) Source: FDIC Annual Summary of Deposit Report as of June 30, 2012.
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Available Information

We file annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, periodic reports on Form 8-K, proxy statements
and other information with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC"). The public may obtain copies of
these reports and any amendments at the SEC’s Internet site, www.sec.gov.

Additionally, reports filed with the SEC can be obtained through our website at www.columbiabank.com. These reports
are available through our website as soon as reasonably practicable after they are filed electronically with the SEC. Information
contained on our website is not intended to be incorporated by reference into this report.

Supervision and Regulation

The following discussion provides an overview of certain elements of the extensive regulatory framework applicable to
the Company and Columbia State Bank, which operates under the names Columbia Bank in Washington, and Columbia State
Bank and Bank of Astoriain Oregon (collectively, referred to herein as“ Columbia Bank™). This regulatory framework is
primarily designed for the protection of depositors, federal deposit insurance funds and the banking system as awhole, rather
than specifically for the protection of shareholders. Due to the breadth and growth of this regulatory framework, our costs of
compliance continue to increase in order to monitor and satisfy these requirements.

To the extent that this section describes statutory and regulatory provisions, it is qualified by reference to those
provisions. These statutes and regulations, as well as related policies, are subject to change by Congress, state legislatures and
federal and state regulators. Changesin statutes, regulations or regulatory policies applicable to us, including the interpretation
or implementation thereof, could have a material effect on our business or operations. In light of the recent financial crisis,
numerous changes to the statutes, regulations or regulatory policies applicable to us have been made or proposed. The full
extent to which these changes will impact our business is not yet known. However, our continued efforts to monitor and
comply with new regulatory requirements add to the complexity and cost of our business.

Federal Bank Holding Company Regulation

General. The Company is abank holding company as defined in the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended
(“BHCA™), and is therefore subject to regulation, supervision and examination by the Federal Reserve. In general, the BHCA
limits the business of bank holding companies to owning or controlling banks and engaging in other activities closely related to
banking. The Company must file reports with and provide the Federal Reserve such additional information asit may require.
Under the Financial Services Modernization Act of 1999, a bank holding company may apply to the Federal Reserve to become
afinancial holding company, and thereby engage (directly or through a subsidiary) in certain expanded activities deemed
financial in nature, such as securities and insurance underwriting.

Holding Company Bank Ownership. The BHCA requires every bank holding company to obtain the prior approval of
the Federal Reserve before (i) acquiring, directly or indirectly, ownership or control of any voting shares of another bank or
bank holding company if, after such acquisition, it would own or control more than 5% of such shares; (ii) acquiring all or
substantially all of the assets of another bank or bank holding company; or (iii) merging or consolidating with another bank
holding company.

Holding Company Control of Nonbanks. With some exceptions, the BHCA also prohibits a bank holding company from
acquiring or retaining direct or indirect ownership or control of more than 5% of the voting shares of any company which is not
abank or bank holding company, or from engaging directly or indirectly in activities other than those of banking, managing or
controlling banks, or providing services for its subsidiaries. The principal exceptions to these prohibitions involve certain non-
bank activities that, by statute or by Federal Reserve regulation or order, have been identified as activities closely related to the
business of banking or of managing or controlling banks.

Transactions with Affiliates. Subsidiary banks of a bank holding company are subject to restrictions imposed by the
Federal Reserve Act on extensions of credit to the holding company or its subsidiaries, on investments in their securities and on
the use of their securities as collateral for loans to any borrower. These regulations and restrictions may limit the Company's
ability to obtain funds from Columbia Bank for its cash needs, including funds for payment of dividends, interest and
operational expenses.

Tying Arrangements. We are prohibited from engaging in certain tie-in arrangements in connection with any extension
of credit, sale or lease of property or furnishing of services. For example, with certain exceptions, neither the Company nor its
subsidiaries may condition an extension of credit to a customer on either (i) arequirement that the customer obtain additional
services provided by us; or (ii) an agreement by the customer to refrain from obtaining other services from a competitor.



Support of Subsidiary Banks. Under Federal Reserve policy and the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer
Protection Act (“Dodd-Frank Act”), the Company is expected to act as a source of financial and managerial strength to
Columbia Bank. This means that the Company is required to commit, as necessary, resources to support Columbia Bank. Any
capital loans a bank holding company makes to its subsidiary banks are subordinate to deposits and to certain other
indebtedness of those subsidiary banks.

State Law Restrictions. As a Washington corporation, the Company is subject to certain limitations and restrictions under
applicable Washington corporate law. For example, state law restrictions in Washington include limitations and restrictions
relating to indemnification of directors, distributions to shareholders, transactions involving directors, officers or interested
sharehol ders, maintenance of books, records, and minutes, and observance of certain corporate formalities.

Federal and State Regulation of Columbia Bank

General. The deposits of Columbia Bank, a Washington chartered commercia bank with branches in Washington and
Oregon, are insured by the FDIC. As aresult, Columbia Bank is subject to supervision and regulation by the Washington
Department of Financial Institutions' Division of Banks and the FDIC. With respect to branches of Columbia Bank in Oregon,
the Bank is also subject to supervision and regulation by the Oregon Department of Consumer and Business Services, as well
asthe FDIC. These agencies have the authority to prohibit banks from engaging in what they believe constitute unsafe or
unsound banking practices.

Consumer Protection. The Bank is subject to avariety of federal and state consumer protection laws and regulations that
govern its relationship with consumers including laws and regulations that impose certain disclosure requirements and regulate
the manner in which we take deposits, make and collect loans, and provide other services. Failure to comply with these laws
and regulations may subject the Bank to various penalties, including but not limited to, enforcement actions, injunctions, fines,
civil liability, criminal penalties, punitive damages, and the loss of certain contractual rights.

Community Reinvestment. The Community Reinvestment Act ("CRA") of 1977 requires that, in connection with
examinations of financial institutions within their jurisdiction, the Federal Reserve or the FDIC evaluate the record of the
financial institution in meeting the credit needs of itslocal communities, including low and moderate-income neighborhoods,
consistent with the safe and sound operation of the institution. A bank's community reinvestment record is also considered by
the applicable banking agencies in eval uating mergers, acquisitions and applications to open a branch or facility.

Insider Credit Transactions. Banks are also subject to certain restrictions imposed by the Federal Reserve Act on
extensions of credit to executive officers, directors, principa shareholders or any related interests of such persons. Extensions
of credit (i) must be made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, and follow credit underwriting
procedures that are at least as stringent as those prevailing at the time for comparabl e transactions with persons not related to
the lending bank; and (ii) must not involve more than the normal risk of repayment or present other unfavorable features. Banks
are also subject to certain lending limits and restrictions on overdraftsto insiders. A violation of these restrictions may result in
the assessment of substantial civil monetary penalties, regulatory enforcement actions, and other regulatory sanctions.

Regulation of Management. Federal law (i) setsforth circumstances under which officers or directors of a bank may be
removed by the institution's federal supervisory agency; (ii) places restraints on lending by a bank to its executive officers,
directors, principa shareholders, and their related interests; and (iii) generally prohibits management personnel of a bank from
serving as directors or in other management positions of another financial institution whose assets exceed a specified amount or
which has an office within a specified geographic area.

Safety and Soundness Standards. Certain non-capital safety and soundness standards are also imposed upon banks.
These standards cover internal controls, information systems and internal audit systems, loan documentation, credit
underwriting, interest rate exposure, asset growth, compensation, fees and benefits, such other operational and managerial
standards as the agency determines to be appropriate, and standards for asset quality, earnings and stock valuation. An
institution that fails to meet these standards may be subject to regulatory sanctions.

Interstate Banking and Branching

The Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking and Branching Efficiency Act of 1994 (“Interstate Act”) together with the Dodd-
Frank Act relaxed prior interstate branching restrictions under federal law by permitting, subject to regulatory approval, state
and federally chartered commercial banks to establish branchesin states where the laws permit banks chartered in such states
to establish branches. The Interstate Act requires regulators to consult with community organizations before permitting an
interstate institution to close a branch in alow-income area. Federal banking agency regulations prohibit banks from using their
interstate branches primarily for deposit production and the federal banking agencies have implemented a loan-to-deposit ratio
screen to ensure compliance with this prohibition.



Dividends

The principal source of the Company's cash is from dividends received from Columbia Bank, which are subject to
government regulation and limitations. Regulatory authorities may prohibit banks and bank holding companies from paying
dividends in a manner that would constitute an unsafe or unsound banking practice or would reduce the amount of its capital
below that necessary to meet minimum applicable regulatory capital requirements. Washington law also limits a bank's ability
to pay dividends that are greater than the bank's retained earnings without approval of the applicable banking agency.
Additionally, current guidance from the Federal Reserve provides, among other things, that dividends per share on the
Company's common stock generally should not exceed earnings per share, measured over the previous four fiscal quarters.

Capital Adequacy

Regulatory Capital Guidelines. Federal bank regulatory agencies use capital adequacy guidelines in the examination and
regulation of bank holding companies and banks. The guidelines are “risk-based,” meaning that they are designed to make
capital requirements more sensitive to differencesin risk profiles among banks and bank holding companies.

Tier I and Tier Il Capital. Under the guidelines, an institution's capital is divided into two broad categories, Tier | capital
and Tier 11 capital. Tier | capital generally consists of common stockholders equity (including surplus and undivided profits),
qualifying non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock, and qualified minority interestsin the equity accounts of consolidated
subsidiaries. Tier | capital generally excludes goodwill and intangible assets, net unrealized gains and losses on available for
sale securities and accumulated net gains and losses on cash flow hedges. Tier |1 capital generally consists of the allowance for
loan losses, hybrid capital instruments and qualifying subordinated debt. The sum of Tier | capital and Tier Il capital represents
an institution's total capital. The guidelines require that at least 50% of an institution's total capital consist of Tier | capital.

Risk-based Capital Ratios. The adequacy of an ingtitution's capital is gauged primarily with reference to the institution's
risk-weighted assets. The guidelines assign risk weightings to an institution's assets in an effort to quantify the relative risk of
each asset and to determine the minimum capital required to support that risk. An institution's risk-weighted assets are then
compared with its Tier | capital and total capital to arrive at aTier | risk-based ratio and atotal risk-based ratio, respectively.
The guidelines provide that an institution must have aminimum Tier | risk-based ratio of 4% and a minimum total risk-based
ratio of 8%.

Leverage Ratio. The guidelines also employ aleverage ratio, which is Tier | capital as a percentage of average total
assets, lessintangibles. The principal objective of the leverage ratio isto constrain the maximum degree to which a bank
holding company may leverage its equity capital base. The minimum leverage ratio is 3%; however, for al but the most highly
rated bank holding companies and for bank holding companies seeking to expand, regulators expect an additional cushion of at
least 1% to 2%.

Prompt Corrective Action. Under the guidelines, an institution is assigned to one of five capital categories depending on
itstotal risk-based capital ratio, Tier | risk-based capital ratio, and leverage ratio, together with certain subjective factors. The
categories range from “well capitalized” to “critically undercapitalized.” Institutions that are “undercapitalized” or lower are
subject to certain mandatory supervisory corrective actions. At each successively lower capital category, an insured bank is
subject to increased restrictions on its operations. During these challenging economic times, the federal banking regulators have
actively enforced these provisions.

Regulatory Oversight and Examination

The Federal Reserve conducts periodic inspections of bank holding companies, which are performed both onsite and
offsite. The supervisory objectives of the inspection program are to ascertain whether the financial strength of the bank holding
company is being maintained on an ongoing basis and to determine the effects or consequences of transactions between a
holding company or its non-banking subsidiaries and its subsidiary banks. For holding companies under $10 billion in assets,
the inspection type and frequency varies depending on asset size, complexity of the organization, and the holding company's
rating at its last inspection.



Banks are subject to periodic examinations by their primary regulators. Bank examinations have evolved from reliance on
transaction testing in assessing a bank's condition to a risk-focused approach. These examinations are extensive and cover the
entire breadth of operations of the bank. Generally, safety and soundness examinations occur on an 18-month cycle for banks
under $500 million in total assets that are well capitalized and without regulatory issues, and 12-months otherwise.
Examinations alternate between the federal and state bank regulatory agency or may occur on a combined schedule. The
frequency of consumer compliance and CRA examinations is linked to the size of the ingtitution and its compliance and CRA
ratings at its most recent examinations. However, the examination authority of the Federal Reserve and the FDIC allows them
to examine supervised banks as frequently as deemed necessary based on the condition of the bank or as aresult of certain
triggering events.

Corporate Governance and Accounting

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “ Act”) addresses, among other things, corporate
governance, auditing and accounting, enhanced and timely disclosure of corporate information, and penalties for non-
compliance. Generally, the Act (i) requires chief executive officers and chief financial officersto certify to the accuracy of
periodic reports filed with the SEC; (i) imposes specific and enhanced corporate disclosure requirements; (iii) accelerates the
time frame for reporting of insider transactions and periodic disclosures by public companies; (iv) requires companies to adopt
and disclose information about corporate governance practices, including whether or not they have adopted a code of ethics for
senior financial officers and whether the audit committee includes at least one “ audit committee financial expert;” and (v)
requires the SEC, based on certain enumerated factors, to regularly and systematically review corporate filings.

Anti-terrorism

USA Patriot Act of 2001. The Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to I ntercept
and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001, intended to combat terrorism, was renewed with certain amendments in 2006 (the “Patriot
Act”). The Patriot Act, in relevant part, (i) prohibits banks from providing correspondent accounts directly to foreign shell
banks; (ii) imposes due diligence reguirements on banks opening or holding accounts for foreign financia institutions or
wealthy foreign individuals; (iii) requires financial institutions to establish an anti-money-laundering compliance program; and
(iv) eliminates civil liability for persons who file suspicious activity reports. The Act also includes provisions providing the
government with power to investigate terrorism, including expanded government access to bank account records.

Financial Services Modernization

Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999. The Gramm-L each-Bliley Financial Services Modernization Act of 1999 brought
about significant changes to the laws affecting banks and bank holding companies. Generally, the Act (i) repeals historical
restrictions on preventing banks from affiliating with securities firms; (ii) provides a uniform framework for the activities of
banks, savingsinstitutions and their holding companies; (iii) broadens the activities that may be conducted by national banks
and banking subsidiaries of bank holding companies; (iv) provides an enhanced framework for protecting the privacy of
consumer information and requires notification to consumers of bank privacy policies; and (v) addresses a variety of other legal
and regulatory issues affecting both day-to-day operations and long-term activities of financial institutions. Bank holding
companies that qualify and elect to become financial holding companies can engage in awider variety of financial activities
than permitted under previous law, particularly with respect to insurance and securities underwriting activities.

Deposit Insurance

The Bank's deposits are insured under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, up to the maximum applicable limits and are
subject to deposit insurance assessments designed to tie what banks pay for deposit insurance to the risks they pose. The Dodd-
Frank Act broadened the base for FDIC insurance assessments. Assessments are now based on the average consolidated total
assets less tangible equity capital of afinancial institution. In addition, the Dodd-Frank Act raised the minimum designated
reserve ratio (the FDIC is required to set the reserve ratio each year) of the Deposit Insurance Fund ("DIF") from 1.15% to
1.35%; required that the DIF meet that minimum ratio of insured deposits by 2020; and eliminates the requirement that the
FDIC pay dividendsto insured depository institutions when the reserve ratio exceeds certain thresholds. The FDIC has
established a higher reserve ratio of 2% as along-term goal beyond what is required by statute. The deposit insurance
assessments to be paid by Columbia Bank could increase as aresult.

Insurance of Deposit Accounts. The Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 (the EESA™) included a provision
for atemporary increase from $100,000 to $250,000 per depositor in deposit insurance. The temporary increase was made
permanent under the Dodd-Frank Act. The FDIC insurance coverage limit applies per depositor, per insured depository
institution for each account ownership category. EESA also temporarily raised the limit on federal deposit insurance coverage
to an unlimited amount for non-interest or low-interest bearing demand deposits. Unlimited coverage for non-interest
transaction accounts expired December 31, 2012.
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Recent Legislation

Asaresult of the recent financial crises, on July 21, 2010 the Dodd-Frank Act was signed into law. The Dodd-Frank Act
significantly changed the bank regulatory structure and is affecting the lending, deposit, investment, trading and operating
activities of financia institutions and their holding companies, including the Company and Columbia Bank. The full impact of
the Dodd-Frank Act may not be known for years. Some of the provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act that may impact our business
are summarized below.

Corporate Governance. The Dodd-Frank Act requires publicly traded companies to provide their shareholders with (i) a
non-binding shareholder vote on executive compensation, (ii) anon-binding shareholder vote on the frequency of such vote,
(iii) disclosure of “golden parachute” arrangements in connection with specified change in control transactions, and (iv) a non-
binding shareholder vote on golden parachute arrangements in connection with these change in control transactions.

Prohibition Against Charter Conversions of Troubled Institutions. The Dodd-Frank Act generally prohibits a depository
institution from converting from a state to federal charter, or vice versa, whileit is the subject to an enforcement action unless
the bank seeks prior approval from its regulator and complies with specified procedures to ensure compliance with the
enforcement action.

Consumer Financial Protection Bureau. The Dodd-Frank Act created a new, independent federal agency called the
Bureau of Consumer Financial Protection (“CFPB”). The CFPB has broad rulemaking, supervision and enforcement authority
for awide range of consumer protection laws applicable to banks and thrifts with greater than $10 billion in assets. Smaller
institutions are subject to certain rules promulgated by the CFPB but will continue to be examined and supervised by their
federal banking regulators for compliance purposes.

Repeal of Demand Deposit Interest Prohibition. The Dodd-Frank Act repeals the federal prohibitions on the payment of
interest on demand deposits, thereby permitting depository institutions to pay interest on business transaction and other
accounts.

Proposed Legislation

General. Proposed legislation isintroduced in almost every legislative session. Certain of such legislation could
dramatically affect the regulation of the banking industry. We cannot predict if any such legislation will be adopted or if it is
adopted how it would affect the business of Columbia Bank or the Company. Recent history has demonstrated that new
legidlation or changes to existing laws or regulations usually resultsin a greater compliance burden and therefore generally
increases the cost of doing business.

Basel I11. Basel Il updates and revises significantly the current international bank capital accords (so-called “Basel 1”
and “Basel 11"). Basel Il isintended to be implemented by participating countries for large, internationally active banks.
However, standards consistent with Basel I11 will be formally implemented in the United States through a series of regulations,
some of which may apply to other banks. Among other things, Basel 111 creates“ Tier 1 common equity,” a new measure of
regulatory capital closer to pure tangible common equity than the present Tier 1 definition. Basel |11 aso increases minimum
capital ratios. Capital buffers are added to each capital ratio to enable banks to absorb losses during a stressed period while
remaining above their regulatory minimum ratios. The full impact of the Basel 111 rules cannot be determined at thistime as
many regulations are still being written and the implementation date has not yet been finalized.

Effects of Government Monetary Policy

Our earnings and growth are affected not only by general economic conditions, but also by the fiscal and monetary policies of
the federal government, particularly the Federal Reserve. The Federal Reserve implements national monetary policy for such
purposes as curbing inflation and combating recession, but its open market operationsin U.S. government securities, control of
the discount rate applicable to borrowings from the Federal Reserve, and establishment of reserve requirements against certain
deposits, influence the growth of bank loans, investments and deposits, and also affect interest rates charged on loans or paid on
deposits. The nature and impact of future changes in monetary policies and their impact on us cannot be predicted with
certainty.
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ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

Our business exposes us to certain risks. The following is a discussion of what we currently believe are the most
significant risks and uncertainties that may affect our business, financial condition and future results.

A continued slow or fragile economic recovery could adversely affect our future results of operations or market price of
our stock.

The national and global economy and the financial services sector in particular continue to face significant challenges,
including the current uncertainty regarding sequestration. We cannot accurately predict how quickly or strongly the economy
will recover from the recent recession, which has adversely impacted the markets we serve. The U.S. economy has also
experienced substantial volatility in the financial markets. Any further deterioration in the economies of the nation as awhole
or in our markets would have an adverse effect, which could be material, on our business, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects, and could also cause the market price of our stock to decline. Whileit isimpossible to predict how
long challenging economic conditions may exist, aslow or fragile recovery could continue to present risks into the future for
the industry and our company.

Economic conditions in the market areas we serve may adversely impact our earnings and could increase our credit risk
associated with our loan portfolio and the value of our investment portfolio.

Substantially all of our loans are to businesses and individual s in Washington and Oregon, and continuing soft economies
in these market areas could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and
prospects. While housing prices have stabilized, unemployment remains relatively high in both Washington and Oregon. A
deterioration in the market areas we serve could result in the following consequences, any of which could have an adverse
impact, which could be material, on our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects:

. loan delinquencies may increase;

. problem assets and foreclosures may increase;

. collateral for loans made may decline further in value, in turn reducing customers' borrowing power,
reducing the value of assets and collateral associated with existing loans;

. certain securities within our investment portfolio could become other than temporarily impaired, requiring a
write-down through earningsto fair value, thereby reducing equity;

. low cost or non-interest bearing deposits may decrease; and

. demand for our loan and other products and services may decrease.

Our loan portfolio mix, which has loans secured by real estate, could result in increased credit risk in a challenging
economy.

Our loan portfolio is concentrated in commercial real estate and commercial business loans. These types of loans
generally are viewed as having more risk of default than residential real estate loans or certain other types of loans or
investments. In fact, the FDIC has issued pronouncements alerting banks of its concern about heavy loan concentrations.
Because our loan portfolio contains commercial real estate and commercial business loans with relatively large balances, the
deterioration of one or afew of these loans may cause a significant increase in our non-performing loans. An increase in non-
performing loans could result in aloss of earnings from these loans, an increase in the provision for loan losses, or an increase
in loan charge-offs, any of which could have a material adverse impact on our results of operations and financial condition.

Any downturn in the economies or real estate valuesin the markets we serve could have amaterial adverse effect on both
borrowers' ability to repay their loans and the value of the real property securing such loans. Our ability to recover on defaulted
loans would then be diminished, and we would be more likely to suffer losses on defaulted loans.
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Our Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses (“ALLL”) may not be adequate to cover future loan losses, which could
adversely affect earnings.

We maintain an ALLL in an amount that we believe is adequate to provide for losses inherent in our loan portfolio. While
we strive to carefully monitor credit quality and to identify loans that may become non-performing, at any time there are loans
in the portfolio that could result in losses, but that have not been identified as non-performing or potential problem loans. We
cannot be sure that we will be able to identify deteriorating loans before they become non-performing assets, or that we will be
able to limit losses on those loans that have been identified. Additionally, the process for determining the ALLL requires
different, subjective and complex judgments about the future impact from current economic conditions that might impair the
ability of borrowersto repay their loans. As aresult, future significant increasesto the ALLL may be necessary.

Future increasesto the ALLL may be required based on changes in the composition of the loans comprising the portfalio,
deteriorating values in underlying collateral (most of which consists of real estate) and changesin the financia condition of
borrowers, such as may result from changes in economic conditions, or as aresult of actual future events differing from
assumptions used by management in determining the ALLL. Additionally, banking regulators, as an integral part of their
supervisory function, periodically review our ALLL. These regulatory agencies may require usto increase the ALLL. Any
increasein the ALLL would have an adverse effect, which could be material, on our financial condition and results of
operations.

Nonperforming assets take significant time to resolve and adversely affect our results of operations and financial
condition.

Our nonperforming assets adversely affect our net income in various ways. Until economic and market conditions
improve to pre-recession levels, we expect to continue to incur additional losses relating to elevated levels of nonperforming
loans. We do not record interest income on honaccrual loans, thereby adversely affecting our income, and increasing loan
administration costs. Assets acquired by foreclosure or similar proceedings are recorded at the lower of carrying value or fair
value less estimated costs to sell. The valuation of these foreclosed assets is periodically updated and resulting losses, if any,
are charged to earnings in the period in which they are identified. An increase in the level of nonperforming assets also
increases our risk profile and may impact the capital levels our regulators believe is appropriate in light of such risks. We utilize
various techniques such as loan sales, workouts, and restructurings to manage our problem assets. Decreases in the value of
these problem assets, the underlying collateral, or in the borrowers' performance or financia condition, could adversely affect
our business, results of operations and financial condition. In addition, the resolution of nonperforming assets requires
significant commitments of time from management and staff, which can be detrimental to performance of their other
responsibilities. We may experience further increases in nonperforming loans in the future.

The pending acquisition of West Coast Bancorp (""West Coast") is subject to closing conditions that, if not satisfied or
waived, could result in our inability to consummate the transaction, which may cause the price of our stock to decline.

On September 25, 2012, we entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger with West Coast. The closing of the
transaction is subject to the satisfaction of certain customary conditions, including the receipt of required regulatory approvals
and the approval of West Coast's and our respective shareholders. No assurance can be given asto when or whether these
approvals will bereceived. If we do not complete this acquisition, the trading price of our stock may decline to the extent that
the current prices reflect a market assumption that the acquisition will be completed.

Furthermore, if the merger agreement is terminated (i) due to our failure to obtain requisite approva from our
shareholders or (ii) due to our failure to obtain regulatory approval, we will be required to pay West Coast a termination fee of
$5 million. In that regard, special shareholder meetings have been called by both Columbia and West Coast to be held March
18, 2013 to act on the transaction and the requisite applications have been filed with the Federal and State bank regulators, with
an anticipated closing date of April 1, 2013.

We may fail to realize all of the anticipated benefits of our pending acquisition of West Coast.

The success of our pending acquisition of West Coast will depend on, among other things, the ability to successfully
combine Columbia and the West Coast organizations. If we are not able to achieve this objective, the anticipated benefits of the
acquisition may not be realized fully or at all, or may take longer than expected to be realized.

Columbia and West Coast have operated and, until the completion of the acquisition, will continue to operate,
independently. The companies may have challenges integrating different standards, procedures and policies. It is also possible
that clients, customers, depositors and counterparties of West Coast could choose to discontinue their relationships with the
combined company post-acquisition, which could adversely affect our future anticipated performance. These transition matters
could have an adverse effect on us during the pre-acquisition period and for an undetermined time after the completion of the
acquisition.
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Our acquisitions and the integration of acquired businesses may not result in all of the benefits anticipated, and future
acquisitions may be dilutive to current shareholders.

We have in the past and may in the future seek to grow our business by acquiring other businesses. Our acquisitions may
not have the anticipated positive results, including results relating to: correctly ng the asset quality of the assets being
acquired; the total cost of integration including management attention and resources; the time required to complete the
integration successfully; the amount of longer-term cost savings; being able to profitably deploy funds acquired in an
acquisition; or the overall performance of the combined entity.

We also may encounter difficulties in obtaining required regulatory approvals and unexpected contingent liabilities can
arise from the businesses we acquire. Integration of an acquired business can be complex and costly, sometimes including
combining relevant accounting and data processing systems and management controls, as well as managing relevant
rel ationships with employees, clients, suppliers and other business partners. Integration efforts could divert management
attention and resources, which could adversely affect our operations or results.

Given the continued market volatility and uncertainty, notwithstanding our loss-sharing arrangements with the FDIC, we
may experience increased credit costs or need to take additional markdowns and allowances for loan losses on the assets and
loans acquired that could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations in the future.

We may also experience difficulties in complying with the technical requirements of our loss-sharing agreements with the
FDIC, which could result in some assets which we acquire in FDIC-assisted transactions losing their coverage under such
agreements.

Acquisitions may also result in business disruptions that cause us to lose customers or cause customers to remove their
accounts from us and move their business to competing financia ingtitutions. It is possible that the integration process related
to acquisitions could result in the disruption of our ongoing businesses or inconsistencies in standards, controls, procedures and
policies that could adversely affect our ability to maintain relationships with clients, customers, depositors and employees. The
loss of key employeesin connection with an acquisition could adversely affect our ability to successfully conduct our business.

We may engage in future acquisitions involving the issuance of additional common stock and/or cash. Any such
acquisitions and related issuances of stock may have a dilutive effect on earnings per share, book value per share or the
percentage ownership of current shareholders. The use of cash as consideration in any such acquisitions could impact our
capital position and may require us to raise additional capital.

Furthermore, notwithstanding our pending and recent acquisitions, we cannot provide any assurance as to the extent to
which we can continue to grow through acquisitions as this will depend on the availability of prospective target opportunities at
valuations we find attractive and the competition for such opportunities from other parties.

Our decisions regarding the fair value of assets acquired, including the FDIC loss-sharing assets, could be inaccurate,
which could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations, and future
prospects.

Management makes various assumptions and judgments about the collectability of the acquired loans, including the
creditworthiness of borrowers and the value of the real estate and other assets serving as collateral for the repayment of secured
loans. In FDIC-assisted acquisitions that include loss-sharing agreements, we may record aloss-sharing asset which is
accounted for on the same basis as the assets covered under the loss-sharing agreements. The FDIC |oss-sharing asset
primarily represents the present value of the cash flows the Company expectsto collect from the FDIC under the loss-sharing
agreements.

If our assumptions are incorrect, significant earnings volatility can occur and credit loss provisions may be needed to
respond to different economic conditions or adverse developmentsin the acquired |oan portfolio. Any increase in future loan
losses could have a material adverse effect on our operating results.
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Our management of capital could adversely affect profitability measures, the market price of our common stock, and
dilute the holders of our outstanding common stock.

Our capital ratios are significantly higher than regulatory minimums. We may lower our capital ratios through either
selective acquisitions that meet our disciplined criteria, organic loan growth, investment in securities, or a combination of all
three. Although we are periodically engaged in discussions with other potential acquisition candidates, we are not currently a
party to any purchase or merger agreement other than our pending acquisition of West Coast. Following our pending
acquisition of West Coast, there can be no assurance that we will be able to negotiate future acquisitions on terms acceptable to
us.

Conversely, there may be circumstances under which it would be prudent to consider alternatives for raising capital to
take advantage of significant acquisition opportunities or in response to changing economic conditions. Our ability to raise
additional capital, if needed, will depend on, among other things, conditions in the capital markets at the time, which are
outside our control, and our financial performance. Any capital raising aternatives could dilute the holders of our outstanding
common stock and may adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

If the goodwill we have recorded in connection with acquisitions becomes impaired, it could have an adverse impact on
our earnings and shareholders’ equity.

Accounting standards require that we account for acquisitions using the acquisition method of accounting. Under
acquisition accounting, if the purchase price of an acquired company exceeds the fair value of its net assets, the excessis
carried on the acquirer’s balance sheet as goodwill. In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, our goodwill
is evaluated for impairment on an annual basis or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate that a potential
impairment exists. Such evaluation may be based on a variety of factors, including the quoted price of our common stock,
market prices of common stock of other banking organizations, common stock trading multiples, discounted cash flows, and
data from comparable acquisitions. Future evaluations of goodwill may result in impairment and ensuing write-down, which
could be material, resulting in an adverse impact on our earnings and shareholders' equity.

Fluctuating interest rates could adversely affect our business.

Significant increases in market interest rates on loans, or the perception that an increase may occur, could adversely affect
both our ability to originate new loans and our ability to grow. Conversely, decreasesin interest rates could result in an
acceleration of loan prepayments. An increase in market interest rates could also adversely affect the ability of our floating-rate
borrowers to meet their higher payment obligations. If this occurred, it could cause an increase in nonperforming assets and
charge offs, which could adversely affect our business.

Further, our profitability is dependent to alarge extent upon net interest income, which isthe difference (or “spread”)
between the interest earned on loans, securities and other interest-earning assets and the interest paid on deposits, borrowings,
and other interest-bearing liabilities. Because of the differences in maturities and repricing characteristics of our interest-
earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, changesin interest rates do not produce equivalent changes in interest income
earned on interest-earning assets and interest paid on interest-bearing liabilities. Accordingly, fluctuations in interest rates could
adversely affect our interest rate spread, and, in turn, our profitability.

The expiration of unlimited FDIC insurance on certain noninterest-bearing transaction accounts may increase our interest
expense and reduce our liquidity.

On December 31, 2012, unlimited FDIC insurance on certain noninterest-bearing transaction accounts under the
Transaction Account Guarantee (“TAG") program expired. Prior to its expiration, all funds under TAG in a noninterest-bearing
transaction account were insured in full by the FDIC from December 31, 2010, through December 31, 2012. This temporary
unlimited coverage was in addition to, and separate from, the coverage of at least $250,000 available to depositors under the
FDIC's general deposit insurance rules. The reduction in FDIC insurance on these noninterest-bearing transaction accounts to
the standard $250,000 maximum may cause depositors to move funds previously held in such noninterest-bearing accounts to
interest-bearing accounts, which could increase our costs of funds and negatively impact our results of operations, or may cause
depositors to withdraw their deposits and invest funds in other investments. This could reduce the Company's liquidity, or
require usto pay higher interest rates to retain depositsin order to maintain our liquidity and could adversely affect the
Company's earnings.
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We operate in a highly regulated environment and changes of or increases in, or supervisory enforcement of, banking or
other laws and regulations or governmental fiscal or monetary policies could adversely affect us.

We are subject to extensive regulation, supervision and examination by federal and state banking authorities. In addition,
as apublicly-traded company, we are subject to regulation by the Securities and Exchange Commission. Any changein
applicable regulations or federal, state or local legislation or in policies or interpretations or regulatory approaches to
compliance and enforcement, income tax laws and accounting principles could have a substantial impact on us and our
operations. Changes in laws and regulations may also increase our expenses by imposing additional fees or taxes or restrictions
on our operations. Additional legidation and regulations that could significantly affect our powers, authority and operations
may be enacted or adopted in the future, which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of
operations. Failure to appropriately comply with any such laws, regulations or principles could result in sanctions by regulatory
agencies or damage to our reputation, all of which could adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of
operations.

In that regard, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act was enacted in July 2010. Among other
provisions, the legislation (i) created a new Bureau of Consumer Financial Protection with broad powersto regulate consumer
financial products such as credit cards and mortgages, (ii) created a Financial Stability Oversight Council comprised of the
heads of other regulatory agencies, (iii) will lead to new capital requirements from federal banking agencies, (iv) places new
limits on electronic debit card interchange fees and (v) requires the Securities and Exchange Commission and national stock
exchanges to adopt significant new corporate governance and executive compensation reforms. The new legislation and
regulations are expected to increase the overall costs of regulatory compliance.

Further, regulators have significant discretion and authority to prevent or remedy unsafe or unsound practices or
violations of laws or regulations by financial institutions and holding companies in the performance of their supervisory and
enforcement duties. Recently, these powers have been utilized more frequently due to the serious national, regional and local
economic conditions we are facing. The exercise of regulatory authority may have a negative impact on our financial condition
and results of operations. Additionally, our businessis affected significantly by the fiscal and monetary policies of the U.S.
federal government and its agencies, including the Federal Reserve Board.

We cannot accurately predict the full effects of recent legislation or the various other governmental, regul atory, monetary
and fiscal initiatives which have been and may be enacted on the financial markets, on the Company and on the Bank. The
terms and costs of these activities, or any worsening of current financial market and economic conditions, could materially and
adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations, and the trading price of our common stock.

We may be required, in the future, to recognize impairment with respect to investment securities.

Our securities portfolio currently includes securities with unrecognized losses. We may continue to observe declinesin
the fair market value of these securities. Securitiesissued by certain states and municipalities have recently come under
scrutiny due to concerns about credit quality. Although management believes the credit quality of the Company’s state and
municipal securities portfolio to be good, there can be no assurance that the credit quality of these securities will not declinein
the future. We evaluate the securities portfolio for any other than temporary impairment each reporting period, as required by
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America. There can be no assurance, however, that future
evaluations of the securities portfolio will not require us to recognize further impairment charges with respect to these and other
holdings. For example, it is possible that government-sponsored programs to allow mortgages to be refinanced to lower rates
could materially adversely impact the yield on our portfolio of mortgage-backed securities, since a significant portion of our
investment portfolio is composed of such securities.

Substantial competition in our market areas could adversely affect us.

Commercial banking is a highly competitive business. We compete with other commercial banks, savings and loan
associations, credit unions, finance, insurance and other non-depository companies operating in our market areas. We also
experience competition, especially for deposits, from Internet-based banking institutions, which have grown rapidly in recent
years. We are subject to substantial competition for loans and deposits from other financial institutions. Some of our
competitors are not subject to the same degree of regulation and restriction as we are and/or have greater financial resources
than we do. Some of our competitors have severe liquidity issues, which could impact the pricing of depositsin our
marketplace. If we are unable to effectively compete in our market areas, our business, results of operations and prospects
could be adversely affected.

16



Changes in accounting standards could materially impact our financial statements.

From time to time the Financial Accounting Standards Board and the SEC change the financial accounting and reporting
standards that govern the preparation of our financia statements. These changes can be very difficult to predict and can
meaterially impact how we record and report our financial condition and results of operations. In some cases, we could be
required to apply a new or revised standard retroactively, resulting in our restating prior period financial statements.

There can be no assurance as to the level of dividends we may pay on our common stock.

Holders of our common stock are only entitled to receive such dividends as our Board of Directors may declare out of
funds legally available for such payments. Although we have historically declared cash dividends on our common stock, we are
not required to do so and there may be circumstances under which we would eliminate our common stock dividend in the
future. This could adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

Significant legal or regulatory actions could subject us to substantial uninsured liabilities and reputational harm and
have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

We are from time to time subject to claims and proceedings related to our operations. These claims and legal actions,
which could include supervisory or enforcement actions by our regulators, or crimina proceedings by prosecutorial authorities,
could involve large monetary claims, including civil money penalties or fines imposed by government authorities, and
significant defense costs. To mitigate the cost of some of these claims, we maintain insurance coverage in amounts and with
deductibles that we believe are appropriate for our operations. However, our insurance coverage does not cover any civil
money penalties or finesimposed by government authorities and may not cover al other claims that might be brought against
us or continue to be available to us at a reasonable cost. As aresult, we may be exposed to substantial uninsured liabilities,
which could adversely affect our business, prospects, results of operations and financia condition. Substantial legal liability or
significant regulatory action against us could have material adverse financial effects or cause significant reputational harm to
us, which in turn could seriously harm our business prospects.

We are subject to a variety of operational risks, including reputational risk, legal risk and compliance risk, and the risk
of fraud or theft by employees or outsiders, which may adversely affect our business and results of operations.

We are exposed to many types of operationa risks, including reputational risk, legal and compliance risk, the risk of fraud
or theft by employees or outsiders, and unauthorized transactions by employees or operational errors, including clerical or
record-keeping errors or those resulting from faulty or disabled computer or telecommunications systems.

If personal, non-public, confidential or proprietary information of customersin our possession were to be mishandled or
misused, we could suffer significant regulatory consequences, reputational damage and financial loss. Such mishandling or
misuse could include, for example, if such information were erroneously provided to parties who are not permitted to have the
information, either by fault of our systems, employees, or counterparties, or where such information is intercepted or otherwise
inappropriately taken by third parties.

Because the nature of the financial services businessinvolves a high volume of transactions, certain errors may be
repeated or compounded before they are discovered and successfully rectified. Our necessary dependence upon automated
systems to record and process transactions and our large transaction volume may further increase the risk that technical flaws or
employee tampering or manipulation of those systemswill result in losses that are difficult to detect. We also may be subject to
disruptions of our operating systems arising from events that are wholly or partially beyond our control (for example, computer
viruses or electrical or telecommunications outages, or natural disasters, disease pandemics or other damage to property or
physical assets) which may give rise to disruption of service to customers and to financial loss or liability. We are further
exposed to the risk that our external vendors may be unable to fulfill their contractual obligations (or will be subject to the same
risk of fraud or operational errors by their respective employees as we are) and to the risk that we (or our vendors') business
continuity and data security systems prove to be inadequate. The occurrence of any of these risks could result in a diminished
ability of usto operate our business (for example, by requiring us to expend significant resources to correct the defect), aswell
as potential liability to clients, reputational damage and regulatory intervention, which could adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations, perhaps materialy.
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A failure in or breach of our operational or security systems, or those of our third party service providers, including as a
result of cyber attacks, could disrupt our business, result in unintentional disclosure or misuse of confidential or proprietary
information, damage our reputation, increase our costs and cause losses.

Asafinancial ingtitution, our operations rely heavily on the secure processing, storage and transmission of confidential
and other information on our computer systems and networks. Any failure, interruption or breach in security or operational
integrity of these systems could result in failures or disruptionsin our online banking system, customer relationship
management, general ledger, deposit and loan servicing and other systems. The security and integrity of our systems could be
threatened by avariety of interruptions or information security breaches, including those caused by computer hacking, cyber
attacks, electronic fraudulent activity or attempted theft of financial assets. We cannot assure you that any such failures,
interruption or security breaches will not occur, or if they do occur, that they will be adequately addressed. While we have
certain protective policies and procedures in place, the nature and sophistication of the threats continue to evolve. We may be
required to expend significant additional resources in the future to modify and enhance our protective measures.

Additionally, we face the risk of operational disruption, failure, termination or capacity constraints of any of the third
parties that facilitate our business activities, including exchanges, clearing agents, clearing houses or other financial
intermediaries. Such parties could also be the source of an attack on, or breach of, our operational systems. Any failures,
interruptions or security breachesin our information systems could damage our reputation, result in aloss of customer
business, result in aviolation of privacy or other laws, or expose us to civil litigation, regulatory fines or losses not covered by
insurance.

We have various anti-takeover measures that could impede a takeover.

Our articles of incorporation include certain provisions that could make it more difficult to acquire us by means of a
tender offer, a proxy contest, merger or otherwise. These provisions include certain non-monetary factors that our board of
directors may consider when evaluating a takeover offer, and a requirement that any “Business Combination” be approved by
the affirmative vote of no less than 66 2/3% of the total shares attributable to persons other than a“Control Person.” These
provisions may have the effect of lengthening the time required for a person to acquire control of us through atender offer,
proxy contest or otherwise, and may deter any potentially hostile offers or other efforts to obtain control of us. This could
deprive our shareholders of opportunities to realize a premium for their Columbia common stock, even in circumstances where
such action is favored by a majority of our shareholders.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The Company’s principal Columbia Bank properties include our corporate headquarters which islocated at 13th & A
Street, Tacoma, Washington, and an operations facility in Lakewood, Washington.

The Company’s branch network as of December 31, 2012 is made up of 99 branches located throughout several
Washington and Oregon counties compared to 102 branches at December 31, 2011. The number of branches per county, as well
aswhether it is owned or operated under alease agreement is detailed in the following table.

Number of Occupancy Type

County Branches Owned Leased
Pierce. . 22 16 6
KiNg. ..o 13 8 5
KitSap. . oo 6 3 3
Snohomish. . ... 5 5 —
SKagit. . o 3 3 —
Other Washingtoncounties. .. .............. ... .. ... 25 20 5

Total Washingtonbranches .. ..................... 74 55 19
Clatsop (dbaBank of Astoria). . ............covvinn... 4 4 —
Tillamook (dbaBank of Astoria). . ..................... 2 2 —
Clackamas. . .. ..o 4 — 4
Multnomah . ......... .. 2 1 1
Deschutes. . . ... 4 3 1
Other Oregoncounties. ... ..., 9 7 2

Total Oregonbranches. ................ ... ...... 25 17 8
Total ColumbiaBank branches. ....................... 99 72 27

For additional information concerning our premises and equipment and lease obligations, see Note 8 and 15, respectively,
to the Consolidated Financia Statementsin “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this report.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company and its banking subsidiary are parties to routine litigation arising in the ordinary course of business.
Management believes that, based on the information currently known to them, any liabilities arising from such litigation will
not have a material adverse impact on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Quarterly Common Stock Prices and Dividends

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol “COLB”. Quarterly high and low
sales prices and dividend information for the last two years are presented in the following table. The prices shown do not
include retail mark-ups, mark-downs or commissions:

Cash Dividends Declared

Total Cash
2012 High Low Regular Special Dividends Declared
Firstquarter. .. ... $ 23.35 $ 19.65 $ 0.08 $ 0.29 $ 0.37
Second qQUartEr. . . ...t $ 23.52 $ 17.38 0.08 0.14 0.22
Thirdquarter ... $ 19.85 $ 17.22 0.09 0.21 0.30
Fourthquarter ............coiiiineeiiiiieennn, $ 1915 $ 16.18 0.09 — 0.09
Fortheyear ..... ... $ 23.52 $ 16.18 $ 0.34 $ 0.64 $ 0.98

Cash Dividends Declared

Total Cash
2011 High Low Regular Special Dividends Declared
Firstquarter. .. ..o $ 2214 3% 1791 $ 003 % — $ 0.03
Second QUaEr . . ... $ 1995 $ 16.56 0.05 — 0.05
Thirdquarter . ... $ 1814  $ 14.01 0.06 — 0.06
Fourthquarter ........ ... i, $ 1976  $ 13.46 0.08 0.05 0.13
Fortheyear ....... ..ot $ 2214 3 1346  $ 022 $ 005 $ 0.27

On December 31, 2012, the last sale price for our stock on the NASDAQ Global Select Market was $17.94. At
January 31, 2013, the number of shareholders of record was 2,135. This figure does not represent the actual number of
beneficial owners of common stock because shares are frequently held in “street name” by securities dealers and others for the
benefit of individual owners who may vote the shares.

At December 31, 2012, atotal of 25,952 stock options were outstanding. Additional information about stock options and
other equity compensation plansisincluded in Note 19 to the Consolidated Financial Statementsin “Item 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data’ of this report.

The payment of future cash dividendsis at the discretion of our Board and subject to a number of factors, including
results of operations, general business conditions, growth, financial condition and other factors deemed relevant to capital
management strategies by the Board of Directors. In addition, the payment of cash dividendsis subject to Federal regulatory
requirements for capital levels and other restrictions. In this regard, current guidance from the Federal Reserve provides, among
other things, that dividends per share on the Company’s common stock generally should not exceed earnings per share,
measured over the previous four fiscal quarters.

Subsequent to year end, on January 24, 2013 the Company declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.10 per share payable
on February 20, 2013, to shareholders of record at the close of business on February 6, 2013.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

Year ended December 31, 2012

Number of Shares

Equity compensation plans approved by security holders . . . .

Equity compensation plans not approved by security
holders ... ...

Number of Shares to be Weighted-Average Remaining Available for
Issued Upon Exercise of Exercise Price of Future Issuance Under
Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, Equity Compensation
Warrants and Rights (1)(2) Warrants and Rights Plans (3)
25,952 $ 20.13 1,026,135

(1) Includes sharesto beissued upon exercise of options under plans of Bank of Astoria, Mountain Bank Holding Company and Town Center Bancorp,

which were assumed as aresult of their acquisitions.

(2) Consists of sharesthat are subject to outstanding options.

(3) Includes 417,625 shares available for future issuance under the stock option and equity compensation plan and 608,510 shares available for

purchase under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan as of December 31, 2012.

Five-Year Stock Performance Graph

The following graph shows afive-year comparison of the total return to shareholders of Columbias common stock,
the Nasdag Composite Index (which is a broad nationally recognized index of stock performance by companies listed on the
Nasdag Stock Market) and the Columbia Peer Group (comprised of banks with assets of $1 billion to $5 billion, all of which
are located in the western United States). The definition of total return includes appreciation in market value of the stock as
well as the actual cash and stock dividends paid to shareholders. The graph assumes that the value of the investment in
Columbia's common stock, the Nasdag and the Columbia Peer Group was $100 on December 31, 2007, and that all dividends

were reinvested.
Period Ending
Index 12/31/2007 12/31/2008 12/31/2009 12/31/2010 12/31/2011 12/31/2012
Columbia Banking System, Inc.. . .. 100.00 41.29 56.38 73.53 68.32 66.87
NASDAQ Composite. ........... 100.00 60.02 87.24 103.08 102.26 120.42
SNL Columbia Peer Group . ...... 100.00 70.80 61.43 66.94 56.80 70.48

Source: SNL Financial LC, Charlottesville, VA
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Five-Year Summary of Selected Consolidated Financial Data (1)

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(dollars in thousands except per share amounts)

For the Year
INEEreSt INCOME. . . . .\ttt et e e $ 248504 $ 251,271 $ 185879 $ 143,035 $ 175,060
INterest EXPENSE . . ..o vt $ 9,577 $ 14,535 $ 21,092 $ 27,683 $ 55,547
NEt INtErest iNCOME . ..o v it $ 238,927 $ 236,736 $ 164,787 $ 115352 $ 119,513
Provision for loan and lease losses, excluding coveredloans . .. ............ $ 13,475 $ 7,400 $ 41,291 $ 63,500 $ 41,176
NONINtErest inCOME (I0SS) .+ v v vt et et e et e eie s $ 27,058 $ (9,283) $ 52,781 $ 29,690 $ 14,850
NONINEENESE BXPENSE . .« .+« vttt v e ettt e et e e ie s $ 162,913 $ 155,759 $ 137,147 $ 94,488 $ 92,125
NEtiNCOME (I0SS) .« . o vttt $ 46,143 $ 48,037 $ 30,784 $ (3,968) $ 5,968
Net income (loss) applicable to common shareholders. . .................. $ 46,143 $ 48,037 $ 25,837 $ (8,371) $ 5,498
Per Common Share
Earnings (10SS) (BaSIC) . . . ..o oo e e e $ 116 $ 122 $ 0.73 $ (0.38) $ 0.30
Earnings (10sS) (DIlUted) ... ..ottt e $ 116 $ 121 $ 0.72 $ (0.38) $ 0.30
Book Vallue. .. ..o $ 19.25 $ 19.23 $ 17.97 $ 16.13 $ 18.82
Averages
Total @SSEtS. . ..o $ 4,826,283 $ 4,509,010 $ 4,248,590 $ 3,084,421 $ 3,134,054
INtEreSt-EaMING @SSELS . . .« v\t v ettt ettt e $ 4,246,724 $ 3,871,424 $ 3,583,728 $ 2,783,862 $ 2,851,555
Loans, includingcovered10ans . . . ...t $ 2,900,520 $ 2,607,266 $ 2,485,650 $ 2,124,574 $ 2,264,486
SECUMTIES . o o vttt ettt e $ 1,011,294 $ 928,891 $ 720,152 $ 584,028 $ 565,299
DEPOSITS . . .ottt e $ 3,875,666 $ 3,541,399 $ 3,270,923 $ 2,378,176 $ 2,382,484
COredEPOSIES . . . oottt e e $ 3,609,467 $ 3,218,425 $ 2,828,246 $ 1,945,039 $ 1,911,897
Shareholders’ equity. .. ......ouutii e $ 761,185 $ 730,726 $ 668,469 $ 462,127 $ 354,387
Financial Ratios
NEtINErest Margin. . . ..o vt 5.77% 6.27% 4.76% 4.33 % 4.38%
REIUMN ON AVEraE ASSELS .+« .« v vt vt v ettt 0.96% 1.07% 0.72% (0.13)% 0.19%
Return on average Common €QUILY . . ... v vvveveeeeti e 6.06% 6.57% 4.15% (2.16)% 1.59%
Efficiency ratio (tax equivalent) (2). . ... 69.17% 70.68% 67.56% 61.53 % 59.88%
Average equity t0 aVerage asSetS. . . ..ttt i e 15.77% 16.21% 15.73% 14.98 % 11.31%
At Year End
TOtEl BSSELS. . . . $ 4,906,335 $ 4,785,945 $ 4,256,363 $ 3,200,930 $ 3,097,079
CoVEred @SSELS, NEL. . . . . vttt ettt $ 407,648 $ 560,055 $ 531,504 $ — $ —
Loans, excluding covered 10ans. . ... ..o vt $ 2,525,710 $ 2,348,371 $ 1,915,754 $ 2,008,884 $ 2,232,332
Allowance for noncovered loan and leaselosses. . .. ........oovviiinnn .. $ 52,244 $ 53,041 $ 60,993 $ 53478 $ 42,747
SECUMTIES . ..ottt e e $ 1,023,484 $ 1,050,325 $ 781774 $ 631,645 $ 540,525
DEPOSIES .« . v ettt $ 4,042,085 $ 3,815,529 $ 3,327,269 $ 2,482,705 $ 2,382,151
COMEAEPOSIES . . . v v vttt ettt ettt $ 3,802,366 $ 3,510,435 $ 2,998,482 $ 2,072,821 $ 1,941,047
Shareholders’ eqUItY. . .. ..ot 764,008 759,338 706,878 528,139 415,385
Nonperforming Assets, Excluding Covered Assets
NONACCTUAl 10ANS . . . . e et 37,395 53,483 89,163 110,431 106,163
Other real estate owned and other personal property owned. . .............. 11,108 31,905 30,991 19,037 2,874
Total nonperforming assets, excluding covered assets . .. .........ooovvunn. $ 48,503 $ 85,388 $ 120,154 $ 129,468 $ 109,037
Nonperforming loans to year end loans, excluding coveredloans . .......... T 148%  228%  465%  550%  476%
Nonperforming assets to year end assets, excluding covered assets . .. ....... 1.08% 2.02% 3.23% 4.04 % 3.52%
Allowance for loan and lease losses to year end loans, excluding covered

J0BNS . .o 2.07% 2.26% 3.18% 2.66 % 1.91%
Allowance for loan and lease losses to nonperforming loans, excluding

COVErRA [0BNS. . . . 139.71% 99.17% 68.41% 48.43 % 40.27%
Net 10an charge-0ffS. . . . ..ot $ 14,272 $ 15,352 $ 33,776 $ 52,769 $ 25,028
Other nonfinancial data
Full-time equivalent employees. . ... ...t 1,198 1,256 1,092 715 735
Bankingbranches. . ... 99 102 84 52 53

(1) These unaudited schedules provide selected financial information concerning the Company that should be read in conjunction with “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations’ of this report.

(2)  Noninterest expense, excluding net cost of operation of other real estate, FDIC clawback liability expense and acquisition related expenses, divided by the sum of net interest
income, excluding incremental accretion income on the acquired loan portfolio and prepayment expenses on FHLB advances, and noninterest income on atax equivalent basis,
excluding gain/loss investment securities, gain on bank acquisition, and the change in FDIC loss-sharing asset.
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Consolidated Five-Year Financial Data (1)

Years ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Interest Income:

LOaNS ..ot $ 219433 $ 218420 $ 157,292 $ 117,062 $ 147,830
Taxablesecurities. . ................ooitt. 18,276 21,870 18,276 17,300 18,852
Tax-exempt securities. . ................... 9,941 10,142 9,348 8,458 7,976
Federal funds sold and deposits with banks. . . . 854 839 963 215 402
Tota interestincome. . ................ 248,504 251,271 185,879 143,035 175,060
Interest Expense:
DEPOSItS . .o vvi et 5,887 10,478 16,733 23,250 45,307
Federal Home Loan Bank advances. . ........ 2,608 2,980 2,841 2,759 7,482
Prepayment charge on Federal Home Loan
Bankadvances ........................ 603 — — — —
Long-termobligations ... ................. — 579 1,029 1,197 1,800
Other borrowings. ................ovn... 479 498 489 477 958
Total interestexpense. ................ 9,577 14,535 21,092 27,683 55,547
Net Interest Income ..................... 238,927 236,736 164,787 115,352 119,513
Provision for noncovered |oan and lease
[0SSES. . vt 13,475 7,400 41,291 63,500 41,176
Provision (recapture) for losses on covered
loans . ..o 25,892 (1,648) 6,055 — —
Net interest income after provision. ... ... 199,560 230,984 117,441 51,852 78,337
Noninterest income (10SS). ... ...t 27,058 (9,283) 52,781 29,690 14,850
Noninterest expense. . .......oovvinennn.. 162,913 155,759 137,147 94,488 92,125
Income (loss) beforeincometaxes. .......... 63,705 65,942 33,075 (12,946) 1,062
Provision (benefit) for incometaxes ......... 17,562 17,905 2,291 (8,978) (4,906)
Net Income (L0SS). ......ooveveennnnnnn.. $ 46143 $ 48037 $ 30,784 $ (3968 $ 5968
Less: Dividends on preferred stock. . . . . . . — — 4,947 4,403 470
Net Income (Loss) Applicable to Common
Shareholders ......................... $ 46143 $ 48037 $ 25837 $ (8371) $ 5498
Per Common Share - Y
Earnings (loss) basic.................. $ 116 $ 122 % 073 $ 038 $ 0.30
Earnings (loss) diluted . ............... $ 116 % 121 $ 072 % (038 $ 0.30
Average number of common shares
outstanding (basic) ..................... 39,260 39,103 35,209 21,854 17,914
Average number of common shares
outstanding (diluted). . .................. 39,263 39,180 35,392 21,854 18,010
Total assetsatyearend. ................... $4,906,335 $4,785945 $4,256,363 $3,200,930  $3,097,079
Long-termobligations . ................... $ — % — $ 2573 $ 25669 $ 25,603
Cash dividends declared per commonshare ...  $ 098 % 027 $ 004 $ 007 $ 0.58

(1) These unaudited schedules provide selected financial information concerning the Company that should beread in
conjunction with “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation” of this

report.
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Selected Quarterly Financial Data (1)

The following table presents selected unaudited consolidated quarterly financial data for each quarter of 2012 and 2011.
Theinformation contained in this table reflects al adjustments, which, in the opinion of management, are necessary for afair

presentation of the results of the interim periods.

First Second Third Fourth Year Ended
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter December 31,
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

2012
Total interestincome. ..., $ 69712 $ 62114 $ 59469 $ 57209 $ 248,504
Total interestexpense. . ........covviiii i, 2,649 2,413 2,204 2,311 9,577
Net interestincome ........... ..., 67,063 59,701 57,265 54,898 238,927
Provision for noncovered loan and lease losses. . . . . 4,500 3,750 2,875 2,350 13,475
Provision (recapture) for losses on covered loans. . . 15,685 11,688 (3,992) 2,511 25,892
Noninterest income (10SS) .. .............. ..., 9,574 11,828 (911) 6,567 27,058
Noninterest expense. .. ..o, 44,352 39,825 40,936 37,800 162,913
Income beforeincometaxes . .................. 12,100 16,266 16,535 18,804 63,705
Provisionforincometaxes..................... 3,198 4,367 4,655 5,342 17,562
NEtinCOme. . ..o $ 8902 $ 11899 $ 1180 $ 13462 $ 46,143
Per Common Share @ - -

Earnings(basic) . ...........cooiii, $ 022 % 030 $ 030 $ 034 % 1.16

Earnings(diluted). .. ..................... $ 022 $ 030 $ 030 $ 034 3 1.16
2011
Tota interestincome. ........................ $ 54611 $ 53309 $ 68432 $ 74919 $ 251,271
Total interestexpense. .. ...t 4,162 3,934 3,644 2,795 14,535
Netinterestincome ............ ... ... 50,449 49,375 64,788 72,124 236,736
Provision for noncovered loan and lease losses. . . . . — 2,150 500 4,750 7,400
Provision (recapture) for losses on covered loans. . . (422) 2,301 433 (3,960) (1,648)
Noninterest income (10Ss) ..................... (5,419) 3,542 2,196 (9,602) (9,283)
Noninterest expense. .. .......covviii i 37,346 37,164 39,935 41,314 155,759
Income beforeincometaxes ................... 8,106 11,302 26,116 20,418 65,942
Provision forincometaxes..................... 2,327 2,670 7,244 5,664 17,905

Netincome. ..., $ 57719 % 8632 $ 18872 $ 14754 % 48,037
Per Common Share ® -

Earnings(basic) . ...t $ 015 $ 022 $ 048 % 037 % 1.22

Earnings (diluted). . ...................... $ 015 $ 022 % 048 % 037 % 121

(1) These unaudited schedules provide selected financial information concerning the Company that should be read in conjunction with
“Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation” of this report.
(2) Dueto averaging of shares, quarterly earnings per share may not add up to the totals reported for the full year.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATION

This discussion should be read in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial Statements and related notesin “Item 8.
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data’ of this report. In the following discussion, unless otherwise noted, referencesto
increases or decreases in average balances in items of income and expense for a particular period and balances at a particular
date refer to the comparison with corresponding amounts for the period or date for the previous year.

Critical Accounting Policies

We have established certain accounting policiesin preparing our Consolidated Financial Statements that arein
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Our significant accounting policies are
presented in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statementsin “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this
report. Certain of these policies require the use of judgments, estimates and economic assumptions which may prove inaccurate
or are subject to variation that may significantly affect our reported results of operations and financial position for the periods
presented or in future periods. Management believes that the judgments, estimates and economic assumptions used in the
preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements are appropriate given the factual circumstances at the time. We consider
the following policies to be most critical in understanding the judgments that are involved in preparing our consolidated
financia statements.

Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses

The allowance for loan and lease losses (“ALLL") is established to absorb known and inherent losses in our loan and
lease portfolio. Our methodology in determining the appropriate level of the ALLL includes components for a general valuation
allowance in accordance with the Contingencies topic of the Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards
Codification (“FASB ASC"), a specific valuation allowance in accordance with the Receivables topic of the FASB ASC and an
unallocated component. Both quantitative and qualitative factors are considered in determining the appropriate level of the
ALLL. Quantitative factors include historical loss experience, delinquency and charge-off trends and the evaluation of specific
loss estimates for problem loans. Qualitative factors include existing general economic and business conditions in our market
areas as well as the duration of the current business cycle. Changesin any of the factors mentioned could have a significant
impact on our calculation of the ALLL. Our ALLL policy and the judgments, estimates and economic assumptions involved are
described in greater detail in the “ Allowance for Noncovered Loan and Lease L osses and Unfunded Commitments and L etters
of Credit” section of this discussion and in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statementsin “ltem 8. Financial Statements
and Supplementary Data” of this report.

Business Combinations

The Company applies the acquisition method of accounting for business combinations. Under the acquisition method, the
acquiring entity in a business combination recognizes 100 percent of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at their
acquisition date fair values. Management utilizes prevailing valuation techniques appropriate for the asset or liability being
measured in determining these fair values. Any excess of the purchase price over amounts allocated to assets acquired,
including identifiable intangible assets, and liabilities assumed is recorded as goodwill. Where amounts allocated to assets
acquired and liabilities assumed is greater than the purchase price, a bargain purchase gain is recognized. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred.

Acquired Impaired Loans

Loans acquired at a discount for which it is probable that al contractual paymentswill not be received are generally
accounted for under ASC Topic 310-30, Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Credit Quality (“ASC 310-30").
In addition, certain acquired loans with evidence of deteriorated credit quality may be accounted for under thistopic evenif it
isnot yet probable that all contractual paymentswill not be received. These loans are recorded at fair value at the time of
acquisition. Estimated credit losses are included in the determination of fair value, therefore, an allowance for loan losses is not
recorded on the acquisition date. The excess of expected cash flows at acquisition over the initial investment in acquired loans
(“accretable yield”) is recorded as interest income over the life of the loansif the timing and amount of the future cash flowsis
reasonably estimable. Subsequent to acquisition, the Company aggregates individual loans with common risk characteristics
into pools of loans. Increases in estimated cash flows over those expected at the acquisition date are recognized as interest
income, prospectively. Decreases in expected cash flows after the acquisition date are recognized by recording an allowance for
loan losses.
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L oans accounted for under ASC 310-30 are generally considered accruing and performing loans as the |oans accrete
interest income over the estimated life of the loan when cash flows are reasonably estimable. Accordingly, acquired impaired
loans that are contractually past due are still considered to be accruing and performing loans. If the timing and amount of future
cash flows is not reasonably estimable, the loans may be classified as nonaccrual |oans and the purchase price discount on those
loansis not recorded as interest income until the timing and amount of future cash flows can be reasonably estimated.

FDIC Loss-sharing Asset

In conjunction with certain of the FDIC-assisted acquisitions, the Bank entered into |oss-sharing agreements with the
FDIC. At the date of the acquisitions, the Company elected to account for amounts receivable under the loss-sharing
agreements as an indemnification asset in accordance with the Business Combinations topic of the FASB ASC. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the FDIC loss-sharing asset is reviewed quarterly and adjusted for any changes in expected cash flows.
These adjustments are measured on the same basis as the related covered assets. Any decrease in expected cash flows due to an
increase in expected credit losses will increase the FDIC loss-sharing asset and any increase in expected future cash flows due
to adecrease in expected credit losses will decrease the FDIC loss-sharing asset. Increases and decreases to the FDIC loss-
sharing asset are recorded as adjustments to noninterest income.

Valuation and Recoverability of Goodwill

Goodwill represented $115.6 million of our $4.91 billion in total assets and $764.0 million in total shareholders’ equity as
of December 31, 2012. The Company has one, single reporting unit. We review goodwill for impairment annually, during the
third quarter, and also test for impairment between annual tests if an event occurs or circumstances change that would more
likely than not reduce the fair value of our reporting unit below its carrying amount. Such events and circumstances may
include among others: a significant adverse change in legal factors or in the genera business climate; significant decline in our
stock price and market capitalization; unanticipated competition; the testing for recoverability of a significant asset group
within the reporting unit; and an adverse action or assessment by a regulator. Any adverse change in these factors could have a
significant impact on the recoverability of goodwill and could have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Under the Intangibles — Goodwill and Other topic of the FASB ASC, the testing for impairment may begin with an
assessment of qualitative factorsto determineif it is more likely than not that the fair value of areporting unit is less than its
carrying amount. When required, the goodwill impairment test involves a two-step process. We first test goodwill for
impairment by comparing the fair value of the reporting unit with its carrying amount. If the fair value of the reporting unit
exceeds the carrying amount of the reporting unit, goodwill is not deemed to be impaired, and no further testing is necessary. If
the carrying amount of the reporting unit were to exceed the fair value of the reporting unit, we would perform a second test to
measure the amount of impairment loss, if any. To measure the amount of any impairment loss, we would determine the
implied fair value of goodwill in the same manner as if the reporting unit were being acquired in a business combination.
Specifically, we would allocate the fair value of the reporting unit to all of the assets and liabilities of the reporting unitin a
hypothetical calculation that would determine the implied fair value of goodwill. If the implied fair value of goodwill isless
than the recorded goodwill, we would record an impairment charge for the difference.

The accounting estimates related to our goodwill require us to make considerable assumptions about fair values. Our
assumptions regarding fair values require significant judgment about economic and industry factors, as well as our views
regarding the growth and earnings prospects of the bank. Changes in these judgments, either individually or collectively, may
have a significant effect on the estimated fair values.

Based on the results of the annual goodwill impairment test, we determined that no goodwill impairment charges were
required and our single reporting unit was not at risk of failing step one. As of December 31, 2012 we determined there were no
events or circumstances which would more likely than not reduce the fair value of our reporting unit below its carrying amount.

Even though we determined that there was no goodwill impairment during 2012, additional adverse changesin the
operating environment for the financial servicesindustry may result in afuture impairment charge.

Please refer to Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statementsin “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data” of thisreport for further discussion.
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2012 Highlights

Consolidated net income for 2012 was $46.1 million, or $1.16 per diluted common share, compared with a net income
of $48.0 million, or $1.21 per diluted common share, in 2011.

Net interest income for 2012 increased 1% to $238.9 million compared to $236.7 million for 2011. Interest income
was $248.5 million in 2012, compared to $251.3 million in 2011. The decrease was due to the lower average yield on
the noncovered loan portfolio. Interest expense decreased $5.0 million due to the average cost of interest-bearing
deposits falling 19 basis points.

Provision expense on noncovered loans was $13.5 million in 2012, compared to $7.4 million in 2011, an increase of
82%. Provision expense on covered loans was $25.9 million in 2012, compared to a provision recapture of $1.6
million in 2011. The noncovered loan provision for the current year approximates current year net charge-offs. The
noncovered loan provision in 2011 approximated net charge-offs partially offset by an improvement in credit quality.
The increase in the provision on covered loans was due to incremental 1oan losses incurred in the current period which
were in excess of those expected from the remeasurement of cash flows during the prior period.

Noninterest income was $27.1 million for 2012, an increase from aloss of $9.3 million for 2011. The increase was
primarily due to the decrease of $25.0 million in the change in the FDIC loss-sharing asset, $6.5 million in additional
investment securities gains, and $3.4 million in additional service charges and other fees.

Noninterest expense increased 5% to $162.9 million for 2012 due to increases in staffing and occupancy costs related
to the three FDIC-assisted transactions that occurred during mid 2011 as well as additional legal and professional
expenses incurred in 2012 related to the pending acquisition of West Coast.

Total assets at December 31, 2012 were $4.91 billion, up 3% from $4.79 billion at the end of 2011. Theincrease from
December 31, 2011 reflects the Company's noncovered loan growth as well asthe increase in cash and cash
equivalents in anticipation of payment of the cash portion of the West Coast Bancorp acquisition consideration.

Investment securities available for sale totaled $1.00 billion at December 31, 2012 compared to $1.03 billion at
December 31, 2011.

Loans, excluding covered loans, were $2.53 hillion, up 8% from $2.35 hillion at the end of 2011. Theincrease from
December 31, 2011 reflects additional loan volume arising from the Company's organic |oan growth. Noncovered
loan growth during 2012 was $177.3 million and was centered mainly in commercia business and commercial and
multifamily residential loans.

The allowance for noncovered loan and lease | osses decreased to $52.2 million at December 31, 2012 from $53.0
million at December 31, 2011 due to improved loan quality. The Company’s allowance amounts to 2.07% of total
noncovered loans, compared with 2.26% at the end of 2011.

Nonperforming assets totaled $48.5 million at December 31, 2012, significantly down from $85.4 million at
December 31, 2011. Net loan charge-offs were $14.3 million in 2012, compared with $15.4 million in 2011.
Nonaccrual loans decreased $16.1 million to $37.4 million and other real estate owned and cther personal property
owned decreased $20.8 million to $11.1 million.

Depositstotaled $4.04 billion at December 31, 2012 compared to $3.82 billion at December 31, 2011. Core deposits
totaled $3.80 hillion at December 31, 2012, comprising 94% of total deposits compared to $3.51 billion, or 92%, of
total deposits at December 31, 2011.

The Company iswell capitalized with atotal risk-based capital ratio of 20.62% at December 31, 2012 compared to
21.05% at December 31, 2011.

The number of branches decreased by 3 from December 31, 2011 to December 31, 2012 as part of the Company's
ongoing effort to improve efficiencies.
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Business Combinations

On August 5, 2011, the Bank acquired certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of the Bank of Whitman from the
FDIC in an FDIC-assisted transaction. The Bank and the FDIC entered into a modified whole bank purchase and assumption
agreement without loss share. The bank acquired approximately $437.5 million in assets, including $200.0 million in loans
measured at fair value, and approximately $401.1 million in deposits located in nine branches in eastern Washington. The Bank
participated in a competitive bid process in which the accepted bid included no deposit premium on non-brokered deposits and
anegative bid of $30.0 million on net assets acquired.

On May 27, 2011, the Bank acquired certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of First Heritage Bank from the FDIC
in an FDIC-assisted transaction. The Bank acquired approximately $165.0 million in assets and approximately $159.5 million
in deposits located in five branches in the King and Snohomish counties of Washington. First Heritage Bank's loans and other
real estate assets acquired of approximately $89.7 million are subject to aloss-sharing agreement with the FDIC. The Bank
participated in a competitive bid process in which the accepted bid included a 0.75% deposit premium on non-brokered
deposits and a negative bid of $10.5 million on net assets acquired.

On May 20, 2011, the Bank acquired certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of Summit Bank from the FDIC, in an
FDIC-assisted transaction. The Bank acquired approximately $131.1 million in assets and approximately $123.3 millionin
deposits located in three branches in in the northern Puget Sound region of Washington. Summit Bank's loans and other real
estate assets acquired of approximately $71.9 million are subject to aloss-sharing agreement with the FDIC. The Bank
participated in a competitive bid process in which the accepted bid included a 0.75% deposit premium on non-brokered
deposits and a negative bid of $9.5 million on net assets acquired.

On January 29, 2010, the Bank acquired substantially all of the deposits and assets of American Marine Bank from the
FDIC, which was appointed receiver of American Marine Bank. The Bank acquired approximately $307.8 million in assets and
approximately $254.0 million in deposits located in 11 branches in the western Puget Sound region. American Marine Bank’s
loans and other real estate assets acquired of approximately $257.5 million are subject to aloss-sharing agreement with the
FDIC. In addition, Columbia State Bank will continue to operate the Trust Division of American Marine Bank. The Bank
participated in a competitive bid process in which the accepted bid included a 1% deposit premium on non-brokered deposits
and a negative bid of $23.0 million on net assets acquired.

On January 22, 2010, the Bank acquired all of the deposits and certain assets of Columbia River Bank from the FDIC, in
an FDIC-assisted transaction. The Bank acquired approximately $912.9 million in assets and approximately $893.4 million in
deposits located in 21 branches in Oregon and Washington. Columbia River Bank’s loans and other real estate assets acquired
of approximately $696.1 million are subject to aloss-sharing agreement with the FDIC. The Bank participated in a competitive
bid process in which the accepted bid included a 1% deposit premium on non-brokered deposits and a negative bid of $43.9
million on net assets acquired.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Summary
A summary of the Company’s results of operations for each of the last five years ended December 31 follows:

Year Increase Year Increase
ended (Decrease) ended (Decrease) Years ended December 31,
2012 Amount % 2011 Amount % 2010 2009 2008
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)
Interestincome........... $ 248504 $ (2,767) (1) $ 251271 $ 65392 35 $185879 $ 143,035 $ 175,060
Interest expense. . ......... 9,577 (4,958) (34) 14,535 (6,557) (31) 21,092 27,683 55,547
Net interestincome. . . ... .. 238,927 2,191 1 236,736 71,949 44 164,787 115,352 119,513
Provision for loan and
leaselosses............ 13,475 6,075 82 7,400 (33,891) (82) 41,291 63,500 41,176
Provision (recapture) for
losses on covered loans . . 25,892 27,540 (1,671) (1,648) (7,703) (227) 6,055 — —
Noninterest income (l0ss) . . . 27,058 36,341 (391) (9,283) (62,064) (118) 52,781 29,690 14,850
Noninterest expense:
Compensation and
employee
benefits .......... 85,434 3,882 5 81,552 11,772 17 69,780 47,275 49,315
Other expense. .. ..... 77,479 3,272 4 74,207 6,840 10 67,367 47,213 42,810
Total .......... 162,913 7,154 5 155,759 18,612 14 137,147 94,488 92,125
Income (loss) before
incometaxes........... 63,705 (2,237) (©)] 65,942 32,867 99 33,075 (12,946) 1,062
Provision (benefit) for
incometaxes........... 17,562 (343) 2 17,905 15,614 682 2,291 (8,978) (4,906)
Net income (loss). . . .. $ 46143 $ (1,8%4) 4 $ 48037 $ 17,253 56 $ 30784 $ (3968 $ 5968
Less:
Dividends
on preferred
stock . ....... — — — — (4,947) (100) 4,947 4,403 470
Net income (loss)
applicable to
common
shareholders. . . ... $ 46143 $ (1,894) (4 $ 48037 $ 22200 86 $ 25837 $ (8371) $ 5498
Earnings (loss) per
common share,
diluted ........... $ 116 $ (0.05) 4 3 121 $ 0.49 68 % 072 $ (038 $ 0.30

Net Interest Income

Net interest income is the difference between interest income and interest expense. Net interest income on afully taxable-
equivalent basis expressed as a percentage of average total interest-earning assets is referred to as the net interest margin, which
represents the average net effective yield on interest-earning assets.
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The following table sets forth the average balances of all major categories of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing

liabilities, the total dollar amounts of interest income on interest-earning assets and interest expense on interest-bearing

liabilities, the average yield earned on interest-earning assets and average rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities by category

and in total, net interest income, net interest spread, net interest margin and the ratio of average interest-earning assets to

interest-earning liabilities:

Net Interest Income Summary

2012 2011 2010
Interest Average Interest Average Interest
Average Earned/ Average  Balances (1) Earned/ Average  Balances (1) Earned/ Average
Balances (1) Paid Rate ®3) Paid (3) Rate 3) Paid (3) Rate
(dollars in thousands)
ASSETS
Loans, excluding covered loans, net®@.  $2413307 $131,413 5.45% $2,064,568 $126,520 6.13% $2,103,964 $109,039 5.18%
Covered loans, net® . ............... 487,213 88,785 18.22% 542,698 92,467 17.04% 381,686 48,796 12.78%
Taxablesecurities .................. 740,418 18,276 2.47% 675,010 21,870 3.24% 491,306 18,276 3.72%
Tax exempt securitiess@ L. ... 270,876 15,423 5.69% 253,881 15,736 6.20% 228,846 14,505 6.34%
Interest-earning deposits with banks
and federal fundssold. ............ 334,910 854 0.26% 335,267 839 0.25% 377,926 963 0.25%
Total interest-earning assets. . . . . . 4,246,724 254,751 6.00% 3,871,424 257,432 6.65% 3,583,728 191,579 5.35%
Other earningassets. . . .............. 76,327 57,518 51,446
Noninterest-earning assets. . . ......... 503,232 580,068 613,416
Totalassets. .................. w w Wﬂ
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Certificates of deposit . .............. $ 543349 $ 3,257 0.60% $ 636,074 $ 5,093 0.80% $ 763,829 $ 8,705 1.14%
Savingsaccounts. .................. 298,223 e 0.03% 247,073 152 0.06% 199,117 287 0.14%
Interest-bearingdemand . ............ 790,887 869 0.11% 704,484 1,393 0.20% 637,983 2,157 0.34%
Money market accounts. . ............ 1,051,171 1,684 0.16% 969,548 3,840 0.40% 851,673 5,584 0.66%
Total interest-bearing deposits. . . . 2,683,630 5,887 0.22% 2,557,179 10,478 0.41% 2,452,602 16,733 0.68%
Federal Home L oan Bank
advances™ ... 100,337 3211 3.20% 120,419 2,980 2.47% 122,860 2,841 2.31%
Long-term subordinated debt . . ... .... — — —% 14,746 579 3.93% 25,701 1,029 4.00%
Other borrowings and interest-
bearing liabilities. . . .............. 25,000 479 1.92% 24,899 498 2.00% 24,881 489 1.96%
Total interest-bearing ligbilities. . . 2,808,967 9,577 0.34% 2,717,243 14,535 0.53% 2,626,044 21,092 0.80%
Noninterest-bearing deposits. . ........ 1,192,036 984,220 818,321
Other noninterest-bearing liahilities . . . . 64,095 76,821 135,756
Shareholders’ equity ................ 761,185 730,726 668,469
Total liabilities & shareholders’
OUILY. v v et $4,826,283 $4,509,010 $ 4,248,590
Netinterestincome. ...........ccovviiiinennn... $245,174 $242,897 $170,487
NEt INErest SPrEad. . . . ... 5.66% T 81% T a5%
NELINEErESt MAIGIN . . . ov et e e e T 577% T 6.27% T 476%
Average interest-earning assets to average interest-bearing - - -
lHaDIItiES. . .

151.18%

142.48%

136.47%

(1) Nonaccrual loans were included in loans. Amortized net deferred loan fees and net unearned discounts on certain acquired loans were included in the
interest income calculations. The amortization of net deferred loan feeswas $2.1 million in 2012, $1.3 million in 2011 and $2.1 million in 2010. The
amortization of net unearned discounts on certain acquired loans was $5.9 million in 2012 and $14.3 million in 2011. There was no amortization of net

unearned discountsin 2010.

(2) Yields on fully taxable equivalent basis, based on amarginal tax rate of 35%. The tax equivalent yield adjustment to interest earned on noncovered loans
was $765 thousand, $567 thousand and $543 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively. The tax equivalent yield
adjustment to interest earned on tax exempt securities was $5.5 million, $5.6 million and $5.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and

2010, respectively.

(3) Redlassified to conform to the current period’s presentation.

(4) Federal Home Loan Bank advances includes prepayment charge of $603 thousand in 2012.

30



Net interest income isimpacted by the volume (changes in volume multiplied by prior rate), interest rate (changesin rate
multiplied by prior volume) and the mix of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. The following table shows
changesin net interest income on afully taxable-equivalent basis between 2012 and 2011, as well as between 2011 and 2010
broken down between volume and rate. Changes attributabl e to the combined effect of volume and interest rates have been
allocated proportionately to the changes due to volume and the changes due to interest rates:

Changes in Net Interest Income

2012 Compared to 2011 2011 Compared to 2010
Increase (Decrease) Due to Increase (Decrease) Due to
Volume Rate Total Volume (1) Rate (1) Total

(in thousands)
Interest Income

Loans, excluding covered loans, net . .. ... $ 19937 $(15044) $ 4893 $ (2076) $ 19558 $ 17,482
Coveredloans,net .................... (9,845) 6,163 (3,682) 24,412 19,258 43,670
Taxablesecurities. . ................... 1,973 (5,567) (3,594) 6,178 (2,584) 3,594
Tax-exempt securities. . ................ 1,015 (1,328) (313) 1,558 (327) 1,231
Interest earning deposits with banks and
federal fundssold . .................. @ 16 15 (207) a7) (124)
Interestincome. ............... $ 13,079 $(15760) $ (2,681) $ 29965 $ 35888 $ 65,853
Interest Expense
Deposits:
Certificatesof deposit.............. $ (674 $ (1,162) $ (1,836) $ (1,3000 $ (2312) $ (3,612
Savingsaccounts. ... ..., 27 (102) (75) 57 (192) (135)
Interest-bearingdemand . ........... 155 (679) (524) 206 (970) (764)
Money market accounts ............ 299 (2,455) (2,156) 694 (2,438) (1,744)
Total interest on deposits. . ... ... (193) (4,398) (4,591) (343) (5,912) (6,255)
Federal Home Loan Bank and Federal
Reserve Bank borrowings. . ........... (550) 781 231 (57) 196 139
Long-term subordinated debt . . .. ........ (579) — (579) (431) (19 (450)
Other borrowings and interest-bearing
liabilities. ...t — (219 (29 2 7 9
Interestexpense............... $ (13220 $ (3636) $ (4958 $ (829 $ (5728) $ (6,557)

$ 14401 $(12,124) $ 2277 $ 30,794 $ 41616 $ 72,410

(1) Reclassified to conform to the current period's presentation.

Comparison of 2012 with 2011

Taxable-equivalent net interest income totaled $245.2 million in 2012, compared with $242.9 million for 2011. The
increase in net interest income during 2012 resulted from the increase in the size of the noncovered loan portfolio aswell as
lower rates paid on deposits. These increases were partially offset by lower incremental accretion on covered loans and lower
yields on the loan and securities portfolios. The incremental accretion income represents the amount of income recorded on the
acquired loans above the contractua rate stated in the individual loan rates. The additional income stems from the discount
established at the time these loan portfolios were acquired, and increases net interest income and the net interest margin. The
incremental accretion income had a positive impact of approximately 144 basis points on the 2012 net interest margin
compared to a positive impact of 174 basis points on the 2011 net interest margin.
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The following table shows the effect on the net interest income resulting from accretion of income on acquired impaired
loans and loans acquired in the Bank of Whitman transaction:

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

(in thousands)

Interestincomeasrecorded. ................... $ 98583 % 109,580
Interest income at stated noterate. .............. 37,406 42,220
Incremental accretionincome ............... $ 61,177 $ 67,360
Incremental accretion income due to:
Acquired impairedloans ................... $ 55305 $ 53,079
Other acquiredloans. .. .................... 5,872 14,281
Incremental accretionincome. . ................ $ 61,177 $ 67,360

For discussion over the methodol ogies used by management in recording interest income on loans please see " Critical
Accounting Policies" section of this discussion and Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statementsin “Item 8. Financia
Statements and Supplementary Data’ of this report.

Comparison of 2011 with 2010

Taxable-equivaent net interest income totaled $242.9 million in 2011, compared with $170.5 million for 2010. The
significant increase in net interest income during 2011 resulted primarily from income accretion on the acquired loan portfolios.
The incremental accretion income represents the amount of income recorded on the acquired |oans above the contractual rate
stated in the individual loan rates. The additional income increases net interest income and the net interest margin.

Provision for Loan and Lease Losses

The Company accounts for the credit risk associated with lending activities through its allowance for loan and lease
losses and provision for loan and lease losses. The provision is the expense recognized in the consolidated statements of income
to adjust the allowance to the levels deemed appropriate by management, as determined through its application of the
Company’s allowance methodology procedures. Impairment valuation adjustments and allowance for loan and |ease |osses on
acquired loans, including those subject to the Company’s | oss-share agreements with the FDIC, are accounted for separately
from the allowance for loan and lease losses. For discussion over the methodology used by management in determining the
adequacy of the ALLL see the following “ Allowance for Loan and L ease L osses and Unfunded Commitments and L etters of
Credit” and “Ciritical Accounting Policies’ sections of this discussion.

For noncovered loans, the Company recorded expense of $13.5 million and $7.4 million through the provision for loan
and lease losses in 2012 and 2011, respectively. The provision recorded in 2012 reflects management’s ongoing assessment of
the credit quality of the Company’s noncovered loan portfolio, which isimpacted by various economic trends, including the
slow recovery of the Pacific Northwest economy. Additional factors affecting the provision include credit quality migration,
size and composition of the loan portfolio and changes in the economic environment during the period. See “ Allowance for
Loan and Lease Losses and Unfunded Commitments and Letters of Credit” section of this discussion for further information on
factors considered by the Company in assessing the credit quality of the loan portfolio and establishing the allowance for loan
and |ease losses.

The Company recorded expense of $25.9 million through the provision for losses on covered loans in 2012 compared to a
recapture of $1.6 million through the provision for losses on covered loansin 2011. The provision recorded in 2012 was due to
incremental loan losses incurred in the current period which were in excess of those expected from the remeasurement of cash
flows during the prior period. These incremental |oan losses reduced expected future cash flows and, when discounted at
current yields, resulted in impairment. The $25.9 million in provision expenseis partialy offset by a $20.7 million favorable
adjustment to the change in FDIC loss-sharing asset.

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, net noncovered |oan charge-offs amounted to $14.3 million,
$15.4 million, and $33.8 million, respectively. Loans in the commercia business portfolio accounted for 60% of the 2012 net
charge-offs, while loans in the commercial and multifamily residential real estate portfolio accounted for 27% of the 2012 net
charge-offs compared to 35% and 21%, respectively, in 2011.
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Noninterest Income (L0ss)

The following table presents the significant components of noninterest income (loss) and the related dollar and
percentage change from period to period:

Years ended December 31,

$ % $ %
2012 Change Change 2011 Change Change 2010
(dollars in thousands)

Service charges and other fees. . . ... $29998 $ 3,366 13% $26632 $ 1934 8% $24,698
Gain on bank acquisitions, net of

1= — (1,830) (100)% 1,830 (7,988) (81)% 9,818
Merchant servicesfees............ 8,154 769 10 % 7,385 (117) 2% 7,502
Investment securities gains

(losses) ..o 3,733 6,549 (233)% (2,816) (2,874)  (4,955)% 58
Bank owned lifeinsurance (BOLI) . . 2,861 673 31 % 2,188 147 7% 2,041
Changein FDIC loss-sharing asset .. (24,467) 25,029 (51)%  (49,496) (54,404)  (1,108)% 4,908
Other ........ ..o, 6,779 1,785 36 % 4,994 1,238 33 % 3,756
Tota noninterestincome.......... $27,058 $ 36,341 (391)% $ (9,283) $ (62,064) (118)% $52,781

Comparison of 2012 with 2011

Theincrease in noninterest income from the prior year was primarily due to the decrease of $25.0 million in the change
inthe FDIC loss-sharing asset, the $6.5 million in additional investment securities gains, and the $3.4 million in additional
service charges and other fees. Theseincreases were partially offset by the net of tax gain on bank acquisition of $1.8 million
recorded in 2011, with no gain recorded in 2012.

The change in the FDIC loss-sharing asset recognizes the decreased amount that Columbia expects to collect from the
FDIC under the terms of its loss-sharing agreements. The Company remeasures contractual and expected cash flows of covered
loans on a quarterly basis. When the quarterly remeasurement resultsin an increase in expected future cash flows dueto a
decrease in expected credit losses the nonaccretable difference decreases and the accretable yield of the related loan pool is
increased and recognized as interest income over the life of the loan portfolio. As aresult of the improved expected cash flows,
the FDIC loss-sharing asset is reduced first by the amount of any impairment previously recorded and, second, by increased
amortization over the remaining life of the related loan portfolio. For additional information on the FDIC loss-sharing asset,
please see the “ Loss-sharing Asset” section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis and Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial
Statementsin “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data’ of this report.

The increase in investment securities gains was primarily due to the $3.0 million impairment charge recorded during
2011 on asingle municipal obligation for which we received full repayment during 2012, resulting in again of approximately
$3.0 million. The increase in service charges and other fees was primarily due to alarger customer base.
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Other Noninterest Income: The following table presents selected items of “other noninterest income” and the related
dollar and percentage change from period to period:

Years ended December 31,

$ % $ %
2012 Change Change 2011 (1) Change Change 2010 (1)
(dollars in thousands)

Gainondisposal of assets ................. $ 91 % 2 2% $ 8 $ (299 (25% $ 118
Mortgagebanking ....................... 1,226 497 68 % 729 460 171 % 269
Small Business Administration premiums. . . .. 607 556 1,090 % 51 (130) (72% 181
Cash management 12b-1fees............... 5 — — % 5 (6) (55)% 11
Letter of creditfees ...................... 392 (23 (6)% 415 ()] (4)% 432
Latecharges. ..., 457 95 26 % 362 (94) (2D)% 456
Currency exchangeincome ................ 364 18 5% 346 (14) (4% 360
New Markets Tax Credit dividend. .......... 2 (50) (96)% 52 19 (27% 71
Miscellaneousfeesonloans. ............... 1,854 180 11% 1,674 690 70 % 984
Interest rateswapincome. ................. 522 189 57 % 333 (95) (22)% 428
Creditcardfees. ...t 325 65 25 % 260 77 42 % 183
Miscellaneous. . ... 934 256 38 % 678 415 158 % 263
Total other noninterestincome.......... $6,779 $ 1,785 36% $4,994 $1,238 33% $3,756

(1) Reclassified to conform to the current period’s presentation.

Theincrease in other noninterest income was duein part to the increases in mortgage banking income and Small
Business Administration premiums. We have grown our mortgage services division and had increased volume in our mortgage
loan sales during 2012. During 2012, we had alarge increase in the volume of our Small Business Association loan sales.

Comparison of 2011 with 2010

Noninterest income for the year ended December 31, 2011 was aloss of $9.3 million, a decrease of $62.1 million from
2010. The decrease in noninterest income from the prior year was primarily due to the $54.4 million decrease in the changein
FDIC loss-sharing asset and the $3.0 million impairment charge on investment securities. In addition, in 2011 the Company
recorded a gain on bank acquisition of $1.8 million compared to a gain on acquisition of $9.8 million in the prior year. For
additional information on the FDIC loss-sharing asset, please see the “Loss-sharing Asset” section of Management'’s Discussion
and Analysis and Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statementsin “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data”
of thisreport.

Noninterest Expense

Noninterest expense was $162.9 million in 2012, an increase of $7.2 million, or 5%, over 2011. Noninterest expense
increased $18.6 million, or 14%, in 2011 over 2010.



The following table presents the significant components of noninterest expense and the related dollar and percentage
change from period to period:

Years ended December 31,

$ % $ %
2012 Change Change 2011 Change Change 2010
(dollars in thousands)
Compensation and employee benefits .... $ 85434 $ 3,882 5% $ 81552 $11,772 17% $ 69,780
All other noninterest expense:
OccupanCy . ....oovvvveienennn. 20,031 1,068 6% 18,963 2,149 13 % 16,814
Merchant processing . ............. 3,612 (86) (2)% 3,698 (666) (15)% 4,364
Advertising and promation . . ....... 3,650 (36) ()% 3,686 605 20 % 3,081
Dataprocessing.................. 9,714 1,230 14 % 8,484 (285) (3)% 8,769
Legal and professional services. . . ... 8,915 2,429 37 % 6,486 802 14 % 5,684
Taxes, licenseandfees ............ 4,736 290 7% 4,446 1,588 56 % 2,858
Regulatory premiums . ............ 3,384 (953) (22)% 4,337 (2,148) (33)% 6,485
Net cost of operation of noncovered
other real estateowned. .......... 4,766 (2,650) (36)% 7,416 1,721 30 % 5,695
Net benefit of operation of covered
other real estateowned. .......... (6,735) 1,703 (20)% (8,438) (3,530) 72 % (4,908)
Amortization of intangibles. . ....... 4,445 126 3% 4,319 397 10 % 3,922
FDIC clawback expense (recovery) .. (54) (3,710) (101)% 3,656 3,656 100 % —
Other ........ ..., 21,015 3,861 23% 17,154 2,551 17 % 14,603
Total all other noninterest
EXPENSE. .ttt 77,479 3,272 4% 74,207 6,840 10 % 67,367

Tota noninterest expense.. $162913 $ 7,154 5% $155,759 $18,612 14 % $ 137,147

Comparison of 2012 with 2011

Compensation and employee benefits expense increased to $85.4 million, or 5%, in 2012 from $81.6 million in 2011
reflecting afull year of staffing increases in the current year related to the three FDIC-assisted acquisitions that occurred in
2011.

The remaining noninterest expense categories increased $3.3 million, or 4%, between 2011 and 2012. The increase was
primarily due to the $2.4 million increasein legal and professional, which includes $1.8 million of costs related to the recently
announced acquisition of West Coast. Occupancy and data processing increased $1.1 million and $1.2 million due to the
increase in number of branch locationsin operation during 2012 compared to 2011. Though the period end humber of branches
decreased dlightly between 2011 and 2012, the number of branches in operation throughout the year was larger in 2012 due to
the three acquisitions that occurred in mid 2011. These increases were partially offset by areduction of $3.7 million in the
FDIC clawback expense. The Company's Purchase & Assumption agreements with the FDIC require the Company to
reimburse the FDIC at the conclusion of the loss share agreement period, February 2020 for the Columbia River Bank and
American Marine Bank transactions, a calculated amount if total losses on the acquired loan portfolios fail to reach aminimum
threshold level. The $3.7 million recorded in 2011 represented the net present value of management's clawback liability
estimate of $5.5 million at December 31, 2011. There has not been a material change in this estimate during 2012.
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Other Noninterest Expense: The following table presents sel ected items of “ other noninterest expense” and the related
dollar and percentage change from period to period:

Years ended December 31,

$ % $ %
2012 Change Change 2011 Change Change 2010
(dollars in thousands)

CRA partnership investment expense . .. . .. $ 609 $ 11 2% $ 598 $ 329 122% $ 269
Software support & maintenance. . ........ 1,574 212 16 % 1,362 305 29 % 1,057
Federal Reserve Bank processing fees. . . . .. 216 (118) (35)% 334 6 2% 328
Supplies . ... 1,132 (144) (11)% 1,276 a7y (12% 1,447
Postage. . ... 2,088 (43 (2)% 2,131 362 20 % 1,769
Sponsorships & charitable contributions. . . . 780 (343) (3% 1,123 359 47 % 764
Travel ... 1,368 120 10 % 1,248 286 30 % 962
Investorrelations . ..................... 178 4 2% 174 (6) 3% 180
INSUraNCe . ..o vt 1,030 194 23 % 836 55 7% 781
Director exXpenses. .. ...oovvii i 551 94 21 % 457 16 4% 441
Employeeexpenses . ................... 739 103 16 % 636 164 35 % 472
ATM Network ............cooiieinnn.. 1,131 73 7% 1,058 216 26 % 842
Miscellaneous. . ... 9,619 3,698 62 % 5,921 630 12 % 5,291

Total other noninterest expense. .. . .. .. $21,015 $ 3,861 23% $17,154 $2,551 17 % $14,603

Other noninterest expense increased $3.9 million primarily due to the increase of $3.7 million in miscellaneous
noninterest expense, which was primarily driven by $2.0 million recorded in other personal property ("OPPO") costsin 2012
compared to $1.1 million recorded in OPPO benefit in 2011.

Comparison of 2011 with 2010

Compensation and employee benefits expense increased to $81.6 million, or 17% in 2011 from $69.8 million in 2010
reflecting staffing increases in 2011 related to the three FDIC-assisted acquisitions. Full-time equivalent staff increased to 1,256
at December 31, 2011 from 1,092 at December 31, 2010.

The remaining noninterest expense categories increased $6.8 million, or 10%, between 2010 and 2011. Occupancy
increased $2.1 million due to the increase in branch locations during 2011. Also contributing to the remaining increase in
noninterest expense was the Company recording $3.7 million to FDIC clawback expense to create the FDIC clawback liability.
The remaining noninterest expense increase was partialy offset by a decrease in regulatory premiums of $2.1 million dueto a
decrease in the assessment rate utilized in cal culating premiums due.

Income Tax

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 we recorded income tax provisions of $17.6 million, $17.9
million and $2.3 million, respectively. The effective tax rate was 28% in 2012, 27% in 2011 and 7% in 2010. For additional
information, see Note 20 to the Consolidated Financial Statementsin “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data’
of thisreport. Our effective tax rate continues to be less than our federal statutory rate of 35% primarily due to the amount of
tax-exempt municipal securities held in the investment portfolio, tax-exempt earnings on bank owned life insurance, and tax
credits received on investments in affordable housing partnerships.
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Financial Condition

Our total assetsincreased 3% to $4.91 hillion at December 31, 2012 from $4.79 hillion at December 31, 2011. Interest-
earning deposits with banks increased $186.4 million as the Company accumulated cash in overnight funds in anticipation of
payment of the cash portion of the West Coast acquisition consideration. Our investment portfolio decreased $26.4 million or
3%. Though the net loan portfolio increased only 1% or $37.5 million to $2.86 billion, the noncovered loan portfolio increased
$177.3 million or 8%. The increase in the noncovered loan portfolio can be attributed to increases in commercial business loans
of $123.4 million and commercia and multifamily residential real estate loans of $63.0 million. The FDIC loss-sharing asset
decreased $78.7 million or 45% to $96.4 million at December 31, 2012. The decrease in the FDIC |oss-sharing asset was due to
$54.6 million in cash received from the FDIC as well as $42.9 million in amortization, partialy offset by $20.7 million in loan
impairment. Premises and equipment, net increased $10.8 million or 10%, as we purchased 6 branch buildings in 2012 that we
had previously leased nearby locations. Deposit balances increased $226.6 million or 6% to $4.04 billion and FHLB advances
decreased 94% to $6.6 million. The decrease in FHLB advancesis due to the early repayment of $106.4 million during the
fourth quarter of 2012.

Investment Portfolio

We invest in securities to generate revenues for the Company, to manage liquidity while minimizing interest rate risk and
to provide collateral for certain public deposits and short-term borrowings. The amortized cost amounts represent the
Company’s original cost for the investments, adjusted for accumulated amortization or accretion of any yield adjustments
related to the security. The estimated fair values are the amounts we believe the securities could be sold for as of the dates
indicated. As of December 31, 2012 we had 38 available for sale securities in an unrealized loss position. Based on past
experience with these types of securities and our own financial performance, we do not currently intend to sell any impaired
securities nor does available evidence suggest it is more likely than not that management will be required to sell any impaired
securities before the recovery of the amortized cost basis. We review these investments for other-than-temporary impairment on
an ongoing basis.

During the fourth quarter of 2012, the Company received full payment on a municipal bond that was determined to be
other-than-temporarily impaired during December 2011. The $2.95 million gain related to this security was recorded in the line
item Investment securities gains (losses), net in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Purchases during 2012 totaled $322.3 million while maturities, repayments and sales totaled $328.2 million compared to
purchases of $453.0 million and maturities, repayments and sales of $221.0 million during 2011. At December 31, 2012 U.S.
government agency and government-sponsored enterprise mortgage-backed securities (“MBS") and collateralized mortgage
obligations (“*CMO”) comprised 57% of our investment portfolio, state and municipal securities were 29%, government agency
and government-sponsored enterprise securities were 12%, and government securities were 2%. Our entire investment portfolio
is categorized as available for sale and carried on our balance sheet at fair value. The average duration of our investment
portfolio was approximately 3 years and 8 months at December 31, 2012.
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The following table presents the contractual maturities and weighted average yield of our investment portfolio:

December 31, 2012

Amortized Fair
Cost Value Yield

(dollars in thousands)

U.S. government agency and government-sponsored enterprise
mortgage-backed securities & collateralized mortgage obligations (1)

Over Lthrough Syears. .. ... e $ 18044 $ 18825 4.41%
Over 5through 10 years. . . ... ..o e 85,280 89,070 3.27%
OVEr L0 YBAIS. . .ottt e 457,752 464,474 2.60%
TOtaAl Lo $ 561076 $ 572,369 2.77%
State and municipal securities (2)
Duethrough Lyear. . ...t e $ 25063 $ 25440 6.14%
Over 1through S years. ... ..o e e 36,836 38,954 4.52%
Over 5through 10 Years. . . ..o vttt e i 56,953 59,917 4.82%
OVEr L0 YEAIS. . .ottt e e 146,218 161,264 6.22%
TOtaAl $ 265070 $ 285575 5.69%

U.S. government agency and government-sponsored enterprise
securities (1)

Over 1through Syears. ... ... o e $ 73091 $ 73925 0.84%

Over 5through 10 years. . . ... ..o i e 46,994 46,576 1.13%
Tt o $ 120,085 $ 120,501 0.96%

U.S. government securities (1)

Over 5through 10 Years. . . ..o oot et $ 19804 $ 19,828 1.15%
Tt o $ 19804 $ 19,828 1.15%

(1) The maturities reported for mortgage-backed securities, collateralized mortgage obligations, government agency,
government-sponsored enterprise, and government securities are based on contractual maturities and principal
amortization.

(2) Yieldson fully taxable equivalent basis, based on a marginal tax rate of 35%.

For further information on our investment portfolio see Note 3 of the Consolidated Financial Statementsin “Item 8.
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data’ of this report.

FHLB Stock

As a condition of membership in the Federal Home L oan Bank of Seattle (“FHLB"), the Company is required to
purchase and hold a certain amount of FHLB stock. Our stock purchase requirement is based, in part, upon the outstanding
principal balance of advances from the FHLB and is calculated in accordance with the Capital Plan of the FHLB. Our FHLB
stock has a par value of $100 and is redeemable at par for cash.

FHLB stock is carried at cost and is subject to recoverability testing per the Financial Services — Depository and Lending
topic of the FASB ASC. The FHLB is currently classified as adequately capitalized by the Federal Housing Finance Agency
(“Finance Agency”). Accordingly, as of December 31, 2012 we did not recognize an impairment charge related to our FHLB
stock holdings. We will continue to monitor the financial condition of the FHLB asit relates to, among other things, the
recoverability of our investment.
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Loan Portfolio

We are afull service commercial bank, which originates a wide variety of loans, and focusesits lending efforts on
originating commercial business and commercial real estate |oans. The following table sets forth our loan portfolio by type of
loan for the dates indicated:

December 31,

% of % of % of % of % of
2012 Total 2011 Total 2010 Total 2009 Total 2008 Total
(dollars in thousands)

Commercial business. ......... $1,155,158 457 % $1,031,721 439% $ 795369 415% $ 744,440 371% $ 810922 363%
Real estate:
One-to-four family residential. . . . 43,922 1.7 % 64,491 28% 49,383 26 % 63,364 31% 57,237 26%
Commercial and multifamily

residential ................. 1,061,201 420 % 998,165 425% 794,329 415% 856,260 42.6 % 862,595 386 %
Total redl estate. . ............. 1,105,123 437% 1,062,656 453 % 843,712 439 % 919,624 457 % 919,832 412 %
Real estate construction:
One-to-four family residential. . . . 50,602 20% 50,208 21% 67,961 35% 107,620 54 % 209,682 9.4 %
Commercial and multifamily

residential ................. 65,101 27 % 36,768 1.6 % 30,185 1.6 % 41,829 21% 81,176 36%
Total real estate construction. . . . . 115,703 47 % 86,976 37% 98,146 52 % 149,449 75% 290,858  13.0%
Consumer................... 157,493 6.2 % 183,235 7.8% 182,017 95 % 199,987 10.0 % 214,753 9.7 %
Subtotal .......... ...l 2533477 1003% 2,364,588  100.7% 1919244 1002% 2013500 1002% 2,236,365 100.2 %
Less deferred |oan fees and other . (7,767)  (03% (16217)  (0.7)% (3490)  (0.2% (4616)  (02% (4033)  (02%
Total loans not covered under

FDIC loss-share agreements,

net of deferredfees.......... 2525710 1000% 2348371 1000% 1915754 1000% 2,008,884 1000% 2232332 100.0 %
Loans covered under FDIC

loss-share agreements

Coveredloans. ........... 391,337 531,929 517,061 — —

Total loans, net (before

Allowance for Loan and

LeaselL0Sses) . ..oovvvnn. .. $2,917,047 $2,880,300 $2,432,815 $2,008,884 $2,232,332
Loansheldforsae ............ $ 2563 $ 2148 $ 754 $ — $ 1964

At December 31, 2012, total loans were $2.92 billion compared with $2.88 billion in the prior year, an increase of $36.7
million or 1%. The noncovered loan portfolio increased $177.3 million, or 8% from the previous year. Theincreasein the
noncovered loan portfolio was primarily due to increases in commercial business loans of $123.4 million and commercial and
multifamily residential real estate loans of $63.0 million. Net covered loans were $391.3 million at December 31, 2012
compared with $531.9 million in the prior year, a decrease of $140.6 million or 27%. Tota |oans represented 58% and 59% of
total assets at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Commercial Business Loans: Commercial business loans increased $123.4 million, or 12%, to $1.16 billion from year-
end 2011, representing 46% of total loans at year end. We are committed to providing competitive commercial lending in our
primary market areas. Management expects a continued focus within its commercial lending products and to emphasize, in
particular, relationship banking with businesses, and business owners.

Real Estate Loans: One-to-four family residential loans are secured by properties |ocated within our primary market
areas and, typically, have loan-to-value ratios of 80% or lower at origination. Our underwriting standards for commercial and
multifamily residential loans generally require that the loan-to-value ratio for these loans not exceed 75% of appraised value,
cost, or discounted cash flow value, as appropriate, and that commercial properties maintain debt coverage ratios (net operating
income divided by annual debt servicing) of 1.2 or better. However, underwriting standards can be influenced by competition
and other factors. We endeavor to maintain the highest practical underwriting standards while balancing the need to remain
competitive in our lending practices.

Real Estate Construction Loans: We originate avariety of real estate construction loans. Underwriting guidelines for
these loans vary by loan type but include loan-to-value limits, term limits and loan advance limits, as applicable.

Our underwriting guidelines for commercial and multifamily residential real estate construction loans generaly require
that the loan-to-value ratio not exceed 75% and stabilized debt coverage ratios (net operating income divided by annual debt
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servicing) of 1.2 or better. As noted above, underwriting standards can be influenced by competition and other factors.
However, we endeavor to maintain the highest practical underwriting standards while balancing the need to remain competitive
in our lending practices.

Consumer Loans: Consumer loans include automobile loans, boat and recreational vehicle financing, home equity and
home improvement loans and miscellaneous personal loans.

Foreign Loans: The Company has no materia foreign activities. Substantially all of the Company’s |oans and unfunded
commitments are geographically concentrated in its service areas within the states of Washington and Oregon.

Covered Loans: Covered loans are comprised of loans and loan commitments acquired in connection with the 2011
FDIC-assisted acquisitions of First Heritage Bank and Summit Bank, as well as the 2010 FDIC-assisted acquisitions of
Columbia River Bank and American Marine Bank. These loans are generically referred to as covered because they are
generally subject to one of the loss-sharing agreements between the Company and the FDIC. The loss-sharing agreements
relating to the 2010 FDIC-assisted transactions limit the Company’s losses to 20% of the contractual balance outstanding up to
astated threshold amount of $206.0 million for Columbia River Bank and $66.0 million for American Marine Bank. If losses
exceed the stated threshold, the Company’s share of the remaining losses decreases to 5%. The loss-sharing agreements
relating to the 2011 FDIC-assisted transactions limit the Company's losses to 20% of the contractual balance outstanding. The
loss-sharing provisions of the 2011 agreements for commercial and single family residential mortgage loans are in effect for
five years and ten years, respectively, from the acquisition dates and the loss recovery provisions for such loans are in effect for
eight years and ten years, respectively, from the acquisition dates.

Thefollowing tableisarollforward of acquired, impaired loans accounted for under ASC 310-30, Loans and Debt
Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Credit Quality for the year ended December 31, 2012:

Contractual Nonaccretable Accretable Carrying

Cash Flows Difference Yield Amount

(in thousands)

Balanceat January 1,2012................. $ 835556 $ (91,317) $ (259,669) $ 484,570
Principal reductions and interest payments . . . . (175,837) — — (175,837)
Accretion of loandiscount . ................ — — 86,671 86,671
Changesin contractual and expected cash flows

duetoremeasurement................... (73,483) 51,084 (6,746) (29,145)
Reductionduetoremovals. ................ (30,128) 2,862 12,856 (14,410)
Balance at December 31,2012.............. $ 556,108 $ (373711)) % (166,888) $ 351,849

For additional information on our loan portfolio, including amounts pledged as collateral on borrowings, see Note 4 and
Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statementsin “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data’ of this report.

Maturities and Sensitivities of Loans to Changes in Interest Rates

The following table presents the maturity distribution of our covered and noncovered commercial and real estate
construction loan portfolios and the sensitivity of these |oans due after one year to changesin interest rates as of December 31,
2012:

Maturing
Due Over 1
Through 1 Through 5 Over 5
Year Years Years Total
(in thousands)
Commercial business. . ...t $ 510,755 $ 296,309 $ 345385 $1,152,449
Real estateconstruction. . ...t 75,247 23,795 16,660 115,702
Total ..o $ 586,002 $ 320,104 $ 362,045 $1,268,151
Fixed rateloansdueafter Lyear .. .........ooueuuuenennn.. .......... $ 151557 $ 204688 $ 356,245
Variablerateloansdueafter Lyear. . ...t 168,547 157,357 325,904
Total . .o $ 320104 $ 362,045 $ 682,149




The extension of credit in the form of loans or other credit substitutes to individuals and businessesis one of our principal
commerce activities. Our policies, applicable laws, and regulations require risk analysis as well as ongoing portfolio and credit
management. We manage our credit risk through lending limit constraints, credit review, approval policies, and extensive,
ongoing internal monitoring. We also manage credit risk through diversification of the loan portfolio by type of loan, type of
industry, type of borrower, and by limiting the aggregation of debt to a single borrower.

In analyzing our existing portfolio, we review our consumer and residential loan portfolios by their performance as a pool
of loans, since no single loan isindividually significant or judged by itsrisk rating, size or potentia risk of loss. In contrast, the
monitoring process for the commercial business, real estate construction, and commercial real estate portfolios includes
periodic reviews of individual loans with risk ratings assigned to each |oan and performance judged on aloan by loan basis.

We review these |oans to assess the ability of our borrowersto service all interest and principal obligations and, as a
result, the risk rating may be adjusted accordingly. In the event that full collection of principal and interest is not reasonably
assured, the loan is appropriately downgraded and, if warranted, placed on nonaccrua status even though the loan may be
current as to principal and interest payments. Additionally, we assess whether an impairment of aloan warrants specific
reserves or awrite-down of the loan. For additional discussion on our methodology in managing credit risk within our loan
portfolio see the following “ Allowance for Loan and L ease L osses and Unfunded Commitments and L etters of Credit” section
and Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statementsin “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data’ of this report.

Loan policies, credit quality criteria, portfolio guidelines and other controls are established under the guidance of our
Chief Credit Officer and approved, as appropriate, by the Board. Credit Administration, together with the management loan
committee, has the responsibility for administering the credit approval process. As another part of its control process, we use an
independent internal credit review and examination function to provide reasonable assurance that loans and commitments are
made and maintained as prescribed by our credit policies. Thisincludes areview of documentation when the loan isinitialy
extended and subsequent on-site examination to ensure continued performance and proper risk assessment.

Nonperforming Loans: The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared according to the accrual basis of accounting.
This includes the recognition of interest income on the loan portfolio, unless aloan is placed on nonaccrua status, which
occurs when there are serious doubts about the collectability of principal or interest. Our policy is generally to discontinue the
accrual of interest on all loans past due 90 days or more and place them on nonaccrua status. Covered loans accounted for
under ASC 310-30 are generally considered accruing and performing as the loans accrete interest income over the estimated
lives of the loans when cash flows are reasonably estimable. Accordingly, covered impaired loans contractually past due are
till considered to be accruing and performing loans.

Nonperforming Assets: Nonperforming assets consist of: (i) nonaccrual loans, which generally are loans placed on a
nonaccrual basis when the loan becomes past due 90 days or when there are otherwise serious doubts about the collectability of
principal or interest within the existing terms of the loan; (ii) in most cases restructured loans, for which concessions, including
the reduction of interest rates below arate otherwise available to that borrower or the deferral of interest or principal, have been
granted due to the borrower’s weakened financial condition (interest on restructured loans is accrued at the restructured rates
when it is anticipated that no loss of original principal will occur); (iii) other real estate owned; and (iv) other personal property
owned, if applicable. Nonperforming assets totaled $48.5 million, or 1.08% of year-end assets at December 31, 2012, compared
to $85.4 million, or 2.02% of year end assets at December 31, 2011.
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The following table sets forth information with respect to our noncovered, nonperforming loans, other real estate owned,
other personal property owned, total nonperforming assets, accruing loans past-due 90 days or more, and potential problem
loans:

December 31,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(dollars in thousands)

Nonaccrual:
Commercial business. . ...................... $ 9,299 $ 10,243 $ 32,367 $ 18,979 $ 2976
Real estate:
One-to-four family residential ............. 2,349 2,696 2,996 1,860 905
Commercial and multifamily residential. . . . .. 19,204 19,485 23,192 24,354 5,710
Real estate construction:
One-to-four family residential ............. 4,900 10,785 18,004 47,653 69,668
Commercial and multifamily residential. . . ... — 7,067 7,584 16,230 25,752
CONSUMEY .. oot 1,643 3,207 5,020 1,355 1,152
Total nonaccrual loans: . .................. 37,395 53,483 89,163 110,431 106,163
Noncovered real estate owned and other personal
propertyowned . ... 11,108 31,905 30,991 19,037 2,874
Total nonperforming assets. .. ............. $48503 $85388  $120,154  $129468  $ 109,037
Accruing loans past-due 90 daysor more. . .......... $ — $ — $ — & — & —
Forgone interest on nonperforming loans. ........... $ 3,388 $ 5,326 $ 6,389 $ 7,637 $ 4,072
Interest recognized on nonperforming loans. . ........ $ 1114 $ 1017 $ 2035 $ 2437 $ 4,550
Potential problemloans.......................... $ 5915 $ 10,618 $ 3,793 $ 11,423 $ 17,736
Allowancefor loanand leaselosses . ............... $52244  $53041 $ 60993 $ 53478 $ 42,747
Allowance for loan and |ease losses to
nonperformingloans .......................... 139.71% 99.17% 68.41% 48.43% 40.27%
Nonperforming loanstoyearendloans. . ............ 1.48% 2.28% 4.65% 5.50% 4.76%
Nonperforming assetsto year end assets. .. .......... 1.08% 2.02% 3.23% 4.04% 3.52%

At December 31, 2012 nonperforming loans decreased to 1.48% of year end loans, down from 2.28% of year end loans at
December 31, 2011. Nonperforming commercia business |oans declined from $10.2 million, or 19% of nonperforming loans at
December 31, 2011 to $9.3 million or 25% of nonperforming loans at year end 2012. The nonperforming residential
construction loan sector declined to $4.9 million during 2012, down from $10.8 million, or 20% of nonperforming loans at
December 31, 2011. Nonperforming commercial real estate loans improved as well, declining from $26.6 million at
December 31, 2011 to $19.2 million at year end 2012.

Other Real Estate Owned: As of December 31, 2012 there was $10.7 million in noncovered other real estate owned
(“*OREQ") which is comprised of property from foreclosed real estate loans, a decrease of $12.2 million from $22.9 million at
December 31, 2011. Additionally, as of December 31, 2012 the Company held $16.3 million in OREO covered under FDIC
loss-sharing agreements which are excluded from nonperforming assets. Properties acquired by foreclosure or deed in lieu of
foreclosure are transferred to OREO and are recorded at fair value less estimated costs to sell, at the date of transfer of the
property. If the carrying value exceeds the fair value at the time of the transfer, the difference is charged to the allowance for
loan and lease losses. The fair value of the OREO property is based upon current appraisal. Subsequent |osses that result from
the ongoing periodic valuation of these properties are charged to the net cost of operation of OREO expense in the period in
which they are identified. In general, improvements to the OREO are capitalized and holding costs are charged to the net cost
of operation of OREO as incurred.

Potential Problem Loans: Potential problem loans are loans which are currently performing and are not on nonaccrual
status, restructured or impaired, but about which there are significant doubts asto the borrower’s future ability to comply with
repayment terms and which may later be included in nonaccrual, past due, restructured or impaired loans. Potential problem
loans totaled $5.9 million at year end 2012, compared to $10.6 million at year end 2011.
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The following table summarizes activity in noncovered, nonperforming loans for the period indicated:

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011
(in thousands)

Balance, beginning of period. . ............ ... $ 53483 $ 89,163
Loans placed on nonaccrual or restructured. .. .................. 32,325 34,747
AGVANCES . ..ot 827 1,687
Charge-offs. . ..o (12,572) (15,207)
Loansreturnedtoaccrual status. . . ... oo i (6,700) (7,840)
Repayments (including interest applied to principal) ............. (23,452) (26,168)
Transfersto OREO/OPPO . . . . ... . oo (6,516) (22,999)

Balance, endof period. . ........... . $ 37,395 % 53,483

Loans are considered impaired when based on current information and events, it is probable that the Company will be
unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement or when aloan has been modified in
atroubled debt restructuring. A loan is classified as a troubled debt restructuring when a borrower is experiencing financia
difficulties that lead to arestructuring of the loan, and the Company grants concessions to the borrower in the restructuring that
it would not otherwise consider. These concessions may include interest rate reductions, principal forgiveness, extension of
maturity date and other actions intended to minimize potential losses. Generally, anonaccrual loan that is restructured remains
on nonaccrua status for a period of six months to demonstrate that the borrower can meet the restructured terms. If the
borrower's performance under the new terms is not reasonably assured, the loan remains classified as a nonaccrual loan.

The assessment for impairment occurs when and while such loans are designated as classified per the Company’s internal
risk rating system or when and while such loans are on nonaccrual. All nonaccrual loans greater than $500,000 are considered
impaired and analyzed individually on a quarterly basis. Classified loans with an outstanding balance greater than $500,000 are
evaluated for potential impairment on a quarterly basis. The Company’s policy isto record cash receipts on impaired loans first
asreductionsin principal and then asinterest income.

The following table summarizes noncovered, impaired loan financial data at December 31, 2012 and 2011:

December 31,

2012 2011

(in thousands)
Impaired l0ans. .. ... $ 34661 $ 58,288
Impaired loans with specificalocations. . ......................... $ 4405 $ 5,226

Amount of the specificallocations .. ........... ... .. ... L. $ 1395 % 1,484

Impaired loans with a carrying amount of $34.7 million at December 31, 2012 were subject to specific allocations of
allowance for loan and lease losses of $1.4 million and partial charge-offs of $3.1 million during the year. Collateral dependent
impaired loans without specific allocations at December 31, 2012 and 2011 either had collateral which exceeded the carrying
value of the loans or reflected a partial charge-off to the market value of collateral (less coststo sell), as of the most recent

appraisal date. Restructured loans accruing interest totaled $8.5 million and $8.4 million at December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

When aloan with unique risk characteristics has been identified as being impaired, the amount of impairment will be
measured by the Company using discounted cash flows, except when it is determined that the primary (remaining) source of
repayment for the loan is the operation or liquidation of the underlying collateral. In these cases, the current fair value of the
collateral, reduced by coststo sell, will be used in place of discounted cash flows. As afinal aternative, the observable market
price of the debt may be used to assess impairment. Predominately, the Company uses the fair value of collateral approach
based upon areliable valuation.

When aloan secured by real estate migrates to nonperforming and impaired status and it does not have a market
valuation less than one year old, the Company secures an updated market valuation by athird-party appraiser that is reviewed
by the Company’s on-staff appraiser. Subsequently, the asset will be appraised annually by athird-party appraiser or the
Company’s on-staff appraiser. The evaluation may occur more frequently if management determines that there has been
increased market deterioration within a specific geographical location. Upon receipt and verification of the market valuation,
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the Company will record the loan at the lower of cost or market (less costs to sell) by recording a charge-off to the allowance
for loan and |lease losses or by designating a specific reserve in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States.

For additional information on our nonperforming loans see Note 5 to our Consolidated Financial Statementsin “Item 8.
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data’ of this report.

Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses and Unfunded Commitments and Letters of Credit

We maintain an alowance for loan and lease losses (“ALLL") to absorb losses inherent in the loan portfolio. The size of
the ALLL is determined through quarterly assessments of the probable estimated losses in the loan portfolio. Our methodology
for making such assessments and determining the adequacy of the ALLL includes the following key elements:

1. General valuation allowance consistent with the Contingencies topic of the FASB ASC.

2. Classified loss reserves on specific relationships. Specific allowances for identified problem loans are determined in
accordance with the Receivables topic of the FASB ASC.

3. The unallocated allowance provides for other credit losses inherent in our loan portfolio that may not have been
contemplated in the general and specific components of the allowance. This unallocated amount generally comprises
less than 5% of the allowance. The unallocated amount is reviewed periodically based on trends in credit losses, the
results of credit reviews and overall economic trends.

On aquarterly basis our Chief Credit Officer reviews with Executive Management and the Board of Directors the various
additional factors that management considers when determining the adequacy of the ALLL, including economic and business
condition reviews. Factors which influenced management’s judgment in determining the amount of the additionsto the ALLL
charged to operating expense include the following as of the applicable balance sheet dates:

» Existing general economic and business conditions affecting our market place
e Credit quality trends

» Historical loss experience

* Seasoning of the loan portfolio

» Bank regulatory examination results

» Findings of internal credit examiners

« Duration of current business cycle

» Specific loss estimates for problem loans

TheALLL isincreased by provisions for loan and lease losses (“ provision”) charged to expense, and is reduced by loans
charged off, net of recoveries. While we believe the best information available is used by us to determinethe ALLL, changesin
market conditions could result in adjustments to the ALLL, affecting net income, if circumstances differ from the assumptions
used in determining the ALLL.

In addition to the ALLL, we maintain an allowance for unfunded commitments and letters of credit. We report this
allowance as aliability on our Consolidated Balance Sheet. We determine this amount using estimates of the probability of the
ultimate funding and losses related to those credit exposures. This methodology is similar to the methodology we use for
determining the adequacy of our ALLL. For additional information on our alowance for unfunded commitments and | etters of
credit, see Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statementsin “ltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this

report.



Analysis of the ALLL
The following table provides an analysis of our noncovered |oan loss experience by |oan type for the last five years:

Changes in Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses and
Unfunded Commitments and Letters of Credit

December 31,

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(dollars in thousands)
Beginningbalance. . ..............o i, $ 53041 $ 60,993 $ 53478 $ 42,747 $ 26,599
Charge-offs:
Commercial business . .................... (10,173) (7,909) (24,879) (12,930) (2,819)
Real estate:
One-to-four family residential .......... (549) (717) (406) (395) (46)
Commercial and multifamily residentia . . (5,474) (3,687) (6,173) (1,309) (966)
Real estate construction:
One-to-four family residential .......... (1,606) (2,487) (10,856) (27,7112) (18,340)
Commercial and multifamily residentia . . (93) (2,213) (3,107) (9,297) (2,169)
CONSUMEN ..o (2,534) (3,918) (3,982) (2,879) (1,647)
Total charge-offs..................... (20,429) (20,931) (39,403) (54,521) (25,987)
Recoveries:
Commercia business ..................... 1,548 2,598 2,389 750 272
Real estate:
One-to-four family residential .......... 285 80 15 68 —
Commercia and multifamily residential . . 1,599 459 125 25 304
Real estate construction:
One-to-four family residential .......... 1,488 2,091 1,673 833 16
Commercia and multifamily residential .. 66 — 775 — —
CONSUMEY . ..ottt e 1,171 351 650 76 367
Total recoveries. .. ..., 6,157 5,579 5,627 1,752 959
Net charge-offs. . ............... (14,272) (15,352) (33,776) (52,769) (25,028)
Provision for loan and leaselosses. .. ............ 13,475 7,400 41,291 63,500 41,176
Endingbalance................. .. il $ 52,244 $ 53,041 $ 60,993 $ 53478 $ 42,747
Loans outstanding at end of period (1)............ $2525710  $2,348371  $1,915754  $2008,884  $2232332
Average amount of loans outstanding (1).......... $2,411,493 $2,065,014 $2,102,863 $2,124,574 $ 2,264,486
Allowance for loan and lease losses to period-end
l0aNS . ..o 2.07% 2.26% 3.18% 2.66% 1.91%
Net charge-offsto average loansoutstanding. . .....  059%  0.74%  161%  248%  111%
Allowance for unfunded commitments and - Y
letters of credit
Beginningbalance. . ......... ... $ 1,535 $ 1,165 $ 775 $ 500 $ 349
Net changes in the allowance for unfunded
commitments and lettersof credit. . ............ 380 370 390 275 151
Endingbalance............ ... ... .. .. $ 1,915 $ 1,535 $ 1,165 $ 775 $ 500

(1) Excludesloans held for sale and covered loans.



We have used the same methodology for ALLL calculations during 2012, 2011 and 2010. Adjustments to the percentages
of the ALLL allocated to loan categories are made based on trends with respect to delinquencies and problem loans within each
loan class. The Bank reviews the ALLL quantitative and qualitative methodology on a quarterly basis and makes adjustments
when appropriate. The Bank maintains a conservative approach to credit quality and will continue to prudently add to our
ALLL asnecessary in order to maintain adeguate reserves. The Bank carefully monitors the loan portfolio and continues to
emphasize the importance of credit quality while continuously strengthening loan monitoring systems and controls.

Allocation of the ALLL
The table below sets forth the allocation of the ALLL by loan category:

December 31,

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
% of % of % of % of % of
Balance at End of Total Total Total Total Total
Period Applicable to: Amount  Loans*  Amount Loans* Amount Loans* Amount Loans*  Amount Loans*
(dollars in thousands)
Commercial business. . . ..... $ 28,023 456% $ 25434 439% $ 22,549 415% $ 21,969 37.1% $ 12,759 36.3%
Real estate and
construction: .. ..........
One-to-four family
residential . ......... 2,500 3.7% 3,849 4.9% 7,161 6.1% 9,087 8.5% 16,781 12.0%
Commercial and
multifamily
residential . .........
18,273 44.5% 20,345 43.4% 25,880 42.8% 19,703 44.4% 11,983 42.1%
Consumer. ................ 2,437 6.2% 2,719 7.8% 2,120 9.5% 1,282 10.0% 935 9.6%
Unallocated . .............. 1,011 —% 694 —% 3,283 —% 1,437 —% 289 —%

Total..................... $ 52,244 100.0% $ 53,041 100.0% $ 60,993 100.0% $ 53,478 100.0% $ 42,747 100.0%

*  Represents the total of al outstanding loans in each category as a percent of total loans outstanding.

FDIC Loss-sharing Asset

The Company has elected to account for amounts receivable under loss-sharing agreements with the FDIC as an
indemnification asset in accordance with the Business Combinations topic of the FASB ASC. The FDIC indemnification asset
isinitialy recorded at fair value, based on the discounted expected future cash flows under the loss-sharing agreements.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the FDIC indemnification asset is reviewed quarterly and adjusted for any changesin
expected cash flows. These adjustments are measured on the same basis as the related covered loans. Any decrease in expected
cash flows on the covered loans due to an increase in expected credit losses will increase the FDIC indemnification asset and
any increase in expected future cash flows on the covered loans due to a decrease in expected credit losses will decrease the
FDIC indemnification asset. Changes in the estimated cash flows on covered assets that are immediately recognized in income
generaly result in asimilar immediate adjustment to the loss-sharing asset while changes in expected cash flows on covered
assets that are accounted for as an adjustment to yield generally result in adjustments to the amortization or accretion rate for
the loss-sharing asset. Increases and decreases to the FDIC loss-sharing asset are recorded as adjustments to noninterest
income.

At December 31, 2012, the FDIC loss-sharing asset was $96.4 million which was comprised of a $87.8 million FDIC
indemnification asset and a $8.6 million FDIC receivable. The FDIC receivable represents amounts due from the FDIC for
claimsrelated to covered losses the Company has incurred less amounts due back to the FDIC relating to shared recoveries.
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The following table summarizes the activity related to the FDIC loss-sharing asset for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011:

Year Ended

December 31,

2012 2011
(in thousands)
Balance at beginning of period ....................... $ 175071 % 205,991
Adjustments not reflected in income:
Established through acquisitions. . .................. — 68,734
Cashreceived fromtheFDIC .. .................... (54,649) (54,200)
FDIC reimbursablelosses, net ..................... 399 4,042
Adjustments reflected in income:
Amortization, net ........... ... (42,940) (46,049)
Loanimpairment (recapture). ...................... 20,714 (1,318)
Saleof otherredl estate. ........... ... ... ... . ..., (7,789) (4,346)
Write-downs of other real estate. . .................. 5,190 1,474
Other ... 358 743
Balanceatendof period ................ ... . ........ $ 96,354 $ 175,071

For additional information on the FDIC loss-sharing asset, please see Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statementsin
“Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this report.

Deposits
The following table sets forth the composition of the Company’s deposits by significant category:

December 31,
2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)

Core deposits:

Demand and other noninterest-bearing. ........................... $1,321,171 $1,156610 $ 895671
Interest-bearingdemand .. .......... ... 870,821 735,340 672,307
Money market. . ... ... 1,043,459 1,031,664 920,831
SAVINGS . . ettt 314,371 283,416 210,995
Certificates of deposit lessthan $100,000 ..............ccoinn.... 252,544 303,405 298,678

Total Coredeposits. . . ..o oot 3,802,366 3,510,435 2,998,482
Certificates of deposit greater than $100,000. . .......... ...t 212,924 262,731 266,708
Certificates of deposit insured through CDARS® .. ................. 26,720 42,080 38,312
Wholesale certificatesof deposit . ... — — 23,155
Subtotal . ... 4,042,010 3,815,246 3,326,657

Premium resulting from acquisition date fair value adjustment . . . . . 75 283 612
Total depoSitS . ..o $4042085 $3815529 $ 3,327,269

Depositstotaled $4.04 billion at December 31, 2012 compared to $3.82 hillion at December 31, 2011. Core deposits,
which include noninterest-bearing deposits and interest-bearing deposits excluding time deposits of $100,000 and over, provide
astable source of low cost funding. Core deposits increased to $3.80 billion at December 31, 2012 compared with $3.51 billion
at December 31, 2011. We anticipate continued growth in our core deposits through both the addition of new customers and our
current client base.

At December 31, 2012 brokered and other wholesal e deposits (excluding public deposits) totaled $26.7 million or 1% of
total deposits compared to $42.1 million or 1% of total deposits, at year-end 2011. The decrease in brokered depositsis
attributed to a decrease in participation in the Certificate of Deposit Account Registry Service (“CDARS®”) program. CDARS”
isanetwork that allows participating banks to offer extended FDIC deposit insurance coverage on certificates of deposit.
Unlike traditional brokered deposits, the Company generally makes CDARS® available only to existing customers who desire
additional deposit insurance coverage rather than as a means of generating additional liquidity.
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At December 31, 2012 public deposits held by the Company totaled $297.8 million compared to $229.5 million at
December 31, 2011. Uninsured public deposit balances increased from $179.5 million at December 31, 2011 to $232.7 million
at December 31, 2012. The Company is required to fully collateralize Washington state public deposits and 50% of Oregon
state public deposits.

The following table sets forth the amount outstanding of time certificates of deposit and other time deposits in amounts of
$100,000 or more by time remaining until maturity and percentage of total deposits:

December 31, 2012

Time Certificates of Deposit Other Time Deposits of
of $100,000 or More $100,000 or More
Percent of Percent of
Total Total
Amounts maturing in: Amount Deposits Amount Deposits
(dollars in thousands)

Threemonthsorless......... ... i, $ 61,585 15% $ 21,767 0.5%
Over 3through6months ............................... 47,559 1.2% 805 —%
Over 6through 12months . .............. ... ... ... ..... 48,518 1.2% 3,275 0.1%
Over12months. . ...t 55,262 1.4% — —%
Total . .o $ 212,924 53% $ 25847 0.6%

Other time deposits of $100,000 or more set forth in the table above represent CDARS®. We use CDARS®, brokered and
other wholesale deposits as part of our strategy for funding growth. In the future, we anticipate continuing the use of such
deposits to fund loan demand or treasury functions.

The following table sets forth the average amount of and the average rate paid on each significant deposit category:

Years ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Average Average Average
Deposits Rate Deposits Rate Deposits Rate
(dollars in thousands)
Interest bearingdemand ................ $ 790,887 011% $ 704,484 020% $ 637,983 0.34%
Moneymarket .............. ... ....... 1,051,171 0.16% 969,548 0.40% 851,673 0.66%
SAVINGS ..o 298,223 0.03% 247,073 0.06% 199,117 0.14%
Certificatesof deposit .. ................ 543,349 0.60% 636,074 0.80% 763,829 1.14%
Total interest-bearing deposits. ... ........ 2,683,630 0.22% 2,557,179 0.41% 2,452,602 0.68%
Demand and other non-interest bearing . . . . 1,192,036 984,220 818,321
Total averagedeposits . . ............ $ 3,875,666 $ 3,541,399 $ 3,270,923

Borrowings

Borrowed funds provide an additional source of funding for loan growth. Our borrowed funds consist primarily of
borrowings from the Federal Home Loan (“FHLB") and Federal Reserve Bank (“FRB”) aswell as securities repurchase
agreements. FHLB and FRB borrowings are secured by our loan portfolio and investment securities. Securities repurchase
agreements are secured by investment securities and commercial loans.



The Company has not had FRB borrowingsin the last three years. The following table sets forth the details of FHLB
advances:

Years ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010
(dollars in thousands)

FHLB Advances

Baanceatendof year ....... ... $ 664 $ 119,009 $ 119,405
Averagebalanceduringtheyear ......... ... ... i $ 100,337 $ 120,419 $ 123,685
Maximum month-end balance duringtheyear ......................... $ 118,967 $ 127,426 $ 154,916
Weighted averagerateduringtheyear. . ........ ... .. i 2.79% 2.76% 2.75%
Weighted averagerateat December 31 . ...t 5.42% 2.81% 2.81%

For additional information on our borrowings, including amounts pledged as collateral, see Notes 11 and 12 to the
Consolidated Financial Statementsin “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this report.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In the normal course of business, the Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk. These
financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit. These instrumentsinvolve, to varying
degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount reflected in the consolidated balance sheets.

Exposure to credit lossin the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument for commitments to
extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual notional amount of those instruments. The Company
uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations asit does for on-balance sheet instruments.
The Company evaluates each client's creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a client aslong as there is no violation of any condition
established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require
payment of afee. Since aportion of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment
amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements.

The Company had off-balance sheet loan commitments aggregating $888.5 million at December 31, 2012, an increase
from $709.9 million at December 31, 2011. Standby letters of credit were $19.5 million and $30.9 million at December 31,
2012 and 2011, respectively. In addition, commitments under commercial letters of credit used to facilitate customers' trade
transactions amounted to $46 thousand and $243 thousand at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Contractual Obligations & Commitments

We are party to many contractual financia obligations, including repayment of borrowings, operating and equipment
lease payments, and commitments to extend credit. The table below presents certain future financia obligations of the
Company:

Payments due within time period at December 31, 2012

Due after
0-12 1-3 4-5 Five
Months Years Years Years Total
(in thousands)
Operating & equipment leases. . .......... $ 4309 $ 7472 $ 3500 $ 7329 $ 22610
Total deposits™®™ . ......... ... 3,928,679 86,175 26,879 352 4,042,085
Federal Home Loan Bank advances®. . . . .. — — — 6,000 6,000
Other borrowings® . ................... — — — 25,000 25,000
Total. ... $3932988 $ 93647 $ 30379 $ 38681 $ 4,095,695

(1) In the banking industry, interest-bearing obligations are principally used to fund interest-earning assets. As such, interest
charges on contractual obligations were excluded from reported amounts, as the potential cash outflows would have
corresponding cash inflows from interest-earning assets.

For additional information regarding future financial commitments, see Note 15 to our Consolidated Financial Statements
in“Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this report.
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Liquidity and Sources of Funds

In general, our primary sources of funds are net income, loan repayments, maturities and principal payments on
investment securities, customer deposits, advances from the FHLB, securities repurchase agreements and other borrowings.
These funds are used to make loans, purchase investments, meet deposit withdrawals and maturing liabilities and cover
operational expenses. Scheduled loan repayments and core deposits have proved to be arelatively stable source of funds while
other deposit inflows and unscheduled loan prepayments are influenced by interest rate levels, competition and general
economic conditions. We manage liquidity through monitoring sources and uses of funds on a daily basis and had unused credit
lines with the FHLB and the Federal Reserve Bank of $435.2 million and $59.5 million, respectively, at December 31, 2012,
that are available to us as a supplemental funding source. The holding company’s sources of funds are dividends from its
banking subsidiary which are used to fund dividends to shareholders and cover operating expenses.

Capital

Our shareholders’ equity increased to $764.0 million at December 31, 2012, from $759.3 million at December 31, 2011.
Shareholders’ equity was 15.57% and 15.87% of total assets at December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Regulatory Capital. Banking regulations require bank holding companies to maintain a minimum “leverage” ratio of core
capital to adjusted quarterly average total assets of at least 3%. In addition, banking regulators have adopted risk-based capital
guidelines, under which risk percentages are assigned to various categories of assets and off-balance sheet itemsto calculate a
risk-adjusted capital ratio. Tier | capital generally consists of common shareholders’ equity, less goodwill and certain
identifiable intangible assets, while Tier |1 capital includes the allowance for loan losses, subject to certain limitations.
Regulatory minimum risk-based capital guidelines require Tier | capital of 4% of risk-adjusted assets and total capital
(combined Tier | and Tier 11) of 8% to be considered “adequately capitalized”.

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation regulations set forth the qualifications necessary for a bank to be classified as
“well capitalized”, primarily for assignment of FDIC insurance premium rates. To qualify as “well capitalized,” banks must
have aTier | risk-adjusted capital ratio of at |east 6%, atotal risk-adjusted capital ratio of at least 10%, and aleverage ratio of at
least 5%. Failure to qualify as“well capitalized” can negatively impact a bank’s ability to expand and to engage in certain
activities. The Company and its banking subsidiary qualified as “well-capitalized” at December 31, 2012 and 2011.

The following table sets forth the Company’s and its banking subsidiary’s capital ratios at December 31, 2012 and
2011:

Company Columbia Bank Requirements
Adequately Well-
2012 2011 2012 2011 capitalized Capitalized
Total risk-based capital ratio . ......... 20.62% 21.05% 17.87% 18.55% 8% 10%
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio. ......... 19.35% 19.79% 16.60% 17.29% 4% 6%
Leverageratio...................... 12.78% 12.96% 11.07% 11.45% 4% 5%

Stock Repurchase Program

In October 2011, the Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program authorizing the Company to repurchase up
to 2 million shares of its outstanding shares of common stock. The Company may purchase the shares from time to time in the
open market or in private transactions, under conditions which allow such repurchases to be accretive to earnings per share
while maintaining capital ratios that exceed the guidelines for awell-capitalized financial institution. This repurchase program
supersedes and replaces the prior stock repurchase program adopted in February 2002.
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Dividends

The following table sets forth the dividends paid per common share and the dividend payout ratio (dividends paid per
common share divided by basic earnings per share):

Years ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010

Dividends paid per commonshare. . ... ... $ 0.98 $ 0.27 $ 0.04
Dividend payout ratio (1) . ...« oo v oo 84% 22% 6%

(1) Dividends paid per common share as a percentage of earnings per diluted common share

For quarterly detail of dividends declared during 2012 and 2011, including special one-time dividends declared, see “ltem
5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and I ssuer Purchases of Equity Securities’ of this
report.

Subsequent to year end, on January 24, 2013 the Company declared aregular quarterly cash dividend of $0.10 per share
payable on February 20, 2013, to shareholders of record at the close of business on February 6, 2013.

Applicable federal, Washington state and Oregon state regulations restrict capital distributions, including dividends, by
the Company’s banking subsidiary. Such restrictions are tied to the institution’s capital levels after giving effect to distributions.
Our ability to pay cash dividendsis substantially dependent upon receipt of dividends from our banking subsidiary. In addition,
the payment of cash dividendsis subject to Federal regulatory requirements for capital levels and other restrictions. In this
regard, current guidance from the Federal Reserve provides, among other things, that dividends per share on the Company’s
common stock generally should not exceed earnings per share, measured over the previous four fiscal quarters.

Reference “ Item 6. Selected Financial Data” of this report for our return on average assets, return on average equity and
average equity to average assets ratios for all reported periods.
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Non-GAAP Financial Measures

In addition to capital ratios defined by banking regulators, the Company considers various measures when evaluating
capital utilization and adequacy, including:
e Tangible common equity to tangible assets, and
e Tangible common equity to risk-weighted assets.

The Company believes these measures are important because they reflect the level of capital available to withstand
unexpected market conditions. Additionally, presentation of these measures allows readers to compare certain aspects of the
Company’s capitalization to other organizations. These ratios differ from capital measures defined by banking regulators
principally in that the numerator excludes shareholders’ equity associated with preferred securities, the nature and extent of
which varies across organizations. Additionally, these measures present capital adequacy inclusive and exclusive of
accumulated other comprehensive income. These calculations are intended to complement the capital ratios defined by banking
regulators for both absolute and comparative purposes.

Because generally accepted accounting principlesin the United States of America (“GAAP”) do not include capital ratio
measures, the Company believes there are no comparable GAAP financial measures to these tangible common equity ratios.
The following table reconciles the Company’s cal culation of these measures to amounts reported under GAAP.

Despite the importance of these measures to the Company, there are no standardized definitions for them and, as a result,
the Company’s calculations may not be comparable with other organizations. Also, there may be limits in the usefulness of
these measures to investors. As aresult, the Company encourages readers to consider its consolidated financial statementsin
their entirety and not to rely on any single financial measure.

December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
(dollars in thousands)
Shareholders equity ...t $ 764,008 $ 759,338
GoOOWIll . .\ (115,554) (115,554)
Coredepositintangible .. ....... ... . (15,721) (20,166)
Tangiblecommonequity (@). . . ......ovivvi i 632,733 623,618
TOtAl BSOS . o vt t 4,906,335 4,785,945
GooOWIll . .. (115,554) (115,554)
Coredepositintangible . .............co i (15,721) (20,166)
Tangibleassets (D) . ... oo $ 4,775,060 $ 4,650,225
Risk-weighted assets, determined in accordance with prescribed
regulatory requirements (C). . . ..o v v viie i $ 3,165,528 $ 3,024,442
Ratios
Tangible common equity to tangibleassets (@)/(b) . .. ................ 13.25% 13.41%
Tangible common equity to risk-weighted assets (a)/(C). .. ............ 19.99% 20.62%
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Interest Rate Sensitivity

We are exposed to interest rate risk, which isthe risk that changesin prevailing interest rates will adversely affect assets,
liabilities, capital, income and expenses at different times or in different amounts. Generally, there are four sources of interest
rate risk as described below:

Repricing risk—Repricing risk isthe risk of adverse consequences from a change in interest rates that arises
because of differences in the timing of when those interest rate changes affect an institution’s assets and liabilities.

Basis risk—Basis risk is the risk of adverse consequence resulting from unequal changes in the spread between
two or more rates for different instruments with the same maturity.

Yield curve risk—Yield curve risk is the risk of adverse consequence resulting from unequal changesin the spread
between two or more rates for different maturities for the same instrument.

Option risk—In banking, option risks are known as borrower options to prepay |oans and depositor options to
make deposits, withdrawals, and early redemptions. Option risk arises whenever bank products give customers the right, but
not the obligation, to alter the quantity or the timing of cash flows.

We maintain an asset/liability management policy that provides guidelines for controlling exposure to interest rate risk.
The guidelines direct management to assess the impact of changes in interest rates upon both earnings and capital. The
guidelines further provide that in the event of an increase in interest rate risk beyond pre-established limits, management will
consider stepsto reduce interest rate risk to acceptable levels.

The analysis of an institution’s interest rate gap (the difference between the repricing of interest-earning assets and
interest-bearing liabilities during a given period of time) is one standard tool for the measurement of the exposure to interest
rate risk. We believe that because interest rate gap analysis does not address all factors that can affect earnings performance. It
should be used in conjunction with other methods of evaluating interest rate risk.

The table on the following page sets forth the estimated maturity or repricing, and the resulting interest rate gap of our
interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities at December 31, 2012. The amounts in the table are derived from our
internal data and are based upon regulatory reporting formats. Therefore, they may not be consistent with financial information
appearing el sewhere herein that has been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States. The amounts could be significantly affected by external factors such as changesin prepayment assumptions, early
withdrawal of deposits and competition. For example, although certain assets and liabilities may have similar maturities or
periods to repricing, they may react in different degreesto changesin market interest rates. Also, the interest rates on certain
types of assets and liabilities may fluctuate in advance of changes in market interest rates, while other types may lag changesin
market interest rates.

Additionally, certain assets, such as adjustable-rate mortgages, have features that restrict changes in the interest rates of
such assets both on a short-term basis and over the lives of such assets. Further, in the event of a change in market interest rates,
prepayment and early withdrawal levels could deviate significantly from those assumed in calculating the tables. Finally, the
ability of many borrowersto service their adjustable-rate debt may decrease in the event of a substantial increase in market
interest rates.
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Estimated Maturity or Repricing

Over 1 year
0-3 4-12 through Due after
December 31, 2012 months months 5 years 5 years Total

(dollars in thousands)
Interest-Earning Assets .. .............

Interest-earning deposits. .. ......... $ 389,353 $ — 3 — 3 — $ 389,353
Loans, net of deferredfees .. ........ 1,292,849 320,535 1,127,010 176,653 2,917,047
Loansheldforsade ................ 2,563 — — — 2,563
Investments. ..................... 85,756 125,830 481,294 330,604 1,023,484
Total interest-earning assets. . . . .. $1,770521 $ 446365 $ 1608304 $ 507,257 4,332,447
Allowance for 10an and 1E8SE 10SSES . . . . .o i ittt i e (52,244)
Cashandduefrom banks . .. ... .. 124,573
Premisesand eqQUIPMENt, NEL. . . . ... ... e 118,708
L1 = 5 £ 382,851
TOtAl BSOS . . .ottt $ 4,906,335

Interest-Bearing Liabilities
Interest-bearing non-maturity

deposits .. ... $1,043460 $ — 8 — $1185191 $ 2,228,651
Timedeposits . ................... 150,194 227,396 113,054 1,619 492,263
Borrowings............... ..., — — — 31,644 31,644

Totd interest-bearing liabilities. .. $1,193654 $ 227,396 $ 113054 $1,218454 2,752,558
Other [1aDilItIEs . . . .o e e 1,389,769
Total HahiltiES . . . ..t 4,142,327
Shareholders EOUITY . . ... 764,008
Total liabilitiesand shareholders’ equity. . . ...t e e e e $ 4,906,335
Interest-bearing liabilities as a percent of -
total interest-earning assets. .. ......... 27.55% 5.25% 2.61% 28.12 %
Rate sensitivitygap ................... $ 576867 $ 218969 $ 1495250 $ (711,197)
Cumulative rate sensitivity gap .......... $ 576867 $ 795836 $ 2,291,086 $ 1,579,889
Rate sensitivity gap as a percentage of
interest-earning assets. .. ........ ... .. 13.32% 5.05% 34.51% (16.42)%
Cumulative rate sensitivity gap asa
percentage of interest-earning assets . . . . 13.32% 18.37% 52.88% 36.47 %

Interest Rate Sensitivity on Net Interest Income

A number of measures are used to monitor and manage interest rate risk, including income simulations and interest
sensitivity (gap) analysis. An income simulation model is the primary tool used to assess the direction and magnitude of
changes in net interest income resulting from changes in interest rates. Key assumptions in the model include prepayment
speeds on mortgage-rel ated assets, cash flows and maturities of other investment securities, loan and deposit volumes and
pricing. These assumptions are inherently uncertain and, as aresult, the model cannot precisely estimate net interest income or
precisely predict the impact of higher or lower interest rates on net interest income. Actual results will differ from simulated
results due to timing, magnitude and frequency of interest rate changes and changes in market conditions and management
strategies, among other factors.

Based on the results of the simulation model as of December 31, 2012, we would expect a decrease in net interest income
of $1.7 million if interest rates gradually decrease from current rates by 100 basis points and an increase in net interest income
of $9.2 million if interest rates gradually increase from current rates by 200 basis points over a twelve-month period.

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

Theimpact of inflation on our operationsis increased operating costs. Unlike most industrial companies, virtualy all the
assets and liabilities of afinancial institution are monetary in nature. As aresult, interest rates generally have a more significant
impact on afinancial institution’s performance than the effect of general levels of inflation. Although interest rates do not
necessarily move in the same direction or to the same extent as the prices of goods and services, increases in inflation generally
have resulted in increased interest rates.



ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Columbia Banking System, Inc.
Tacoma, Washington

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Columbia Banking System, Inc. and its subsidiary (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income,
changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three yearsin the period ended December 31, 2012. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility isto express an opinion on these
financia statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosuresin the financial statements. An audit aso includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financia position of
Columbia Banking System, Inc. and its subsidiary as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for each of the three yearsin the period ended December 31, 2012, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have a so audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the Company’sinternal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012, based on the criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
and our report dated February 28, 2013 expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial

reporting.

/s/ Deloitte & ToucheLLP
Seattle, Washington
February 28, 2013
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COLUMBIA BANKING SYSTEM, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Cashandduefrombanks . ..... ... i
Interest-earning depositswith banks. . . ... .
Total cashand cashequivalents. . ............ ... ... i,

Securities available for sale at fair value (amortized cost of $969,359 and $987,560,
FESPECHIVEY ) . o ottt

Federal Home Loan Bank StoCK at COSE. . . ..ot i it et

Loansheldfor sale. . ... e

Loans, excluding covered loans, net of unearned income of ($7,767) and ($16,217),
FESPECHIVEY . ot e

Less: alowanceforloanandleaselosses ... ..o
Loans, excluding covered loans, net. . ...t
Covered loans, net of allowance for loan losses of ($30,056) and ($4,944), respectively . ..
Total 08NS, NEL. . ...
FDIC10SS-Sharing @Sset. . . .. oo it
Interestrecailvable . .. ... o e
Premisesand equipment, NEL. . .. ...
Other real estate owned ($16,311 and $28,126 covered by FDIC loss-share,
FESPECHIVEY ) . . .o
GOOAWIIL . . e

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Deposits:
Noninterest-bearing. . . ...
INterest-Dearing . . . . ..o
Total depOoSitS. . . . oo
Federal HomeLoanBank advances . .. ... ... oot
Securities sold under agreementstorepurchase . . ...t
Other l1abilities . . ...
Total Habilities. .. ...
Commitments and contingent liabilities (Note 15)
Shareholders’ equity:

December 31, December 31,
2012 2011

December 31,

December 31,

2012 2011
(in thousands)

$ 124573 % 91,364
389,353 202,925
513,926 294,289
1,001,665 1,028,110
21,819 22,215
2,563 2,148
2,525,710 2,348,371
52,244 53,041
2,473,466 2,295,330
391,337 531,929
2,864,803 2,827,259
96,354 175,071
14,268 15,287
118,708 107,899
26,987 51,019
115,554 115,554
15,721 20,166
113,967 126,928

$ 4,906,335

$ 4,785,945

$ 1321171

$ 1,156,610

Common stock (no par value)
Authorizedshares......................... 63,033 63,033
Issued and outstanding .. ................... 39,686 39,506
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensivVeinCome. . . ... ..ottt e e e
Total shareholders’ equity . .. ... e
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity. . ... ...

2,720,914 2,658,919
4,042,085 3,815,529
6,644 119,009
25,000 25,000
68,598 67,069
4,142,327 4,026,607
581,471 579,136
162,388 155,069
20,149 25,133
764,008 759,338

$ 4,906,335

$ 4,785,945

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Interest Income

Interest Expense

Tax-exempt securities
Federal funds sold and depositsin banks
Total interest income

Prepayment charge on Federal Home Loan Bank advances
Long-term obligations
Other borrowings.
Total interest expense
Net Interest Income
Provision for loan and lease |osses
Provision (recapture) for losses on covered loans
Net interest income after provision (recapture) for loan and lease losses
Noninterest Income (Loss)
Service charges and other fees
Gain on bank acquisitions, net of tax
Merchant services fees
Investment securities gains (losses), net
Bank owned life insurance
Change in FDIC loss-sharing asset
Other ...
Total noninterest income (10ss)
Noninterest Expense
Compensation and employee benefits
OCCUPANCY . .« vt et
Merchant processing
Advertising and promotion
Dataprocessing . ...« vn e
Legal and professional fees
Taxes, licenses and fees
Regulatory premiums
Net cost (benefit) of operation of other real estate owned
Amortization of intangibles
FDIC clawback liability expense (recovery)
Other ...
Total noninterest expense
Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
NetIncome .............cviiiiinnannn.
Net Income Applicable to Common Shareholders
Earnings Per Common Share
BasiC..........iiiiii
Diluted. ...
Dividends paid per common share
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding
Weighted average number of diluted common shares outstanding

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

COLUMBIA BANKING SYSTEM, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands except per share)

$ 219,433 $ 218,420 $ 157,292
18,276 21,870 18,276
9,941 10,142 9,348
854 839 963
248,504 251,271 185,879
5,887 10,478 16,733
2,608 2,980 2,841
603 — —
— 579 1,029
479 498 489
9,577 14,535 21,092
238,927 236,736 164,787
13,475 7,400 41,291
25,892 (1,648) 6,055
199,560 230,984 117,441
29,998 26,632 24,698
— 1,830 9,818
8,154 7,385 7,502
3,733 (2,816) 58
2,861 2,188 2,041
(24,467) (49,496) 4,908
6,779 4,994 3,756
27,058 (9,283) 52,781
85,434 81,552 69,780
20,031 18,963 16,814
3,612 3,698 4,364
3,650 3,686 3,081
9,714 8,484 8,769
8,915 6,486 5,684
4,736 4,446 2,858
3,384 4,337 6,485
(1,969) (1,022) 787
4,445 4,319 3,922
(54) 3,656 —
21,015 17,154 14,603
162,913 155,759 137,147
63,705 65,942 33,075
17,562 17,905 2,291
$ 46143 $ 48037 $ 30,784
$ 46143 $ 48037 $ 25837
$ 1.16 $ 122 $ 0.73
$ 1.16 $ 121 $ 0.72
$ 0.98 $ 0.27 $ 0.04
39,260 39,103 35,209
39,263 39,180 35,392



COLUMBIA BANKING SYSTEM, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Net income
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Unrealized gain from securities:

Net unrealized holding gain (loss) from available for sale securities
arising during the period, net of tax of $1,902, ($7,462) and
($1,047)

Reclassification adjustment of net gain from sale of available for
sale securities included in income, net of tax of $1,316, $48 and
$20

Net unrealized gain (loss) from securities, net of reclassification
adjustment

Cash flow hedging instruments:

Reclassification adjustment of net gain included in income, net of
tax of $0, $79, and $625

Net change in cash flow hedging instruments
Pension plan liability adjustment:

Unrecognized net actuarial gain (loss) during the period, net of tax
of $0, $154 and ($12)

Less: amortization of unrecognized net actuarial gains and losses
included in net periodic pension cost, net of tax of ($38), ($31)
and ($15)

Pension plan liability adjustment, net
Other comprehensive income (10ss)
Comprehensive income

Years ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)
46,143 $ 48,037 $ 30,784
(2,609) 13,285 1,587
(2,417) (85) (38)
(5,026) 13,200 1,549
— (143) (1,134)
— (143) (1,134)
— (260) 23
42 55 27
42 (205) 50
(4,984) 12,852 465
41,159 $ 60,889 $ 31,249

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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COLUMBIA BANKING SYSTEM, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Balance at January 1,2010............
Netincome ..............ccovnen...
Other comprehensiveincome . ..........

Redemption of preferred stock and
common stock warrant . .............

Accretion of preferred stock discount. . . . .

Issuance of common stock, net of
offeringcosts. . .......... ot

Issuance of common stock - stock
optionand other plans. . .............

Issuance of common stock - restricted
stock awards, net of canceled awards. . .

Tax benefit associated with share-based
compensation . ...,

Preferred dividends. . .................
Cash dividends paid on common stock . . . .
Balance at December 31,2010 .........
Netincome ..........covviiiiina...
Other comprehensiveincome ...........

Issuance of common stock - stock
optionandotherplans. . .............

Issuance of common stock - restricted
stock awards, net of canceled awards. . .

Tax benefit deficiency associated with
share-based compensation . ..........

Purchase and retirement of common
SOCK o

Cash dividends paid on common stock . . . .
Balance at December 31,2011 .........
Netincome ............ovviiiaann.
Other comprehensiveloss. .............

Issuance of common stock - stock
optionand other plans. . .............

Issuance of common stock - restricted
stock awards, net of canceled awards. . .

Cash dividends paid on common stock . . . .
Balance at December 31,2012 .........

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Preferred Stock

Common Stock

Accumulated

Number Number Other Total
of of Retained Comprehensive Shareholders’
Shares Amount Shares Amount Earnings Income Equity
(in thousands)
77 $ 74,301 28129 $ 348706 $ 93316 $ 11,816 $ 528,139
— — — — 30,784 — 30,784
— — — — — 465 465
77) (76,898) — (3,302) — — (80,200)
— 2,597 — — (2,597) — —
— — 11,040 229,129 — — 229,129
— — 69 923 — — 923
— — 100 1,424 — — 1,424
— — — 25 — — 25
— — — — (2,350) — (2,350)
— — — — (1,461) — (1,461)
— 3 — 39338 $ 576905 $ 117,692 $ 12281 % 706,878
— — — — 48,037 — 48,037
— — — — — 12,852 12,852
— — 51 848 — — 848
— — 119 1,635 — — 1,635
— — — (220) — — (220
— — 2 (32) — — (32
— — — — (10,660) — (10,660)
— 3 — 39506 $ 579,136 $ 155,069 $ 25133 $ 759,338
— — — — 46,143 — 46,143
— — — — — (4,984) (4,984)
— — 40 713 — — 713
— — 140 1,622 — — 1,622
— — — — (38,824) — (38,824)
—  $ — 39,686 $ 581,471 $162388 $ 20,149 $ 764,008
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COLUMBIA BANKING SYSTEM, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010

(in thousands)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

NELINCOME . .. oo $ 46,143 $ 48,037 $ 30,784
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities
Provision for loan and lease losses and losseson covered loans. .. .................... 39,367 5,752 47,346
Stock-based compensation eXPENSE. . . .. ..ottt 1,622 1,635 1,424
Depreciation, amortization and acCretion. . ... ... .o 57,305 46,121 11,352
Gainon FDIC-assisted bank acquisitions . ............... ... — (1,830) (9,818)
Investment securities (gain) 10SS, Net . . .. ... (3,733 2,816 (58)
Net realized (gain) losson sale of other assets. . .. ... (456) 79 33)
Net realized gain on sale of other real estateowned ........... ... (11,634) (9,310) (5,253)
Gain on termination of cash flow hedginginstruments. ............................. — (222) (1,759)
Write-down on other real estateowned . . ... . 8,300 6,307 5,144
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) ... ... (3,656) (3,783) 15,838
Net changein:
Loansheldforsale ..... ... (415) (1,394) (754)
Interest recaivable . . . ... 1,019 (1,243) 4,472
Interestpayable. .. ... (629) (403) (784)
(@101 g 5 (2,113) (19,248) 18,419
Other liabilities . . ... ..o e 3,779 13,110 7,816
Net cash provided by operating activities . ................cooiiiiinnn.. 134,899 86,424 124,136
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Loans originated and acquired, net of principal collected. . ............ ... ... ... . .l (92,088) (110,577) 164,084
Purchases of:
Securitiesavailableforsale . ... o (322,342) (453,043) (179,332)
Premisesand equipment. . . ... ..o e (17,137) (15,088) (36,503)
Proceeds from:
FDIC reimbursement on [oss-sharing asset . . . ...t 54,649 54,200 —
Salesof securitiesavailableforsale. . ... 95,165 72,523 69,328
Principal repayments and maturities of securitiesavailableforsae.................... 236,749 148,583 92,840
Sales of loans held for investment andotherassets. . ...t 4,414 46 902
Sales of covered other real estateowned . ............... 33,315 20,619 17,890
Sales of other real estate and other personal property owned . ........................ 15,689 12,278 4,800
Termination of trust subsidiaries . ............... ... — 774 —
Capital improvements on other real estate properties. . . ... (112) (735) (1,720)
Increase (decrease) in Small Business Administration secured borrowings. . ................. — (642) 642
Net cash acquired in businesscombinations. .. ............. i i i — 247,792 145,534
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities. . ...................... 8,403 (23,270) 278,465
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Net increase (decrease) iINAePOSItS . . . . ...ttt t 226,556 (204,586) (302,758)
Proceeds from:
Issuance of commMONStOCK .. ... ... o i — — 229,129
Exercise of StOCK OptioNS. . ... ..o oot 713 848 923
Federal HomeLoanBank advances . .................. i 100 100 —
Federal Reserve Bank borrowings . . ...t 100 100 —
Payments for:
Repayment of Federal HomeLoanBank advances . ..., (112,210) (42,989) (36,276)
Repayment of Federal Reserve Bank borrowings. . ... (100) (100) —
Preferred stock dividends . .. ... ... — — (2,841)
Common StOCK AIVIAENTS . . . .. o oot (38,824) (10,660) (1,461)
Repayment of long-term subordinated debt . ............. ... . i — (25,774) —
Repurchase of preferred stock and common stock warrant .. ... — — (80,200)
Purchase and retirement of common stock . .. ... — 32 —
Excess tax benefit from stock-based compensation . ......... ... i — 98 25
Net decreasein other borrowings . .. ... ..o o — — (86)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities. ....................... 76,335 (282,995) (193,545)
Increase (decrease) incashand cashequivalents . . ............. ... 219,637 (219,841) 209,056
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period . ... 294,289 514,130 305,074
Cash and cash equivalentsat end of period. . ...t $ 513926 $ 204289 % 514,130

Supplemental Information:
Cash paid during the year for:

Cash paid for INErESE. . . ..ot e e e e e $ 10,206 $ 14,938 $ 21,876
Cash Paid fOr INCOMEBLAX. « . vttt ettt e et et et e e e e i e $ 11927 % 2305 $ 6,895
Non-cash investing activities

Assets acquired in FDIC-assisted acquisitions (excluding cash and cash equivalents) .......... $ — 3 485870 $ 1,075,166
Liabilities assumed in FDIC-assisted acqUISItioNS . . . ..o v et i $ — 3 731,832 $ 1,210,882
Loanstransferredto other real estate Owned. . . ...t $ 21,627 $ 24,357 $ 29,864

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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COLUMBIA BANKING SYSTEM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Organization

Columbia Banking System, Inc. (the “ Corporation”) is the holding company for Columbia State Bank (the “Bank”). The
Bank provides afull range of financial services through 99 branch locations, including 74 in the State of Washington and 25 in
Oregon. Because the Bank comprises substantially all of the business of the Corporation, references to the “ Company” mean
the Corporation and the Bank together. The Corporation is approved as a bank holding company pursuant to the Gramm-L each-
Bliley Act of 1999.

The Company’s accounting and reporting policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (“GAAP") and practices in the financial servicesindustry. To prepare the financial statementsin conformity
with GAAP, management must make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements, and income and expenses during the reporting period. Circumstances and events that differ
significantly from those underlying our estimates and assumptions could cause actual financial results to differ from our
estimates. The most significant estimates included in the financial statements relate to the allowance for loan and lease losses,
business combinations, acquired impaired loans, Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation loss sharing asset and goodwiill
impairment.

The Company has applied its accounting policies and estimation methods consistently in al periods presented in these
financial statements (to the periods in which they applied), except for certain estimates related to the measurement of expected
future cash flows on acquired impaired loans. For those certain estimates, in 2011 the Company began utilizing actual historical
loan data rather than industry data, which had been utilized in 2010. The results of operations reflect any adjustments, al of
which are of anormal recurring nature, and which, in the opinion of management, are necessary for afair presentation of the
results of the periods presented.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company include the accounts of the Corporation and the Bank.
Intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and due from banks, and interest bearing balances due from correspondent banks
and the Federal Reserve Bank. Cash and cash equivalents have a maturity of 90 days or less at the time of purchase.

Securities

Securities are classified based on management’s intention on the date of purchase. All securities are classified as available
for sale and are presented at fair value. Unrealized gains or losses on securities available for sale are excluded from net income
but are included as separate components of other comprehensive income, net of taxes. Purchase premiums or discounts on
securities available for sale are amortized or accreted into income using the interest method over the terms of the individual
securities. The Company performs a quarterly assessment to determine whether adecline in fair value below amortized cost is
other-than-temporary. Amortized cost includes adjustments made to the cost of an investment for accretion, amortization,
collection of cash and previous other-than temporary impairment recognized in earnings. Other-than-temporary impairment
exists when it is probable that the Company will be unable to recover the entire amortized cost basis of the security. If the
declinein fair valueis judged to be other than temporary, the security iswritten down to fair value which becomes the new cost
basis and an impairment loss is recognized.

In performing the quarterly assessment for debt securities, management considers whether or not the Company expectsto
recover the entire amortized cost basis of the security. In addition, management also considers whether it is more likely than not
that it will not have to sell the security before recovery of its cost basis. If the Company intends to sell a security or it is more
likely than not it will be required to sell a security prior to recovery of its cost basis, the entire amount of impairment is
recognized in earnings. If the Company does not intend to sell the security or it is not more likely than not it will be required to
sell the security prior to recovery of its cost basis, the credit loss component of impairment is recognized in earnings and
impairment associated with non-credit factors, such as market liquidity, is recognized in other comprehensive income net of
tax. A credit loss is the difference between the cost basis of the security and the present value of cash flows expected to be
collected, discounted at the security's effective interest rate at the date of acquisition. The cost basis of an other-than-
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temporarily impaired security is written down by the amount of impairment recognized in earnings. The new cost basisis not
adjusted for subsequent recoveriesin fair value. However, the difference between the new amortized cost basis and the cash
flows expected to be collected is accreted as interest income. The total other-than-temporary impairment is presented in the
consolidated statements of income with a reduction for the amount of other-than-temporary impairment that is recognized in
other comprehensive income, if any.

Realized gains or losses on sales of securities available for sale are recorded using the specific identification method.
Federal Home Loan Bank Stock

The Company’sinvestment in Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) stock is carried at par value because the shares can
only be redeemed with the FHLB at par. The Company is required to maintain a minimum level of investment in FHLB stock
based on specific percentages of its outstanding mortgages and FHL B advances. Stock redemptions are at the discretion of the
FHLB or of the Company, upon five years prior notice for FHLB Class B stock or six months notice for FHLB Class A stock
tothe FHLB. FHLB stock is carried at cost and is subject to recoverability testing per the Financial Services—Depository and
Lending topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“*ASC”).

Loans

Loans are generally carried at the unpaid principal balance, net of premiums, unearned discounts and net deferred loan
fees. Net deferred loan fees include deferred unamortized fees less direct incremental loan origination costs. Net deferred loan
fees, premiums and unearned discounts on loans are recognized in interest income using either the interest method or straight-
line method over the terms of the loans, adjusted for actual prepayments. Interest incomeis accrued as earned. Feesrelated to
lending activities other than the origination or purchase of loans are recognized as noninterest income during the period the
related services are performed.

Nonaccrual loans—L oans are placed on nonaccrua status when aloan becomes contractually past due 90 days with
respect to interest or principal unlessthe loan is both well secured and in the process of collection, or if full collection of
interest or principal becomes uncertain. When aloan is placed on nonaccrua status, any accrued and unpaid interest receivable
isreversed and the recognition of net deferred loan fees, premiums and unearned discounts ceases. Thereafter, interest collected
on the loan is accounted for on the cash collection or cost recovery method until qualifying for return to accrual status.
Generally, aloan may be returned to accrua status when the delinquent principal and interest are brought current in accordance
with the terms of the loan agreement for a minimum period of six months and future payments are reasonably assured.

Impaired loans—L oans are considered impaired when based on current information and events, it is probable that the
Company will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement or when aloan has
been modified in atroubled debt restructuring. The assessment for impairment occurs when and while such loans are
designated as classified per the Company’sinternal risk rating system or when and while such loans are on nonaccrual. All
nonaccrual 1oans greater than $500,000 are considered impaired and analyzed individually on a quarterly basis. Classified loans
with an outstanding balance greater than $500,000 are evaluated for potential impairment on a quarterly basis.

When aloan with unique risk characteristics has been identified as being impaired, the amount of impairment will be
measured by the Company using discounted cash flows, except when it is determined that the primary (remaining) source of
repayment for the loan is the operation or liquidation of the underlying collateral. In these cases, the current fair value of the
collateral, reduced by coststo sell, will be used in place of discounted cash flows. As afinal aternative, the observable market
price of the debt may be used to assess impairment. Predominantly, the Company uses the fair value of collateral approach
based upon areliable valuation.

When the measurement of the impaired loan is less than the recorded amount of the loan, an impairment is recognized by
recording a charge-off to the allowance for loan and |lease |osses or by designating a specific reserve. The Company’s policy is
to record cash receipts received on impaired loans first as reductions to principal and then to interest income.

Restructured Loans—A loan is classified as atroubled debt restructuring when a borrower is experiencing financial
difficulties that lead to arestructuring of the loan, and the Company grants concessions to the borrower in the restructuring that
it would not otherwise consider. These concessions may include interest rate reductions, principal forgiveness, extension of
maturity date and other actions intended to minimize potential losses. Generally, a nonaccrual loan that is restructured remains
on nonaccrua status for a period of six months to demonstrate that the borrower can meet the restructured terms. If the
borrower's performance under the new terms is not reasonably assured, the loan remains classified as a nonaccrual loan.

Acquired Impaired Loans—L oans acquired with evidence of credit deterioration since origination for which it is probable
that all contractually required payments will not be collected are accounted for under Accounting Standards Codification
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(“ASC") 310-30, Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Credit Quality, formerly SOP 03-3 Accounting for
Certain Loans or Debt Securities Acquired in a Transfer. In addition, because of the significant discounts associated with
certain of the acquired loan portfolios, the Company elected to account for those certain acquired loans under ASC 310-30.

In situations where such loans have similar risk characteristics, loans are aggregated into pools to estimate cash flows. A
pool is accounted for as a single asset with a single interest rate, cumulative loss rate and cash flow expectation. Expected cash
flows at the acquisition date in excess of the fair value of loans are considered to be accretable yield, which is recognized as
interest income over the life of the loan pool using alevel yield method if the timing and amount of the future cash flows of the
pool is reasonably estimable. Subsequent to the acquisition date, any increases in cash flow over those expected at purchase
date in excess of fair value are recorded as interest income prospectively. Any subsequent decreases in cash flow over those
expected at purchase date due to credit deterioration are recognized by recording an allowance for losses on covered loans. Any
disposals of loans, including sales of loans, paymentsin full or foreclosures result in the removal of the loan from the loan pool
at the carrying amount.

Covered Loans—The term covered |oans refers to acquired |oans that are covered under aloss-sharing agreement with
the FDIC. The bulk of covered loans are accounted for under ASC 310-30. See Acquired Impaired Loans for further
discussion.

Unfunded loan commitments—Unfunded commitments are generally related to providing credit facilities to clients of the
Bank and are not actively traded financial instruments. These unfunded commitments are disclosed as financial instruments
with off-balance sheet risk in Note 15 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses

The Company accounts for the credit risk associated with lending activities through its allowance for loan and lease
losses and provision for loan and lease losses. The provision is the expense recognized in the consolidated statements of income
to adjust the allowance to the levels deemed appropriate by management, as determined through application of the Company’s
allowance methodology procedures. The provision for loan and lease losses reflects management’s judgment of the adequacy of
the allowance for loan and lease losses. L oan and lease losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the
collectability of aloan balance is unlikely. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.

The allowance for loan and lease losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon management’s
periodic review of the collectability of the loansin light of historical experience, the nature and volume of the loan portfalio,
adverse situations that may affect the borrower’s ability to repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral and prevailing
economic conditions. This evaluation isinherently subjective asit requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision
as more information becomes available.

The allowance consists of general, specific, and unallocated components. The general component covers loans not
specifically measured for impairment and is based on historical loss experience adjusted for qualitative factors. The specific
component relates to loans that are impaired. For impaired loans an alowance is established when the discounted cash flows
(or collateral value or observable market price) of the impaired loan islower than the carrying value of that loan. The
unallocated allowance provides for other credit 1osses inherent in the Company’s loan portfolio that may not have been
contemplated in the general and specific components of the allowance. This unallocated amount generally comprises less than
5% of the allowance. The unallocated amount is reviewed periodically based on trendsin credit losses, the results of credit
reviews and overall economic trends.

Allowance for Unfunded Commitments and Letters of Credit

The allowance for unfunded commitments is maintained at alevel believed by management to be sufficient to absorb
estimated probable losses related to these unfunded credit facilities. The determination of the adequacy of the allowanceis
based on periodic evaluations of the unfunded credit facilities including an assessment of the probability of commitment usage,
credit risk factors for loans outstanding to these same customers, and the terms and expiration dates of the unfunded credit
facilities. The allowance for unfunded commitments isincluded in other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets, with
changes to the balance charged against noninterest expense.

Allowance for Loan Losses on Covered Loans

The Company updates its cash flow projections for covered |oans accounted for under ASC 310-30 on a quarterly basis.
Assumptions utilized in this process include projections related to probability of default, oss severity, prepayment and recovery
lag. Projections related to probability of default and prepayment are calculated utilizing aloan migration analysis. The loan
migration analysisisamatrix of probability that is used to estimate the probability of aloan pool transitioning into a particular
delinquency state given its delinquency state at the remeasurement date. L oss severity factors are based upon either actual
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charge-off data within the loan pools or industry averages and recovery lags are based upon the collateral within the loan pools.

Any decreases in expected cash flows after the acquisition date and subsequent measurement periods are recognized by
recording a provision for loan losses. See Acquired Impaired Loans for further discussion.

Premises and Equipment

Land, buildings, leasehold improvements and equipment are stated at cost |ess accumul ated depreciation and
amortization. Gains or losses on dispositions are reflected in current operations. Expenditures for improvements and major
renewals are capitalized, and ordinary maintenance, repairs and small purchases are charged to operating expenses.
Depreciation and amortization are computed based on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the various
classes of assets. The ranges of useful lives for the principal classes of assets are as follows:

Buildings and building improvements. .. ........ 5to 39 years
Leasehold improvements. . ................... Term of lease or useful life, whichever is shorter
Furniture, fixturesand equipment ... ............ 3to 7 years
Vehicles. . ... Syears
Computer software ......................... 3to5years
Software

Capitalized software is stated at cost, less accumulated amortization. Amortization is computed on a straight-line basis
and charged to expense over the estimated useful life of the software which is generally three years. Capitalized softwareis
included in Premises and equipment, net in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Other Real Estate Owned

Other real estate owned (“OREQ") is composed of real estate acquired in satisfaction of loans. Properties acquired by
foreclosure or deed in lieu of foreclosure are transferred to OREO and are recorded at fair value less estimated coststo sell, at
the date of transfer of the property. If the carrying value exceeds the fair value at the time of the transfer, the differenceis
charged to the allowance for loan and lease losses. The fair value of the OREO property is based upon current appraisal. L osses
that result from the ongoing periodic valuation of these properties are charged to the net cost of operation of OREO in the
period in which they are identified. Improvements to the OREO are capitalized and holding costs are charged to the net cost of
operation of OREO asincurred.

Covered OREO—Covered OREO includes acquired OREO that is covered under aloss-sharing agreement with the
FDIC. These assets were recorded at their fair value on acquisition date. Covered OREOQ is reported in Other real estate owned
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Covered OREO is reported exclusive of expected reimbursement cash flows from the
FDIC. Upon transferring covered loan collateral to covered OREO status, valuation adjustments arising from acquisition
accounting on the related loan are also transferred to covered OREO. Valuation adjustments arising from acquisition accounting
on covered OREO result in areduction of the covered OREO carrying amount and a corresponding increase in the expected
FDIC reimbursement, with the estimated net loss to the Company, if any, charged against earnings.

FDIC Loss-sharing Asset

The acquisition date fair value of the reimbursement the Company expected to receive from the FDIC under loss-sharing
agreements was recorded in the FDIC loss-sharing asset on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the FDIC loss-sharing asset is reviewed quarterly and adjusted for any changes in expected cash flows. These adjustments are
measured on the same basis as the related covered assets. Any decrease in expected cash flows for the covered assets due to an
increase in expected credit losses will increase the FDIC loss-sharing asset and any increase in expected future cash flows for
the covered assets due to a decrease in expected credit losses will decrease the FDIC loss-sharing asset. Changesin the
estimated cash flows on covered assets that are immediately recognized in income generally result in asimilar immediate
adjustment to the loss-sharing asset while changesin expected cash flows on covered assets that are accounted for as an
adjustment to yield generally result in adjustments to the amortization or accretion rate for the loss-sharing asset. Increases and
decreases to the FDIC loss-sharing asset are recorded as adjustments to noninterest income.

Goodwill and Intangibles

Net assets of companies acquired in purchase transactions are recorded at fair value at the date of acquisition. Identified
intangibles are amortized on an accelerated basis over the period benefited. Goodwill is not amortized but is reviewed for
potential impairment during the third quarter on an annual basis or, more frequently, if events or circumstances indicate a
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potential impairment, at the reporting unit level. A reporting unit is an operating segment or one level below an operating
segment for which discrete financial information is available and regularly reviewed by management. The Company consists of
asingle reporting unit. If the fair value of the reporting unit, including goodwill, is determined to be less than the carrying
amount of the reporting unit, a further test is required to measure the amount of impairment. If an impairment loss exists, the
carrying amount of goodwill is adjusted to anew cost basis. Subsequent reversal of a previously recognized goodwill
impairment loss is prohibited.

Intangible assets are evaluated for impairment if events and circumstances indicate a possible impairment. Such
evaluation of other intangible assetsis based on undiscounted cash flow projections. At December 31, 2012, intangible assets
included on the consolidated balance sheets consist of a core deposit intangible amortized using an accel erated method with an
original estimated life of approximately 10 years .

Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes includes current and deferred income tax expense on net income adjusted for permanent
and temporary differences such as interest income on state and municipal securities and affordable housing credits. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the expected future tax consequences of existing temporary differences between the
financial reporting and tax reporting basis of assets and liabilities using enacted tax laws and rates. The effect on deferred tax
assets and liabilities of achangein tax ratesis recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. On a
guarterly basis, management evaluates deferred tax assets to determine if these tax benefits are expected to be realized in future
periods. This determination is based on facts and circumstances, including the Company’s current and future tax outlook. To the
extent a deferred tax asset is no longer considered “more likely than not” to be realized, a valuation allowance is established.

Advertising
Advertising costs are generally expensed as incurred.
Earnings per Common Share

The Company cal cul ates earnings per common share (“ EPS”) using the two-class method in accordance with the
Earnings per Share topic of the FASB ASC. The two-class method requires the Company to present EPS as if al of the earnings
for the period are distributed to common shareholders and any participating securities, regardless of whether any actual
dividends or distributions are made. Under authoritative guidance, all outstanding unvested share-based payment awards that
contain rights to nonforfeitable dividends are considered participating securities. The Company grants restricted shares under a
share-based compensation plan that qualifies as participating securities. Restricted shares issued under the Company’s share-
based compensation plan are entitled to dividends at the same rate as common stock.

Basic EPS are computed by dividing distributed and undistributed earnings available to common shareholders by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Distributed and undistributed earnings available to
common shareholders represent net income reduced by preferred stock dividends and distributed and undistributed earnings
available to participating securities. Common shares outstanding include common stock and vested restricted stock
awards. Diluted EPS reflect the assumed conversion of al potential dilutive securities.

Share-Based Payment

The Company accounts for stock options and stock awards in accordance with the Compensation—Stock Compensation
topic of the FASB ASC. Authoritative guidance requires the Company to measure the cost of employee services received in
exchange for an award of equity instruments, such as stock options or stock awards, based on the fair value of the award on the
grant date. This cost must be recognized in the consolidated statements of income over the vesting period of the award.

The Company issues restricted stock awards which generally vest over afour- or five-year period during which time the
holder receives dividends and has full voting rights. Restricted stock is valued at the closing price of the Company’s stock on
the date of an award.

Derivatives and Hedging Activities

In accordance with the Derivatives and Hedging topic of the FASB ASC, the Company recognizes derivatives as assets or
liahilities on the consolidated balance sheets at their fair value. The treatment of changesin the fair value of derivatives
depends on the character of the transaction.

The Company entersinto derivative contracts to add stability to interest income and to manage its exposure to changes in
interest rates. On the date the Company entersinto a derivative contract, the derivative instrument is designated as: (1) a hedge
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of the fair value of arecognized asset or liability or of an unrecognized firm commitment (a“fair value’ hedge); (2) a hedge of
the variabhility in expected future cash flows associated with an existing recognized asset or liability or a probable forecasted
transaction (a“ cash flow” hedge); or (3) held for other economic purposes (an “economic” hedge) and not formally designated
as part of qualifying hedging relationships under authoritative guidance.

In afair value hedge, changesin the fair value of the hedging derivative are recognized in earnings and offset by
recognizing changesin the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk being hedged. To the extent that the hedgeis
ineffective, the changesin fair value will not offset and the difference is reflected in earnings.

In a cash flow hedge, the effective portion of the change in the fair value of the hedging derivativeisrecorded in
accumulated other comprehensive income and is subsequently reclassified into earnings during the same period in which the
hedged item affects earnings. The change in fair value of any ineffective portion of the hedging derivative is recognized
immediately in earnings. When a cash flow hedge is discontinued, the net derivative gain or l0ss continues to be reported in
accumulated other comprehensive income unless it is probable that the forecasted transactions will not occur by the end of the
originally specified time period. The net derivative gain or loss from a discontinued cash flow hedge is reclassified into
earnings during the originally specified time period in which the forecasted transactions were to occur.

The Company formally documents the relationship between the hedging instruments and hedged items, as well asitsrisk
management objective and strategy before initiating a hedge. To qualify for hedge accounting, the derivatives and related
hedged items must be designated as a hedge. For hedging relationships in which effectiveness is measured, the correl ations
between the hedging instruments and hedged items are assessed at inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, which
includes determining whether the hedge relationship is expected to be highly effective in offsetting changes in fair value or cash
flows of hedged items.

Derivatives used for other economic purposes are used as economic hedges in which the Company has not attempted to
achieve the highly effective hedge accounting standard under authoritative guidance. The changesin fair value of these
instruments are recognized immediately in earnings.

Accounting Pronouncements

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the following Accounting Standards Updates (“ASU”) were issued or became
effective:

In October 2012, the FASB issued ASU 2012-06, Subsequent Accounting for an Indemnification Asset Recognized at the
Acquisition Date as a Result of a Government-Assisted Acquisition of a Financial Institution. ASU 2012-06 clarifies that when
areporting entity recognizes an indemnification asset as a result of a government-assisted acquisition of afinancial institution
and there is a subsequent change in the amount of cash flows expected to be collected on the indemnified asset, the reporting
entity should subsequently measure the indemnification asset on the same basis as the underlying loans by taking into account
the contractual limitations of the Loss-Sharing Agreement ("LSA"). For amortization of changes in value, the reporting entity
should use the term of the LSA if it is shorter than the term of the acquired loans. ASU 2012-06 is effective for interim and
annual periods beginning after December 15, 2012. Early adoption is permitted. Based upon the most recent measurement of
expected losses covered under |oss-sharing agreements, adoption of the new guidance is expected to result in an additional $6.2
million of indemnification asset amortization over the remaining life of the loss-sharing agreements.

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-11, Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities (Topic 210). ASU
2011-11 requires an entity to disclose information about offsetting and related arrangements to enable users of its financia
statements to understand the effect of those arrangements on its financial position. ASU 2011-11 is effective for interim and
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013 and should be applied retrospectively for all comparative periods
presented. Subseguent to December 31, 2012, the FASB issued ASU 2013-01 which clarifies the scope of ASU 2011-11.
Adoption of the new guidance is not expected to have a significant impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-05, Presentation of Comprehensive Income (Topic 220). ASU 2011-05
attempts to improve the comparability, consistency, and transparency of financial reporting and to increase the prominence of
items reported in other comprehensive income. The effective date of ASU 2011-05 was the first interim or fiscal period
beginning after December 15, 2011 and should be applied retrospectively. Early adoption was permitted. 1n December 2011,
the FASB issued ASU 2011-11, Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments to the Presentation of Reclassifications of Items
Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-05. ASU 2011-11 deferred the
effective date for certain amendments related to the presentation of reclassification of items out of accumulated other
comprehensive income. The Company early adopted the remaining applicable amendmentsin ASU 2011-05 during 2011 and
the adoption of thisASU had no impact on the Company's financial condition or results of operations. Subsequent to December
31, 2012, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-02, Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive
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Income. The Update requires an entity to provide information about the amounts reclassified out of accumulated other
comprehensive income by component and to present either on the face of the statement where net income is presented, or in the
notes, significant amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income by the respective line items of net
income, but only if the amount reclassified is required to be reclassified to net income in its entirety in the same reporting
period. The amendments are effective for annual and interim reporting periods beginning on or after December 15, 2012. The
Company is currently in the process of evaluating the ASU but does not expect it will have a material impact on the Company's
consolidated financial statements.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-04, Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure
Requirements in U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP") and International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”) (Topic 820). ASU 2011-04 developed common requirements between GAAP and IFRS for measuring fair value and
for disclosing information about fair value measurements. The effective date of ASU 2011-04 will be during interim or annual
period beginning after December 15, 2011 and should be applied prospectively to transactions or modifications of existing
transactions that occur on or after the effective date. Early adoption is not permitted. The Company adopted thisASU during
the current period with no impact on the Company's financial condition or results of operations.

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company is required to maintain an average reserve balance with the Federal Reserve Bank or maintain such reserve
balance in the form of cash. The average required reserve balance for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 was
approximately $28.6 million and $27.0 million, respectively, and was met by holding cash and maintaining an average balance
with the Federal Reserve Bank.

3. Securities

At December 31, 2012 the Company's securities portfolio primarily consisted of securitiesissued by the U.S.
government, U.S. government agencies, U.S. government-sponsored enterprises and state and municipalities. All of the
Company’s mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations are issued by U.S. government agencies and
U.S. government-sponsored enterprises and are implicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government. The Company had no other
issuancesin its portfolio which exceeded ten percent of shareholders' equity.

The following table summarizes the amortized cost, gross unrealized gains and losses and the resulting fair value of
securities available for sale:

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

December 31, 2012 (in thousands)
U.S. government agency and government-sponsored

enterprise mortgage-backed securities and collateralized

mortgage obligations .............. ... ... . $ 561076 $ 16719 $ (5426) $ 572,369
State and municipal securities . ....... .. o 265,070 20,3893 (388) 285,575
U.S. government agency and government-sponsored

enterprisesecurities .. ... 120,085 851 (435) 120,501
U.S. government Securities. . ..., 19,804 39 (15 19,828
Other SeCurities. . ... ... s 3,324 104 (36) 3,392

Total. .o $ 969359 $ 38606 $ (6,300) $ 1,001,665

December 31, 2011
U.S. government agency and government-sponsored

enterprise mortgage-backed securities and collateralized

mortgage obligations . .......... ... .. i $ 678631 $ 19323 $ (20000 $ 695954
State and municipal securities . ........... ... 263,075 22,746 (58) 285,763
U.S. government agency and government-sponsored
eNterpriseSecurities . .. ...t 42 558 505 — 43,063
Othersecurities. . ... 3,296 64 (30) 3,330

Total. .o $ 987560 $ 42638 $ (2,088) $1,028110
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Gross realized losses amounted to $714 thousand, $250 thousand, and $148 thousand for the years ended December 31,
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Gross realized gains amounted to $4.4 million, $384 thousand, and $206 thousand for the
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The following table summarizes the amortized cost and fair
value of securities available for sale by contractual maturity groups:

December 31, 2012
Amortized Cost Fair Value

(in thousands)

Duewithinoneyear. . ...t $ 25062 $ 25,440
Due after one year through fiveyears. .. ........... ... ... ... ... .. 127,971 131,704
Due after fiveyearsthroughtenyears. . . ..................ovvun.. 209,031 215,390
Dueafter tenyears. . . ... oot 603,971 625,739
Other securitieswith no stated maturity ........................... $ 3324 $ 3,392

Total investment securitiesavailable-for-sale .. .................. $ 969,359 $ 1,001,665

The following table summarizes, as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the carrying value of securities pledged as collateral
to secure public deposits, borrowings and other purposes as permitted or required by law:

December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
(in thousands)
To Washington and Oregon State to secure public deposits. .. ........... $ 281,006 $ 225,345
To Federal Home Loan Bank to secureadvances. . ..........ooovvn.. — 91,097
To Federal Reserve Bank to secureborrowings . ...................... 47,634 56,347
Other securitiespledged .. ... 46,090 47,454
Total securitiespledged ascollateral . ................. ... ....... $ 374730 $ 420,243

The following tables show the gross unrealized losses and fair value of the Company’s investments with unrealized losses
that are not deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired, aggregated by investment category and length of time that
individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position at December 31, 2012 and 2011:

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

December 31, 2012 (in thousands)
U.S. government agency and government-

sponsored enterprise mortgage-backed securities

and collateralized mortgage obligations . . ... ..... $ 167,739 $ (5090 $ 12,204 $ (336) $ 179,943 (5,426)
State and municipal securities.................... 20,413 (383) 210 (5) 20,623 (388)
U.S. government agency and government-

sponsored enterprise securities . ... ............. 56,600 (435) — — 56,600 (435)
U.S. government securities . ............oeevnn.. 9,914 (15) _ _ 9,914 (15)
Othersecurities . ...t _ _ 964 (36) 964 (36)

Total .. $ 254,666 $ (5923) $ 13378 $ (377) $ 268,044 $  (6,300)

December 31, 2011
U.S. government agency and government-

sponsored enterprise mortgage-backed securities

and collateralized mortgage obligations . ... ...... $ 238875 $ (1999 $ 19% % () $ 239071 $ (2,000)
State and municipal securities. ................... 3,820 (24) 950 (34 4,770 (58)
Other SecUrities . ....oov i _ _ 970 (30) 970 (30)

Total ... $ 242,695 $ (2023 % 2,116 $ (65) $ 2443811 $  (2,088)
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At December 31, 2012, there were 17 U.S. government agency and government-sponsored enterprise mortgage-backed
securities and collateralized mortgage obligations securities in an unrealized loss position, of which one was in a continuous
loss position for 12 months or more. The declinein fair value is attributable to changes in interest rates relative to where these
investments fall within the yield curve and their individual characteristics. Because the Company does not currently intend to
sell these securities nor does the Company consider it more likely than not that it will be required to sell these securities before
the recovery of amortized cost basis, which may be maturity, the Company does not consider these investments to be other-
than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2012.

At December 31, 2012, there were 14 state and municipal government securitiesin an unrealized loss position, of which
onewas in a continuous loss position for 12 months or more. The unrealized losses on state and municipal securities were
caused by interest rate changes or widening of market spreads subsequent to the purchase of the individual securities.
Management monitors published credit ratings of these securities for adverse changes. As of December 31, 2012 none of the
rated obligations of state and local government entities held by the Company had an adverse credit rating. Because the credit
quality of these securities are investment grade and the Company does not currently intend to sell these securities nor does the
Company consider it more likely than not that it will be required to sell these securities before the recovery of amortized cost
basis, which may be maturity, the Company does not consider these investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at
December 31, 2012.

At December 31, 2012, there were five U.S. government agency and government-sponsored enterprise securitiesin an
unrealized loss position, of which none were in a continuous loss position for 12 months or more. The declinein fair valueis
attributable to changes in interest rates relative to where these investments fall within the yield curve and their individual
characteristics. Because the Company does not currently intend to sell these securities nor does the Company consider it more
likely than not that it will be required to sell these securities before the recovery of amortized cost basis, which may be
maturity, the Company does not consider these investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2012.

At December 31, 2012, there was one U.S. government security in an unrealized loss position, which was not in a
continuous loss position for 12 months or more. The decline in fair value is attributable to changes in interest rates relative to
where these investments fall within the yield curve and their individual characteristics. Because the Company does not
currently intend to sell this security nor does the Company consider it more likely than not that it will be required to sell this
security before the recovery of amortized cost basis, which may be maturity, the Company does not consider this investment to
be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2012.

At December 31, 2012, there was one other security, a mortgage-backed securities fund in a continuous unrealized loss
position for 12 months or more. The decline in fair value is attributable to changesin interest rates and the additional risk
premium investors are demanding for investment securities with these characteristics. The Company does not consider this
investment to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2012 asit has the intent and ability to hold the investment
for sufficient timeto alow for recovery in the market value.

Securities Deemed to be Other-Than-Temporarily Impaired

During the fourth quarter of 2012, the Company received full payment on a municipal bond that was determined to be
other-than-temporarily impaired during 2011 for which the Company recorded impairment of $3.0 millionin 2011. The prior
year impairment and the current year gain related to this security are recorded in the line item Investment securities gains
(losses), net in the Consolidated Statements of Income.
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4. Noncovered Loans
Noncovered loans include loans originated through our branch network and loan departments as well as acquired loans that
are not subject to FDIC loss-share agreements.

Thefollowing is an analysis of the noncovered loan portfolio by major types of loans (net of unearned income):

December 31, December 31,
2012 2011

(in thousands)

Noncovered loans:

Commercial BUSINESS . .. ..ot e $ 1155158 $ 1,031,721
Real estate:

One-to-four family residential ........................... 43,922 64,491
Commercial and multifamily residential. .. ................. 1,061,201 998,165
Totalreal estate. .. ..o 1,105,123 1,062,656

Real estate construction:
One-to-four family residential ........................... 50,602 50,208
Commercial and multifamily residential. .. ................. 65,101 36,768
Total real estate construction. . ...................... 115,703 86,976
CONSUMES . . ot e e e 157,493 183,235
Less: Net unearned income. . ..., (7,767) (16,217)
Total noncovered loans, net of unearnedincome. .. .............. 2,525,710 2,348,371
Less: Allowancefor loanandleaselosses . ................. (52,244) (53,041)
Total noncoveredloans, net . ...t $ 2473466 $ 2,295,330
Loansheldforsale. . ... e e e $ 2563 $ 2,148

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company had no material foreign activities. Substantially all of the Company’s loans
and unfunded commitments are geographically concentrated in its service areas within the states of Washington and Oregon.

The Company has granted loans to officers and directors of the Company and related interests. These |oans are made on the
same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparabl e transactions with unrelated persons
and do not involve more than the normal risk of collectability. The aggregate dollar amount of these |oans was $14.2 million and
$9.0 million at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. During 2012, advances on related party |oans were $7.7 million and
repayments totaled $2.5 million.

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, $443.4 million and $462.0 million of commercial and residential real estate loans were
pledged as collateral on Federal Home Loan Bank advances. The Company has also pledged $13.8 million and $351.3 million of
commercial loans to the Federal Reserve Bank for additional borrowing capacity at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Nonaccrual loans totaled $37.4 million and $53.5 million at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The amount of interest
income foregone as a result of these loans being placed on nonaccrual status totaled $3.4 million for 2012, $5.3 million for 2011 and
$6.4 million for 2010. There were no loans 90 days past due and still accruing interest as of December 31, 2012 and December 31,
2011. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, there were $346 thousand and $2.0 million, respectively, of commitments of additional
funds for loans accounted for on a nonaccrual basis.
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The following is an analysis of noncovered, nonaccrual |oans as of December 31, 2012 and 2011

Noncovered loans:
Commercial business:

Read estate:

One-to-four family residential ...............

Commercial and multifamily residential:
Commercial land. . ....................
Incomeproperty ............oiii....
Owneroccupied .........coovvvniin..

Real estate construction:
One-to-four family residential:

Land and acquisition. ..................
Residential construction ................
Commercial and multifamily residential:
Incomeproperty ......................
Owneroccupied . ...............oun...
CONSUMES. . ..o

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Recorded Unpaid Principal Recorded Unpaid Principal
Investment Balance Investment Balance
Nonaccrual Nonaccrual Nonaccrual Nonaccrual

Loans Loans Loans Loans

(in thousands)

9037 $ 17821 $ 10124 % 16,820
262 262 119 719
2,349 2,672 2,696 3,011
4,076 7,491 3,739 7,230
8,520 10,815 6,775 9,265
6,608 7,741 8,971 10,932
3,084 6,704 7,799 16,703
1,816 2,431 2,986 5,316
— — 7,067 14,912
1,643 1,940 3,207 3,960
3739 $ 57877 $ 53483 $ 88,868
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Thefollowing is an aging of the recorded investment of the noncovered loan portfolio as of December 31, 2012 and 2011:

30-59 60 - 89
Current Days Days Total Nonaccrual
Loans Past Due Past Due Past Due Loans Total Loans
December 31, 2012 (in thousands)
Noncovered loans:
Commercial business:
Secured .. ... $ 1,091,770 $ 4,259 $ 1,485 $ 5,744 $ 9,037 $ 1,106,551
Unsecured . .......coviieeennnnn... 44,817 252 12 264 262 45,343
Real estate:
One-to-four family residential . ............. 41,508 193 142 335 2,349 44,192
Commercia and multifamily residential:
Commercid land. ................... 42,818 311 122 433 4,076 47,327
Incomeproperty .................. 603,339 2,726 227 2,953 8,520 614,812
Owner occupied ............oovn... 387,525 1,040 — 1,040 6,608 395,173
Real estate construction:
One-to-four family residential:
Land and acquisition. . ............... 15,412 — — — 3,084 18,496
Residential construction .............. 29,848 — — — 1,816 31,664
Commercia and multifamily residential:
Income property .................. .. 28,342 — — — — 28,342
Owner occupied . ...........oovn... 36,211 — — — — 36,211
CONSUMEY & oottt ettt 155,207 387 362 749 1,643 157,599
Total. .o $ 2,476,797 $ 9,168 $ 2,350 $ 11,518 $ 37,395 $ 2525710
- 3-8  e0-89
Current Days Days Total Nonaccrual
Loans Past Due Past Due Past Due Loans Total Loans
December 31, 2011 (in thousands)
Noncovered loans:
Commercial business:
Secured .. ... $ 966,563 $ 1,741 $ 2,989 $ 4,730 $ 10,124 $ 981417
Unsecured . ......oovvieiiennennn. 46,880 407 — 407 119 47,406
Real estate:
One-to-four family residential . ............. 60,764 603 — 603 2,696 64,063
Commercia and multifamily residential:
Commercial land. . .................. 46,161 781 — 781 3,739 50,681
Income property .................. .. 524,225 2,872 121 2,993 6,775 533,993
Owner occupied ............oovn... 394,691 829 298 1,127 8,971 404,789
Real estate construction:
One-to-four family residential:
Land and acquisition. . ............... 17,249 153 — 153 7,799 25,201
Residential construction.............. 19,555 1,390 — 1,390 2,986 23,931
Commercial and multifamily residential:
Income property .................... 13,810 — — — 7,067 20,877
Owner occupied ..........cooovnnnn. 12,790 — — — — 12,790
CONSUMEY © . oottt 179,753 141 122 263 3,207 183,223
Total. .o $ 2,282,441 $ 8,917 $ 3,530 $ 12,447 $ 53,483 $ 2,348,371
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Thefollowing is an analysis of impaired loans (see Note 1) as of December 31, 2012 and 2011.:

Recorded Impaired Loans With Impaired Loans Without
Investment Recorded Allowance Recorded Allowance
Recorded Investment of Loans
of Loans Individually
Collectively Measured Measured for Unpaid Unpaid
for Contingency Specific Recorded Principal Related Recorded Principal
Provision Impairment Investment Balance Allowance Investment Balance
December 31, 2012 (in thousands)
Noncovered loans:
Commercial business:
Secured ... $ 1,101,689 $ 4862 % 690 $ 1994 3 113 $ 4,172 $ 6,769
Unsecured ...................... 45,251 92 92 92 92 — —
Real estate:
One-to-four family residential . ........... 42,103 2,089 345 364 112 1,744 1,902
Commercia and multifamily residential:
Commercial land . ................ 44,672 2,655 — — — 2,655 5,727
Income property. ................. 606,656 8,156 2,670 2,727 1,040 5,486 7,860
Owner occupied. . ................ 383,269 11,904 608 610 38 11,296 14,642
Real estate construction:
One-to-four family residential:
Land and acquisition . ............. 15,677 2,819 — — — 2,819 4,813
Residential construction ........... 29,707 1,957 — — — 1,957 2,570
Commercia and multifamily residential:
Incomeproperty. ................. 28,342 — — — — — —
Owner occupied. ................. 36,211 — — — — — —
CoNsSUMEr ... ...t 157,472 127 — — — 127 127
Total ..o $ 2,491,049 $ 34661 $ 4,405 $ 5787 $ 1395  $ 30,256 $ 44,410
Recorded Impaired Loans With Impaired Loans Without
Investment Recorded Allowance Recorded Allowance
Recorded Investment of Loans
of Loans Individually
Collectively Measured Measured for Unpaid Unpaid
for Contingency Specific Recorded Principal Related Recorded Principal
Provision Impairment Investment Balance Allowance Investment Balance
December 31, 2011 (in thousands)
Noncovered loans:
Commercial business:
Secured ... $ 972531 $ 88386 $ 2,926 $ 2,927 $ 954 $ 5,960 $ 12,109
Unsecured .........coovvvnnnn. 47,309 97 97 97 97 — —
Real estate:
One-to-four family residential . ........... 61,584 2,479 582 590 96 1,897 2,136
Commercial and multifamily residential:
Commercid land . ................ 46,882 3,799 — e — 3,799 6,773
Incomeproperty. ................. 527,362 6,631 687 759 63 5,944 7,700
Owner occupied. . ................ 390,225 14,564 274 274 185 14,290 18,524
Real estate construction:
One-to-four family residentia
Land and acquisition ... ........... 17,813 7,388 450 948 — 6,938 11,978
Residentia congtruction .. ......... 18,847 5,084 59 1,509 59 5,025 5,116
Commercial and multifamily residential:
Income property. ................. 13,810 7,067 — — — 7,067 14,947
Owner occupied. . ................ 12,790 — — — — — —
CONSUMEN . . ..ot 180,930 2,293 151 225 30 2,142 2,639

Total ... $ 2,290,083 $ 58288 $ 5226 $ 7329 $ 1484 $ 53062 $ 81922
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The following table provides additional information on impaired loans for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.:

Year ended December 31, 2012 Year Ended December 31, 2011
Average Interest Average Interest
Recorded Recognized Recorded Recognized
Investment on Investment on
Impaired Loans Impaired Loans Impaired Loans Impaired Loans
Noncovered loans; (in thousands)
Commercial business
Secured. ... $ 8,978 $ 9 $ 15,578 $ 511
Unsecured. . ..., 113 6 138 —
Real estate:
One-to-four family residential . ................. 2,130 — 2,494 —
Commercial & multifamily residential
Commercial land. . ....................... 3,124 — 4,263 —
Incomeproperty ... 7,895 77 8,881 59
Owneroccupied . .........coviiinnnn.n. 13,315 1,004 15,254 18
Real estate construction:
One-to-four family residential
Land and acquisition. ..................... 4,465 — 8,972 116
Residential construction................... 3,223 11 4,535 —
Commercial & multifamily residential
Incomeproperty ...t 3,169 — 7,065 —
Owneroccupied .. ......oviiiinein. — — — —
CoONSUMEY . ..o 1,112 7 3,880 15
Total ... $ 47,524 $ 1,114 % 71,060 $ 719

The average recorded investment in impaired loans for the year ended December 31, 2010 was $102.6 million. There was no
interest income recognized on impaired loans for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Thefollowing is an analysis of loans classified as Troubled Debt Restructurings ("TDR") for the years ended December 31,
2012 and 2011:

Year ended December 31, 2012 Year Ended December 31, 2011
Pre- Post- Pre- Post-
Modification Modification Modification Modification
Number of Outstanding Qutstanding Number of Qutstanding Qutstanding
TDR Recorded Recorded TDR Recorded Recorded
Modifications Investment Investment Modifications Investment Investment
Noncovered loans: (dollars in thousands)
Commercial business:
Secured. ... 1 % 195 $ 194 6 $ 659 $ 659
Real estate
One-to-four family residentid . . .. .. — — — 1 369 369
Commercial and multifamily
residential:
Income property. . ............. 1 4,279 2,650 2 1,280 1,280
Real estate construction:
One-to-four family residential:
Residential construction ........ — — — 1 36 36
Total. ... 2 % 4474 % 2,844 10 $ 2,344 $ 2,344
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The Company's loans classified as TDR are loans that have been modified or the borrower has been granted special
concessions due to financial difficulties, that if not for the challenges of the borrower, the Company would not otherwise consider.
The Company had commitments to lend $236 thousand and $535 thousand of additional funds on loans classified as TDR as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The TDR modifications or concessions are made to increase the likelihood that these
borrowers with financia difficultieswill be able to satisfy their debt obligations as amended. Credit losses for |oans classified as
TDR are measured on the same basis asimpaired loans. For impaired loans, an allowance is established when the collateral value
less selling costs (or discounted cash flows or observable market price) of the impaired loan islower than the recorded investment
of that loan. The Company did not have any loans modified as TDR that have defaulted during the years ended December 31, 2012
and 2011.

5. Allowance for Noncovered Loan and Lease Losses and Unfunded Commitments and Letters of Credit

We maintain an allowance for loan and lease losses (“ALLL") to absorb losses inherent in the loan portfolio. The size of
the ALLL isdetermined through quarterly assessments of the probable estimated |osses in the loan portfolio. Our methodol ogy
for making such assessments and determining the adequacy of the ALLL includes the following key elements:

1. General valuation allowance consistent with the Contingencies topic of the FASB ASC.

2. Classified lossreserves on specific relationships. Specific allowances for identified problem loans are determined in
accordance with the Receivabl es topic of the FASB ASC.

3. Theunallocated allowance provides for other factorsinherent in our loan portfolio that may not have been
contemplated in the general and specific components of the allowance. This unallocated amount generally
comprises less than 5% of the allowance. The unallocated amount is reviewed quarterly based on trendsin credit
losses, the results of credit reviews and overall economic trends.

The general valuation allowance is systematically calculated quarterly using quantitative and qualitative information
about specific loan classes. The minimum required level an entity develops a methodology to determine its allowance for loan
and lease losses is by general categories of loans, such as commercial business, real estate, and consumer. However, the
Company’s methodol ogy in determining its allowance for loan and |ease lossesis prepared in a more detailed manner at the
loan class level, utilizing specific categories such as commercial business secured, commercial business unsecured, real estate
commercial land, and real estate income property multifamily. The quantitative information uses historical losses from a
specific loan class and incorporates the loan’s risk rating migration from origination to the point of loss based upon the
consideration of an appropriate look back period.

A loan'srisk rating is primarily determined based upon the borrower’s ability to fulfill its debt obligation from a cash
flow perspective. In the event there is financial deterioration of the borrower, the borrower’s other sources of income or
repayment are also considered, including recent appraisal values for collateral dependent loans. The qualitative information
takes into account general economic and business conditions affecting our marketplace, seasoning of the loan portfolio,
duration of the business cycle, etc. to ensure our methodol ogies reflect the current economic environment and other factors as
using historical loss information exclusively may not give an accurate estimate of inherent losses within the Company’sloan
portfalio.

When aloan is deemed to be impaired, the Company hasto determine if a specific valuation allowance is required for
that loan. The specific valuation allowance is areserve, calculated at the individual loan level, for each loan determined to be
both, impaired and containing a value less than its recorded investment. The Company measures the impairment based on the
discounted expected future cash flows, observable market price, or the fair value of the collateral less selling costsif theloanis
collateral dependent or if foreclosure is probable. The specific reserve for each loan is equal to the difference between the
recorded investment in the loan and its determined impairment value.

TheALLL isincreased by provisions for loan and lease losses (“provision”) charged to expense, and is reduced by loans
charged off, net of recoveries. While the Company’s management believes the best information available is used to determine
the ALLL, changesin market conditions could result in adjustments to the ALLL, affecting net income, if circumstances differ
from the assumptions used in determining the ALLL.

We have used the same methodology for ALLL calculations during 2012, 2011 and 2010. Adjustments to the percentages
of the ALLL allocated to loan categories are made based on trends with respect to delinquencies and problem loans within each
class of loans. The Company reviewsthe ALLL quantitative and qualitative methodology on a quarterly basis and makes
adjustments when appropriate. The Company continues to strive towards maintaining a conservative approach to credit quality
and will continue to prudently adjust our ALLL as necessary in order to maintain adequate reserves. The Company carefully
monitors the loan portfolio and continues to emphasize the importance of credit quality.
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Onceit is determined that al or a portion of aloan balance is uncollectable, and the amount can be reasonably estimated,
the uncollectable portion of the loan is charged-off.

The following tables show a detailed analysis of the allowance for loan and |ease losses for noncovered loans for the
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010:

Beginning Provision Ending Specific General
Balance Charge-offs  Recoveries  (Recovery) Balance Reserve Allocation
Year ended December 31, 2012 (in thousands)
Noncovered |oans:
Commercial business:
Secured. . ... $ 24745 $ (10,029) $ 1354 $ 11200 $ 27270 $ 113 ¢ 27,157
Unsecured ...........o.uvne. 689 (144) 194 14 753 92 661
Real estate:
One-to-four family residential . ... ... 654 (549) 285 304 694 112 582
Commercial and multifamily
residential:
Commercial land . ............ 488 (526) 63 435 460 — 460
Income property. ............. 9,551 (4,030) 905 4,607 11,033 1,040 9,993
Owner occupied. ............. 9,606 (918) 631 (2,957) 6,362 38 6,324
Redl estate construction:
One-to-four family residential:
Land and acquisition .......... 2,331 (989) 1,059 (1,230) 1,171 — 1,171
Residentia construction. .. ... .. 864 (617) 429 (41) 635 — 635
Commercia and multifamily
residential:
Income property. . ............ 665 (93) 66 (322 316 — 316
Owner occupied. . ............ 35 — — 67 102 — 102
CONSUMEN . .+ v e et e 2,719 (2,534) 1,171 1,081 2,437 — 2,437
Unalocated ..............covviunen... 694 — — 317 1,011 — 1,011
Total ... $ 53041 $ (20,429) $ 6,157 $ 13475 $ 52244 $ 1,395 $ 50,849
Beginning Provision Ending Specific General
Balance Charge-offs  Recoveries  (Recovery) Balance Reserve Allocation
Year Ended December 31, 2011 (in thousands)
Noncovered |oans:
Commercial business:
Secured. .. ...l $ 21811 $ (7,270) $ 1154 $ 9050 $ 24745 $ 954 $ 23791
Unsecured .................. 738 (639) 1,444 (854) 689 97 592
Real estate:
One-to-four family residential . ...... 1,100 (717) 80 191 654 96 558
Commercial and multifamily
residential:
Commercia land . ............ 634 (660) 12 502 488 — 488
Income property. ............. 15,210 (1,407) 414 (4,666) 9,551 63 9,488
Owner occupied. ............. 9,692 (1,620) 33 1,501 9,606 185 9,421
Real estate construction:
One-to-four family residential:
Land and acquisition .......... 3,769 (1,419) 1,978 (1,997) 2,331 — 2,331
Residentia construction. .. ... .. 2,292 (1,068) 113 (473) 864 59 805
Commercia and multifamily
residential:
Income property.............. 274 (2,213) — 2,604 665 — 665
Owner occupied. . ............ 70 — — (35) 35 — 35
COnSUMEY . ...t 2,120 (3,918) 351 4,166 2,719 30 2,689
Unalocated ..............ccvvinnnn... 3,283 — — (2,589) 694 — 694
Total ... $ 60993 $ (20,931) $ 5579 $ 7400 $ 53041 $ 1484 $ 51557



Beginning Provision Ending Specific General

Balance Charge-offs  Recoveries  (Recovery) Balance Reserve Allocation
Year ended December 31, 2010 (in thousands)
Noncovered loans:
Commercial business:
Secured. ... $ 20409 $ (12,779) $ 1218 $ 12963 $ 21811 $ 600 $ 21211
Unsecured .................. 1,560 (2,200) 1,171 107 738 75 663
Redl estate:
One-to-four family residential . ... ... 1,072 (406) 15 419 1,100 — 1,100
Commercia and multifamily
residential:
Commercia land . ............ 664 (2,165) — 2,135 634 — 634
Income property. ............. 9,860 (1,969) 124 7,195 15,210 59 15,151
Owner occupied. ............. 6,690 (2,039) 2 5,039 9,692 — 9,692
Real estate construction:
One-to-four family residential:
Land and acquisition . ......... 5,711 (8,409) 1,199 5,268 3,769 3 3,766
Residential construction. . ... ... 2,304 (2,447) 474 1,961 2,292 62 2,230
Commercia and multifamily
residential:
Income property. ............. 2,453 (3,107) 775 153 274 175 99
Owner occupied. . ............ 36 — — 34 70 — 70
CONSUMES . .. oo vt 1,282 (3,982) 649 4,171 2,120 — 2,120
Unalocated ...............coinvn... 1,437 — — 1,846 3,283 — 3,283
Total ... $ 53478 $ (39,403) $ 5627 $ 41291 $ 60993 $ 974 $ 60,019

Changes in the allowance for unfunded commitments and letters of credit are summarized as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)
Beginningbalance ......... ... $ 1535 $ 1,165 $ 775
Net changesin the allowance for unfunded commitments and letters
of Credit. ... 380 370 390
Endingbalance. . .......... . $ 1915 $ 1535 $ 1,165
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Risk Elements

The extension of credit in the form of loans to individuals and businesses is one of our principal commerce activities. Our
policies and applicable laws and regulations require risk analysis as well as ongoing portfolio and credit management. We
manage our credit risk through lending limit constraints, credit review, approval policies and extensive, ongoing internal
monitoring. We also manage credit risk through diversification of the loan portfolio by type of loan, type of industry, type of
borrower and by limiting the aggregation of debt to a single borrower.

The monitoring process for the loan portfolio includes periodic reviews of individual loans with risk ratings assigned to
each loan. Based on the analysis, loans are given arisk rating of 1-10 based on the following criteria:

e ratingsof 1-3indicate minimal to low credit risk,

« ratings of 4-5 indicate an average credit risk with adequate repayment capacity when prolonged periods of adversity
do not exist,

» rating of 6 indicates higher than average risk requiring greater than routine attention by bank personnel due to
conditions affecting the borrower, the borrower's industry or economic environment,

e rating of 7 indicates potential weaknesses that, if left uncorrected, may result in deterioration of the repayment
prospects for the asset or in the Company's credit position at some future date,

e rating of 8indicatesalossis possibleif loan weaknesses are not corrected,

« rating of 9indicateslossis highly probable; however, the amount of loss has not yet been determined,

* andarating of 10 indicates the loan is uncollectable, and when identified is charged-off.

Loanswith arisk rating of 1-6 are considered Pass loans and |oans with risk ratings of 7, 8, 9 and 10 are considered
Specia Mention, Substandard, Doubtful and Loss, respectively. Loans with arisk rating of Substandard or worse are reported
as classified loansin our allowance for loan and lease losses analysis. We review these |oans to assess the ability of our
borrowersto service al interest and principal obligations and, as aresult, the risk rating may be adjusted accordingly. Risk
ratings are reviewed and updated whenever appropriate, with more periodic reviews as the risk and dollar value of loss on the
loan increases. In the event full collection of principal and interest is not reasonably assured, the loan is appropriately
downgraded and, if warranted, placed on nonaccrua status even though the loan may be current asto principal and interest
payments. Additionally, we assess whether an impairment of aloan warrants specific reserves or awrite-down of the loan.
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Thefollowing is an analysis of the credit quality of our noncovered loan portfolio as of December 31, 2012 and 2011.:

December 31, 2012

Noncovered loans:
Commercial business:

Read estate:

One-to-four family residential .........
Commercial and multifamily residential:
Commercial land. . ..............
Incomeproperty ................
Owner occupied ................

Real estate construction:
One-to-four family residential:

Land and acquisition. ............
Residentia construction ..........
Commercial and multifamily residential:

Less:

December 31, 2011

Noncovered loans:
Commercial business:

Real estate:

One-to-four family residential .........
Commercial and multifamily residential:
Commercial land. . ..............
Income property . ...............
Owner occupied ................

Real estate construction:
One-to-four family residential:

Land and acquisition. ............
Residential construction ..........
Commercial and multifamily residential:
Incomeproperty ................

Owner occupied . ...............
CONSUMES. . ..ot

Less:

Special
Pass Mention Substandard  Doubtful Loss Total
(in thousands)
$ 1,011,722 $ 29222 $ 65607 $ — — $ 1,106,551
44,788 26 529 — — 45,343
40,346 406 3,440 — — 44,192
43,401 — 3,926 — — 47,327
581,671 3,688 29,453 — — 614,812
357,063 1,848 36,262 — — 395,173
12,741 1,351 4,404 — — 18,496
28,705 1,142 1,817 —_ — 31,664
28,342 — — — — 28,342
36,211 — — — — 36,211
151,049 75 6,475 — — 157,599
$ 2,336,039 $ 37,758 $ 151,913 $ — — 2,525,710
52,244
NONCOVErE |08NS, NMEL . . ..ottt e e et e e et e e e $ 2,473,466
Special
Pass Mention Substandard  Doubtful Loss Total
(in thousands)

$ 9088383 $ 18,703 $ 53447 $ 384 — $ 981,417
46,732 318 356 — — 47,406
58,517 2,040 3,506 — — 64,063
44,166 5 6,510 — — 50,681
492,922 16,002 25,069 — — 533,993
351,928 13,590 39,266 — 5 404,789
12,349 2,684 10,168 — — 25,201
16,764 1,649 5,518 — — 23,931
12,812 — 8,065 — — 20,877
12,790 — — — — 12,790
176,304 859 6,060 — — 183,223
$ 2134167 $ 55850 $ 157,965 $ 384 5 2,348,371
53,041
$ 2205330




6. Noncovered Other Real Estate Owned

The following table sets forth activity in noncovered OREO for the period:

December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
(in thousands)

Noncovered OREO:

Balance, beginningof period . ......... ... .. L. $ 22893 $ 30,991

Transfersin, net of write-downs ($205 and $315, respectively) . .. .. 7,461 8,834

OREOQ improvements. . ..o v vttt e e e e e 11 730

Additional OREO write-downs . . ..., (4,816) (5,641)

Proceeds from sale of OREO property. .. .....covvivvnnnn.. (15,689) (12,278)

Netgainonsaleof OREO ...t 816 257
Tota noncovered OREO, endof period .. ......................... $ 10676 % 22,893

7. Covered Assets and FDIC Loss-sharing Asset
Covered Assets

Covered assets consist of loans and OREO acquired in certain FDIC-assisted acquisitions during 2010 and 2011, for
which the Bank entered into loss-sharing agreements, whereby the FDIC will cover a substantial portion of future losses on
loans (and related unfunded loan commitments), OREO and certain accrued interest on loans during the terms of the
agreements. Under the terms of the loss-sharing agreements, the FDIC will absorb 80% of losses and share in 80% of loss
recoveries up to specified amounts. With respect to loss-sharing agreements for two acquisitions completed in 2010, after those
specified amounts, the FDIC will absorb 95% of losses and share in 95% of |oss recoveries. The loss-sharing provisions of the
agreements for commercia and single-family mortgage loans are in effect for five and ten years, respectively, from the
acquisition dates and the loss recovery provisions are in effect for eight and ten years, respectively, from the acquisition dates.

Ten years and forty-five days after the acquisition dates, the Bank shall pay to the FDIC a clawback in the event the
losses from the acquisitions fail to reach stated levels. The amount of the clawback is determined by a formula specified in each
individual loss-sharing agreement. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the net present value of the Bank’s estimated clawback
lighility is $3.6 million and $3.7 million, respectively, which isincluded in other liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Thefollowing is an analysis of our covered |oans, net of related allowance for losses as of December 31, 2012 and 2011:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Covered loans: (dollars in thousands)
COMMENCIal DUSINESS. . . ottt e e e e e e e $ 125,373 $ 195,737
Real estate:
One-to-four family residential. . . ... ...t 57,150 79,328
Commercia and multifamily residential. . . ... 233,106 311,308
Total rEaAl BStAE . . . ..ottt 290,256 390,636
Real estate construction:
One-to-four family residential. . ... ... e 25,398 54,402
Commercia and multifamily residential. . . ... ... e 15,251 23,661
Total real estate CONSITUCHION. . . . ..ottt e et e e ettt 40,649 78,063
CONSUIMIEY . .« o ottt ettt et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 44,516 56,877
Subtotal of COVEred l0aNS. . . ..ottt 500,794 721,313
Less:
Valuation discount resulting from acquisitionaccounting. . . ..., 79,401 184,440
AllowanCe for [0aN 10SSES. . . . . .. v vt 30,056 4,944
Covered |loans, net of valuation discounts and allowancefor loanlosses. ................ $ 391,337 $ 531,929

Acquired impaired |oans are accounted for under ASC 310-30 and initially measured at fair value based on expected
future cash flows over the life of the loans. Acquired loans that have common risk characteristics are aggregated into pools.
The Company remeasures contractual and expected cash flows, at the pool-level, on aquarterly basis.
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Contractual cash flows are calculated based upon the loan pool terms after applying a prepayment factor. Calculation of
the applied prepayment factor for contractual cash flows is the same as described below for expected cash flows.

Inputs to the determination of expected cash flows include cumulative default and prepayment data as well asloss
severity and recovery lag information. Cumulative default and prepayment data are calculated via a transition matrix. The
transition matrix isamatrix of probability values that specifies the probability of aloan pool transitioning into a particular
delinquency state (e.g. 0-30 days past due, 31 to 60 days, etc.) given its delinquency state at the remeasurement date. Loss
severity factors are based upon either actual charge-off data within the loan pools or industry averages and recovery lags are
based upon the collateral within the loan pools.

Acquired impaired loans are also subject to the Company’s internal and external credit review and are risk rated using the
same criteria as loans originated by the Company. However, risk ratings are not a clear indicator of losses on acquired loans as
the loans were acquired with a significant discount and a majority of the losses are recoverable from the FDIC under the loss-
sharing agreements.

L osses attributable to draws on acquired loans, advanced subsequent to the loan acquisition date, are accounted for under
ASC 450-20 and those amounts are al so subject to the Company’sinternal and external credit review. An allowance for loan
lossesis estimated in a similar manner as the originated loan portfolio, and a provision for loan losses is charged to earnings as
necessary.

The excess of cash flows expected to be collected over theinitial fair value of acquired impaired loansisreferred to as
the accretable yield and is accreted into interest income over the estimated life of the acquired loans using the effective yield
method. Other adjustments to the accretable yield include changesin the estimated remaining life of the acquired loans,
changes in expected cash flows and changes of indices for acquired loans with variable interest rates.

The following table shows the changes in accretable yield for acquired loans for the years ended December 31, 2012,
2011, and 2010:

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)
Balance at beginningof period . .................. ... $ 259,669 $ 256572 $ —
Additions resulting from acquisitions. .. ........ ... ... ool — 59,810 122,705
ACCIELON . . oo (86,671) (90,378) (45,956)
DiSPOSAlS . - o vt (12,856) (31,483) (9,014)
Reclassifications from nonaccretable difference. .. ................ 6,746 65,148 188,837
Balanceatendof period . ... $ 166,888 $ 259669 $ 256,572

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company recorded a provision for losses on covered loans of $25.9
million. Of this amount, $29.4 million was impairment calculated in accordance with ASC 310-30 and $3.5 million was a
provision recapture to adjust the allowance for loss cal culated under ASC 450-20 for draws on acquired loans. The impact to
earnings of the $25.9 million of provision recapture for covered loans was substantially offset through noninterest income by an
increase in the FDIC loss-sharing asset. For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company recorded a provision recapture
for loan losses of $1.6 million which was partially offset by a decrease to the FDIC loss-sharing asset and for the year ended
December 31, 2010, the Company recorded a provision for losses on covered loans of $6.1 million which was partially offset
by an increase to the FDIC loss-sharing asset.

The changesin the ALLL for covered loans for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010 are summarized as
follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)
Balanceat beginningof year. ............. ... i $ 4944 3 6,055 $ —
Loanscharged off ........ .. ... i (5,112) (1,488) —
RECOVEITES . . .ttt 4,332 2,025 —
Provisionchargedtoexpense ..., 25,892 (1,648) 6,055
Balanceatendofyear................. ... .. ... .. $ 30,056 $ 4944 % 6,055




Thefollowing is an analysis of the credit quality of our covered loan portfolio as of December 31, 2012 and 2011

Special
Pass Mention Substandard Doubtful Loss Total
December 31, 2012 (in thousands)
Covered loans:
Commercial business:
Secured. ... .. $ 71621 $ 1823 $ 45150 $ — $ — $ 118,594
Unsecured. ...........ooovunn.. 4,988 — 1,791 — — 6,779
Red estate:
One-to-four family residential . . ....... 44,782 1,344 11,024 — — 57,150
Commercial and multifamily residential:
Commercia land ............... 16,336 — 10,292 — — 26,628
Incomeproperty ................ 81,205 864 23,315 — — 105,384
Owner occupied . ............... 82,222 3,318 15,554 — — 101,094
Real estate construction:
One-to-four family residential:
Land and acquisition ............ 4,817 3,273 5,743 — — 13,833
Residentia construction.......... 6,050 — 5,515 — — 11,565
Commercial and multifamily residential:
Incomeproperty ................ 4,419 — 7,901 — — 12,320
Owner occupied . ............... 1,107 — 1,824 — — 2,931
CONSUMEY ..ottt 38,973 381 5,162 — — 44,516
Total ... $ 356520 $ 11,003 $ 133271 $ — 3 — 500,794
Less: -
Valuation discount resulting from acquisitionaccounting . ... 79,401
AlloWwanCefor [0an [0SSES . . . ..o e e 30,056
CoVErEd [0aNS, NEL . . .ottt e e e e $ 391,337
Special
Pass Mention Substandard Doubtful Loss Total
December 31, 2011 (in thousands)
Covered loans:
Commercial business:
Secured........ ..o $ 103472 $ 6239 $ 73793 $ 1209 $ 1 $ 184,714
Unsecured. . ................... 7,608 741 2,659 15 — 11,023
Real estate:
One-to-four family residential. . ....... 56,948 2,210 20,170 — — 79,328
Commercial and multifamily residential:
Commercialland . .............. 21,947 1,213 21,027 — — 44,187
Income property . ............... 109,339 4,013 35,567 — — 148,919
Owner occupied . ............... 89,555 3,673 24,974 — — 118,202
Real estate construction:
One-to-four family residential:
Land and acquisition ............ 4,834 1,535 17,646 1,289 — 25,304
Residential construction. ......... 8,264 371 20,463 — — 29,098
Commercial and multifamily residential:
Incomeproperty .. .............. 2,928 2,779 13,657 — — 19,364
Owner occupied . ............... 1,142 — 3,155 — — 4,297
CONSUMEY ..ottt 48,067 255 8,150 357 48 56,877
Total ... $ 454104 $ 23029 $ 241,261 $ 2870 $ 49 721,313
Less. -
Valuation discount resulting from acquisition acCoUNting. . . . ... ..ottt 184,440
AllOWaNCe for 10aN 10SSES . . . . oo e 4,944
Covered 10aNS, NEL . ... it e e $ 531,929



The Company did not acquire any loans accounted for under ASC 310-30 during 2012. The following table shows loans
acquired during 2011 for which it was probable at acquisition that all contractually required payments would not be collected:

First Heritage

Bank Summit Bank
May 27, 2011 May 20, 2011
(in thousands)
Contractually required payments of interest and principal ............... $ 151611 $ 127,823
Nonaccretabledifference. . .......... ... i i (34,052) (34,301)
Cash flowsexpectedtobecollected(1). ... ... ... 117,559 93,522
Accretableyield. . ... ... (36,071) (23,739)
Carryingvalueof acquiredloans. .. ......... ..ottt $ 81,488 $ 69,783

(1) Represents undiscounted expected principal and interest cash flows

The following table sets forth activity in covered OREO at carrying value for the years ended December 31, 2012 and
2011:

December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
(in thousands)
Covered OREO:
Balance, beginningof period . .......... ... .. $ 28126 $ 14,443
Established through acquisitions . .. ........... ... ity — 10,387
TranS &SN, o e 14,166 15,522
OREO impProvements. . .. ..ottt e s — 5
Additional OREOwrite-downs . ............................... (3,484) (666)
Proceeds from sale of OREO property. .. ..., (33,315) (20,619)
Netgainonsadeof OREO ............ it 10,818 9,054
Total covered OREO, endof period .. ...t $ 16,311  $ 28,126

The covered OREOQ is covered by loss-sharing agreements with the FDIC in which the FDIC will assume 80% of
additional write-downs and losses on covered OREQ sales, or 95%, if applicable, of additional write-downs and losses on
covered OREO sales if the minimum loss share thresholds are met.

FDIC Loss-sharing Asset

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the FDIC loss-sharing asset is comprised of an FDIC indemnification asset of $87.7
million and $157.5 million, respectively, and an FDIC receivable of $8.6 million and $17.6 million, respectively. The
indemnification represents the cash flows the Company expects to collect from the FDIC under the loss-sharing agreements and
the FDIC receivable represents the reimbursable amounts from the FDIC that have not yet been received.

For covered loans, the Company remeasures contractual and expected cash flows on a quarterly basis. When the
quarterly remeasurement process results in a decrease in expected cash flows due to an increase in expected credit losses,
impairment is recorded. Asaresult of thisimpairment, the indemnification asset isincreased to reflect anticipated future cash
to be received from the FDIC. Consistent with the loss-sharing agreements between the Company and the FDIC, the amount of
the increase to the indemnification asset is measured as 80% of the resulting impairment.

Alternatively, when the quarterly remeasurement resultsin an increase in expected future cash flows due to a decrease in
expected credit losses, the nonaccretable difference decreases and the effective yield of the related |oan portfolio isincreased.
Asaresult of the improved expected cash flows, the indemnification asset would be reduced first by the amount of any
impairment previously recorded and, second, by increased amortization over the remaining life of the related loss-sharing
agreement.
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The following table shows a detailed analysis of the FDIC-loss sharing asset for the years ending December 31, 2012 and
2011:

2012 2011 (1)
(in thousands)
Balanceat beginningof period .. ........ ... .. .. $ 175071  $ 205,991
Adjustments not reflected in income:
Established through acquisitions . .. .............. ..ot — 68,734
Cashreceived fromtheFDIC. . ............ .. ... . ... (54,649) (54,200)
FDICreimbursablelosses, net. ... 399 4,042
Adjustments reflected in income:
AMOrtization, NEL . .. ..o oo (42,940) (46,049)
Loanimpairment (recapture) . .. ..o 20,714 (1,318)
Saleof otherredl estate ................. .. ... ...l (7,789) (4,346)
Write-downs of otherreal estate. . .. ................ ... ... ... 5,190 1,474
(107 358 743
Balanceatendof period . ... $ 96,354 $ 175,071

(1) Reclassified to conform to the current period’s presentation.

8. Premises and Equipment
Land, buildings, and furniture and equipment, less accumulated depreciation and amortization, were as follows:

December 31,

2012 2011
(in thousands)
Land. .. $ 39441 % 34,240
BUuildings . . . ..o 84,407 78,165
Leasehold improvements. . .......ovviii it 2,684 2,735
Furnitureand equipment . . .. ... ..ot 24,110 23,097
VENICIES. . oo 438 428
Computer SOftWare . ...t e 13,783 12,043
Total COSt. .ot 164,863 150,708
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization ... ................. (46,155) (42,809)
Total o $ 118,708 % 107,899

Total depreciation and amortization expense was $6.3 million, $5.7 million, and $5.2 million, for the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively.

9. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

In accordance with the Intangibles — Goodwill and Other topic of the FASB ASC, goodwill is not amortized but is
reviewed for potential impairment at the reporting unit level. Management analyzes its goodwill for impairment on an annual
basis and between annual testsin certain circumstances such as material adverse changesin legal, business, regulatory and
economic factors. An impairment loss is recorded to the extent that the carrying amount of goodwill exceedsitsimplied fair
value.

During the third quarter of 2012, the Company changed its annual goodwill impairment testing date from September 30
to July 31, which did not result in any delay, acceleration or avoidance of impairment. The Company believes this date for the
annual goodwill impairment test is preferable because it provides more time to complete the impairment testing as it occurs
earlier within aquarterly reporting cycle. The additional timeis preferable as it would allow more time before the quarterly
reporting deadline to estimate the implied fair value of goodwill for comparison with its carrying value, if necessary. This
change was applied prospectively beginning on July 31, 2012. Retrospective application to prior periodsisimpracticable as the
Company is unable to objectively determine, without the use of hindsight, the assumptions that would have been used in those
earlier periods. In connection with this change, the Company performed an impairment assessment as of July 31, 2012 and

84



concluded that there was no impairment.

The core deposit intangible (“CDI") is evaluated for impairment if events and circumstances indicate a possible
impairment. The CDI is amortized on an accelerated basis over an estimated life of approximately 10 years.

The following table sets forth activity for goodwill and intangible assets for the period:

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)
Total goodwill, beginning of period. . .......................... $ 115554 % 109,639 $ 95,519
Established through acquisitions . .. .......... .. oo, — 5,915 14,120
Total goodwill,endof period . ............. .o 115,554 115,554 109,639
Gross core deposit intangible balance, beginning of period ......... 32,441 26,652 8,896
Accumulated amortization, beginning of period . ................. (12,275) (7,956) (4,033)
Core deposit intangible, net, beginning of period .. ............... 20,166 18,696 4,863
Established through acquisitions . .. .......... .. oo, — 5,789 17,755
CDI current period amortization . ............coiiiiiiiiii... (4,445) (4,319) (3,922)
Total core deposit intangible, end of period .. ................ 15,721 20,166 18,696
Total goodwill and intangible assets, end of period. ............... $ 131,275 % 135,720 $ 128,335

The following table provides the estimated future amortization expense of core deposit intangibles for the succeeding five
years:

Years Ending December 31, (in thousands)
2013, o oo s 3964
2004, . e 3,397
200, e 2,645
2006, . e 2,184
2007 . e 1,627

10. Deposits
Year-end deposits are summarized in the following table;
December 31,

2012 2011
(in thousands)

Core deposits:
Demand and other noninterest-bearing ........................ $ 1321171 $ 1,156,610
Interest-bearingdemand. . ........... .. ... ... .. i, 870,821 735,340
Money Market . ....... ...t 1,043,459 1,031,664
S o 314,371 283,416
Certificates of deposit lessthan $100,000 . . .................... 252,544 303,405
Total coredeposits . .. ..o 3,802,366 3,510,435
Certificates of deposit greater than $100,000 . ... ................... 212,924 262,731
Certificates of deposit insured through CDARS® . .................. 26,720 42,080
Subtotal. . ... 4,042,010 3,815,246
Vauation adjustment resulting from acquisition accounting . . . . 75 283
Total deposits $ 404208 $ 3,815529

Overdrafts of $528 thousand and $10.1 million were reclassified as loan balances at December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.
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The following table shows the amount and maturity of time deposits that had balances of $100,000 or greater:

Years Ending December 31, (in thousands)
2008, $ 183,509
2004 . 26,989
2005 . 14,245
2006, . e 10,399
0 3,524
Thereafter ... ... 105
Total ..o $ 238,771

11. Federal Home Loan Bank and Federal Reserve Bank Borrowings

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK

The Company has entered into borrowing arrangements with the FHLB of Seattle to borrow funds under a short-term
floating rate cash management advance program and fixed-term loan agreements. All borrowings are secured by stock of the
FHLB, certain pledged available for sale investment securities and a blanket pledge of qualifying loans receivable. At
December 31, 2012 FHLB advances were scheduled to mature as follows:

Federal Home Loan Bank Advances
Fixed rate advances

Wtd Avg Rate Amount
(dollars in thousands)
Over 5through 10years .. ...t i e 5.66% 1,000
DUeafter J0YEarS . . .ottt 5.37% 5,000
TOtal. . o 6,000
Valuation adjustment from acquisitionaccounting. . . . ... i 644
10, = $ 6,644

The maximum, average outstanding and year-end balances and average interest rates on advances from the FHLB were as
follows for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010:

Years ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(dollars in thousands)
Balanceatendofyear ......... ... $ 6,644 $ 119,009 $ 119,405
Average balanceduringtheyear ............... ... ... ... ... $ 100,337 $ 120,419 $ 123,685
Maximum month-end balance during theyear ................... $ 118,967 $ 127,426 $ 154,916
Weighted averagerateduringtheyear. .. ........ ... ... .. ..... 2.79% 2.76% 2.75%
Weighted averagerateat December 31 ... ...t 5.42% 2.81% 2.81%

FHLB advances are collateralized by the following:

December 31,

2012 2011
(in thousands)
Fair value of investment securities .. ........... . i $ — 3 77,414
Recorded value of blanket pledge onloansreceivable. .. ............. 443,419 462,040
TOtE e $ 443419 % 539,454
FHLB DOrrowing Capacity . . . . ... ..ovee e e e et $ 435189 $ 419115
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FEDERAL RESERVE BANK

The Company is aso eligible to borrow under the Federal Reserve Bank’s primary credit program, including the Term
Auction Facility auctions. All borrowings are secured by certain pledged available for sale investment securities.

Although the Company has not had FRB borrowings in the last three years, the Company pledges securities and loans for
borrowing capacity at the Federal Reserve Bank.

The following table shows amounts pledged to the Federal Reserve Bank:

December 31,

2012 2011
(in thousands)
Fair value of investment securities . . ...........oviiiiiinnnn... $ 45641 $ 53,122
Recorded value of pledged commercial loans. ...................... 13,815 351,322
TOtal . $ 59456 % 404,444
Federal Reserve Bank borrowing capacity . ........................ $ 59456 $ 404444

12. Other Borrowings
Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase

The Company has entered into wholesal e repurchase agreements with certain brokers. At December 31, 2012 and 2011,
the Company held $25.0 million in wholesale repurchase agreements with an interest rate of 1.88%. Securities available for
sale with a carrying amount of $28.1 million at December 31, 2012 were pledged as collateral for the repurchase agreement
borrowings. The broker holds the securities while the Company continues to receive the principal and interest payments from
the securities. Upon maturity of the agreement, the pledged securities will be returned to the Company.

13. Derivatives and Hedging Activities

The Company periodically entersinto certain commercial loan interest rate swap agreementsin order to provide
commercial loan customers the ability to convert from variable to fixed interest rates. Under these agreements, the Company
entersinto avariable-rate [oan agreement with a customer in addition to a swap agreement. This swap agreement effectively
converts the customer’s variable rate loan into afixed rate. The Company then enters into a corresponding swap agreement
with athird party in order to offset its exposure on the variable and fixed components of the customer agreement. Asthe
interest rate swap agreements with the customers and third parties are not designated as hedges under the Derivatives and
Hedging topic of the FASB ASC, the instruments are marked to market in earnings. The notional amount of open interest rate
swap agreements at December 31, 2012 and 2011 was $177.0 million and $160.3 million, respectively. There was no impact to
the statement of operations for the years ending December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010.

The following table presents the fair value and balance sheet classification of derivatives not designated as hedging
instruments at December 31, 2012 and 2011:

Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives
2012 2011 2012 2011
Balance Sheet Balance Sheet Balance Sheet Balance Sheet
(in thousands) Location Fair Value Location Fair Value Location Fair Value Location Fair Value
Interest rate
contracts Other assets $ 14,921 Otherassets $ 16,302 Other liabilities $ 14,921 Other liabilities $ 16,302
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14. Employee Benefit Plans
401(k) Plan

The Company maintains defined contribution and profit sharing plans in conformity with the provisions of section 401(k)
of the Internal Revenue Code. The Columbia Bank 401(k) and Profit Sharing Plan (the “401(k) Plan”), permits eligible
Columbia Bank employees, those who are at least 18 years of age and have completed six months of service, to contribute up to
75% of their eligible compensation to the 401(k) Plan. On a per pay period basis the Company is required to match 50% of
empl oyee contributions up to 3% of each employee’s eligible compensation. Additionally, as determined annually by the Board
of Directors of the Company, the 401(k) Plan provides for a non-matching discretionary profit sharing contribution. The
Company contributed $1.4 million during 2012, $1.2 million during 2011, and $866 thousand during 2010, in matching funds
to the 401(k) Plan. The Company’s discretionary profit sharing contributions were $2.9 million during 2012, $2.6 million
during 2011 and $1.2 million during 2010.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company maintains an “ Employee Stock Purchase Plan” (the “ESP Plan”) in which substantially all employees of
the Company are eligible to participate. The ESP Plan provides participants the opportunity to purchase common stock of the
Company at a discounted price. Under the ESP Plan, participants can purchase common stock of the Company for 90% of the
lowest price on either the first or last day in each of two six month look-back periods. The look-back periods are January 1st
through June 30th and July 1st through December 31st of each calendar year. The 10% discount is recognized by the Company
as compensation expense and does not have a material impact on net income or earnings per common share. Participants of the
ESP Plan purchased 39,393 shares for $725 thousand in 2012, 39,989 shares for $690 thousand in 2011 and 35,806 shares for
$614 thousand in 2010. At December 31, 2012 there were 608,510 shares available for purchase under the ESP plan.

Supplemental Compensation Plan

The Company maintains supplemental compensation arrangements (“ Unit Plans’) to provide benefits for certain
employees. The Unit Plans generally vest over a4-10 year period and provide a fixed annual benefit over a5-10 year period. At
December 31, 2012 and 2011 the liability associated with these plans was $4.7 million and $4.4 million, respectively. Expense
associated with these plans for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $677 thousand, $655 thousand and
$750 thousand, respectively.

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

The Company maintains a supplemental executive retirement plan (the “ SERP"), a nonqualified deferred compensation
plan that provides retirement benefits to certain highly compensated executives. The SERPis unsecured and unfunded and
there are no program assets. The SERP projected benefit obligation, which represents the vested net present value of future
payments to individuals under the plan is accrued over the estimated remaining term of employment of the participants and has
been determined by actuarial valuation using the “ RP-2000 Annuity Mortality Table” for the mortality assumptions and
discount rates of 5.10% and 5.30% in 2012 and 2011, respectively. Additional assumptions and features of the plan are a
normal retirement age of 65 and a 2% annual cost of living benefit adjustment. The projected benefit obligation isincluded in
other liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The following table reconciles the accumulated liability for the projected benefit obligation:

December 31,

2012 2011

(in thousands)
Balanceat beginningofyear. . ............ ... . ... .. $ 11237 % 10,363
Changeinactuarial 10SS. .. ... (80) 329
Benefit eXpense. ... ..o 1,017 987
Benefitpayments. .. ... e (558) (442)
Balanceatendofyear............ .. $ 11616 $ 11,237
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The benefits expected to be paid in conjunction with the SERP are presented in the following table:

Years Ending December 31, (in thousands)
2008, $ 763
2004, e 758
2005 . 780
2006, . e 917
0 1,049
2018through2022. .. ... ... i 6,583
Total ..o $ 10,850

15. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

Lease Commitments: The Company |leases locations as well as equipment under various non-cancellable operating leases
that expire between 2013 and 2045. The magjority of the leases contain renewal options and provisions for increasesin rental
rates based on an agreed upon index or predetermined escalation schedule. As of December 31, 2012, minimum future rental
payments, exclusive of taxes and other charges, of these leases were:

Years Ending December 31, (in thousands)
2003, . $ 4,309
2004, . 4,018
2005, e 3,454
2006, . 2,032
2007 . 1,468
Thereafter . ... 7,329
Total minimum payments. .. ...................... $ 22,610

Total rental expense on buildings and equipment, net of rental income of $639 thousand, $655 thousand and $591
thousand, was $4.5 million, $4.6 million and $4.5 million, for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk: In the normal course of business, the Company makes loan
commitments (typically unfunded loans and unused lines of credit) and issues standby letters of credit to accommodate the
financia needs of its customers.

Standby letters of credit commit the Company to make payments on behalf of customers under specified conditions.
Historically, no significant losses have been incurred by the Company under standby letters of credit. Both arrangements have
credit risk essentially the same as that involved in extending loans to customers and are subject to the Company’s normal credit
policies, including collateral requirements, where appropriate. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company’sloan
commitments amounted to $888.5 million and $709.9 million, respectively. Standby letters of credit were $19.5 million and
$30.9 million at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. In addition, commitments under commercial letters of credit used
to facilitate customers' trade transactions amounted to $46 thousand and $243 thousand at December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

Pending acquisition: On September 25, 2012, we entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger with West Coast
Bancorp ("West Coast"). The closing of the transaction is subject to the satisfaction of certain customary conditions, including
the receipt of required regulatory approvals and the approval of West Coast's and our respective shareholders. Under the terms
of the merger agreement, the aggregate merger consideration payable by Columbiawill consist of 12,809,525 shares of
Columbia common stock and $264.5 million in cash (subject to increase under certain circumstances). If the merger agreement
isterminated (i) due to our failure to obtain requisite approval from our shareholders or (ii) dueto our failure to obtain
regulatory approval, we will be required to pay West Coast atermination fee of $5.0 million.

Legal Proceedings: The Company and its subsidiary are from time to time defendants in and are threatened with various
legal proceedings arising from their regular business activities. Management, after consulting with legal counsdl, is of the
opinion that the ultimate liability, if any, resulting from these pending or threatened actions and proceedings will not have a
material effect on the financial statements of the Company.
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16. Shareholders’ Equity

On January 26, 2012, the Company declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.08 per share and a special, one-time cash
dividend of $0.29, payable on February 22, 2012 to shareholders of record as of the close of business on February 8, 2012. On
April 25, 2012 the Company declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.08 per share and a special, one-time cash dividend of
$0.14, payable on May 23, 2012 to shareholders of record at the close of business May 9, 2012. On July 26, 2012 the
Company declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.09 per share and a special, one-time cash dividend of $0.21, payable on
August 22, 2012 to shareholders of record at the close of business August 8, 2012. On October 25, 2012 the Company declared
aquarterly cash dividend of $0.09 per share payable on November 21, 2012 to shareholders of record at the close of business
November 7, 2012. Subsequent to year end, on January 24, 2013 the Company declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.10 per
share payable on February 20, 2013, to shareholders of record at the close of business on February 6, 2013.

The payment of cash dividendsis subject to Federa regulatory requirements for capital levels and other restrictions. In
addition, the cash dividends paid by Columbia Bank to the Company are subject to both Federal and State regulatory
requirements.

Stock Repurchase Program

In October 2011, the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of 2 million shares of Columbia common stock. The
Company may purchase the shares from time to time in the open market or in private transactions, under conditions which
allow such repurchases to be accretive to earnings per share while maintaining capital ratios that exceed the guidelines for a
well-capitalized financial institution. No shares were repurchased under the stock repurchase program during 2012 or 2011.

17. Fair Value Accounting and Measurement

The Fair Value M easurements and Disclosures topic of the FASB ASC defines fair value, establishes a consistent
framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosure requirements about fair value. We hold fixed and variable rate
interest-bearing securities, investments in marketable equity securities and certain other financial instruments, which are carried
at fair value. Fair value is determined based upon quoted prices when available or through the use of alternative approaches,
such as matrix or model pricing, when market quotes are not readily accessible or available.

The valuation techniques are based upon observable and unobservable inputs. Observable inputs reflect market data
obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect our own market assumptions. These two types of inputs
create the following fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 —Quoted prices for identical instrumentsin active markets that are accessible at the measurement date.

Level 2 —Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar instrumentsin
markets that are not active; and model derived valuations whose inputs are observable or whose significant value drivers are
observable.

Level 3 — Prices or valuation techniques that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and
unobservable.
Fair values are determined as follows:

Securities at fair value are priced using a combination of market activity, industry recognized information sources, yield
curves, discounted cash flow models and other factors. These fair value calculations are considered a Level 2 input method
under the provisions of the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures topic of the FASB ASC for al securities other than U.S.
Treasury notes, which are considered a Level 1 input method.

Interest rate contract positions are valued in models, which use as their basis, readily observable market parameters and
are classified within Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy.
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The following table sets forth the Company’s financia assets and liabilities that were accounted for at fair value on a
recurring basis at December 31, 2012 and 2011 by level within the fair value hierarchy. Financial assets and liabilities are
classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement:

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using

Fair value at
December 31, 2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(in thousands)
Assets
Securities available for sale
U.S. government agency and sponsored
enterprise mortgage-back securities and
collateralized mortgage obligations . . .. .. $ 572,369 $ — % 572,369 $ —
State and municipal securities . ........... 285,575 — 285,575 —
U.S. government agency and government-
sponsored enterprise securities. ... ... ... 120,501 — 120,501 —
U.S. government securities. .............. 19,828 19,828 — —
Other securities. . ..., 3,392 — 3,392 —
Total securitiesavailableforsae ............. $ 1,001,665 $ 19828 $ 981,837 $ —
Other assets (Interest rate contracts) . .......... $ 14921 % — % 14921 % —
Liabilities
Other ligbilities (Interest rate contracts) .. ...... $ 14921 % — % 14921 % —
. Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using
Fair value at
December 31, 2011 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(in thousands)
Assets
Securities available for sale
U.S. government agency and sponsored
enterprise mortgage-back securities and
collateralized mortgage obligations . . . . . . $ 695954 $ — % 695954 $ —
State and municipa debt securities ... .. ... 285,763 — 285,763 —
U.S. government agency and government-
sponsored enterprise securities. .. ......... 43,063 — 43,063 —
Other securities. . ...................... 3,330 — 3,330 —
Total securitiesavailableforsale . ............ $ 1,028,110 $ — $ 1028110 % —
Other assets (Interest rate contracts) . .......... $ 16,302 $ — 3 16,302 $ —
Liabilities
Other liabilities (Interest rate contracts) . ....... $ 16,302 $ — 3 16,302 $ —

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy during the years ended December 31,
2012 and 2011. The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the valuation hierarchy based on the valuation level at the
end of the reporting period.

Nonrecurring Measurements

Certain assets and liabilities are measured at fair value on anonrecurring basis after initial recognition such as loans
measured for impairment and OREO. The following methods were used to estimate the fair value of each such class of
financial instrument:

Impaired loans—A loan is considered to be impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that
the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due (both interest and principal) according to the contractual terms of the
loan agreement. Impaired |oans are measured based on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s
effective interest rate, aloan’s observable market price, or the fair market value of the collateral if the loan is a collateral-
dependent loan. Generally, the Company utilizes the fair market value of the collateral to measure impairment. The impairment
evaluations are performed in conjunction with the ALLL process on a quarterly basis by officersin the Special Credits group,
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which reports to the Chief Credit Officer. The Real Estate Appraisal Services Department ("REASD"), which aso reports to the
Chief Credit Officer, isresponsible for obtaining appraisals from third-parties or performing internal evaluations. If an

appraisal is obtained from athird-party, the REASD reviews the appraisal to evaluate the adequacy of the appraisal report,
including its scope, methods, accuracy, and reasonabl eness.

Other real estate owned and other personal property owned (*"OPPO")—OREO and OPPO isreal and personal
property that the Bank has taken ownership of in partia or full satisfaction of aloan or loans. OREO and OPPO are generally
measured based on the item's fair market value asindicated by an appraisal or aletter of intent to purchase. OREO and OPPO
are recorded at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less estimated costs to sell. This amount becomes the property’s
new basis. Any write-downs based on the property fair value less estimated cost to sell at the date of acquisition are charged to
the allowance for loan and lease losses. Management periodically reviews OREO and OPPO in an effort to ensure the property
iscarried at the lower of its new basis or fair value, net of estimated costs to sell. Any write-downs subsequent to acquisition
are charged to earnings. The initial and subseguent write-down evaluations are performed by officers in the Special Credits
group, which reports to the Chief Credit Officer. The REASD obtains appraisals from third-parties for OREO and OPPO and
performsinternal evaluations. If an appraisal is obtained from a third-party, the REASD reviews the appraisal to evaluate the
adequacy of the appraisal report, including its scope, methods, accuracy, and reasonabl eness.

The following table sets forth the Company’s assets that were measured using fair value estimates on a nonrecurring
basis at December 31, 2012 and 2011:

) Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using Losses During the
Fair value at Year Ended
December 31, 2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 December 31, 2012
(in thousands)
Impairedloans ............. $ 10599 $ — % — 3 10599 $ 3,891
Noncovered OREO. . ........ 10,970 — — 10,970 3,788
Covered OREO. ............ 2,663 — — 2,663 1,032
Noncovered OPPO 210 — — 210 39
$ 24442 % —  $ — 3 24442  $ 8,750
. Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using Losses During the
Fair value at Year Ended
December 31, 2011 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 December 31, 2011
(in thousands)
Impairedloans ............. $ 17,755 % —  $ —  $ 17,755 $ 5,841
Noncovered OREO. ......... 11,233 — — 11,233 3,089
CoveredOREO. ............ 2,442 — — 2,442 644
$ 31,430 $ —  $ —  $ 31,430 $ 9,574

The losses on impaired |oans disclosed above represent the amount of the specific reserve and/or charge-offs during the
period applicable to loans held at period end. The amount of the specific reserveisincluded in the allowance for loan and lease
losses. The losses on noncovered OREO disclosed above represent the write-downs taken at foreclosure that were charged to
the allowance for loan and lease losses, as well as subsequent write-downs from updated appraisals that were charged to
earnings.
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Quantitative information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The range and weighted-average of the significant unobservable inputs used to fair value our Level 3 nonrecurring assets
during 2012, along with the valuation techniques used, are shown in the following table:

Fair value at
December Range (Weighted
31, 2012 Valuation Technique Unobservable Input Average) (1)
(dollars in thousands)
Fair Market Value Adjustment to
Impaired loans - red estate collatera ... ... $ 10,099 of Collatera Appraisal Vaue N/A (2)
Fair Market Value Adjustment to Stated
Impaired loans - other collateral (3)........ 500 of Collatera Value N/A (2)
Fair Market Value  Adjustment to
NoncoveredOREO .................... 10,970 of Collatera Appraisal Value N/A (2)
Fair Market Value Adjustment to
CoveredOREO .............. ... 2,663 of Collatera Appraisal Value N/A (2)
Fair Market Value Adjustment to
Noncovered OPPO. . ................... 210 of Collateral Appraisal Value N/A (2)

(1) Discount applied to appraisal value, letter of intent to purchase, or stated value (in the case of accounts receivable and
inventory).

(2) Quantitative disclosures are not provided for impaired loans collateralized by real estate, impaired loans collateralized by
non real estate collateral, noncovered OREO, covered OREQ and noncovered OPPO because there were no adjustments made
to the appraisal value during the current period.

(3) Other collateral consists of accounts receivable and inventory.

Fair value of financial instruments

Because broadly traded markets do not exist for most of the Company’s financial instruments, the fair value calculations
attempt to incorporate the effect of current market conditions at a specific time. These determinations are subjective in nature,
involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and do not include tax ramifications; therefore, the results cannot be
determined with precision, substantiated by comparison to independent markets and may not be realized in an actua sale or
immediate settlement of the instruments. There may be inherent weaknesses in any calculation technique, and changesin the
underlying assumptions used, including discount rates and estimates of future cash flows, could significantly affect the results.
For all of these reasons, the aggregation of the fair value calculations presented herein do not represent, and should not be
construed to represent, the underlying value of the Company.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments for
which it is practicable to estimate that value:

Cash and due from banks and interest-earning deposits with banks—The fair value of financial instruments that are
short-term or reprice frequently and that have little or no risk are considered to have afair value that approximates carrying
value (Level 1).

Securities available for sale—Securities at fair value, other than U.S. Treasury Notes, are priced using a combination of
market activity, industry recognized information sources, yield curves, discounted cash flow models and other factors (Level 2).
U.S. Treasury Notes are priced using quotes in active markets (Level 1).

Federal Home Loan Bank stock—The fair value is based upon the par value of the stock which eguates to its carrying
value (Level 2).

Loans—L oans are not recorded at fair value on arecurring basis. Nonrecurring fair value adjustments are periodically
recorded on impaired loans that are measured for impairment based on the fair value of collateral. For most performing loans,
fair valueis estimated using expected duration and lending rates that would have been offered on December 31, 2012 or 2011
for loans which mirror the attributes of the loans with similar rate structures and average maturities. The fair values resulting
from these calculations are reduced by an amount representing the change in estimated fair value attributable to changesin
borrowers' credit quality since the loans were originated. For nonperforming loans, fair valueis estimated by applying a
valuation discount based upon loan sales data from the FDIC. For covered loans, fair value is estimated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using alending rate that would have been offered on December 31, 2012 (Level 3).

FDIC loss-sharing asset —The fair value of the FDIC loss-sharing asset is estimated based on discounting the expected
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future cash flows using an estimated market rate (Level 3).

Interest rate contracts—Interest rate contracts are valued in models, which use as their basis, readily observable market
parameters (Level 2).

Deposits—For deposits with no contractual maturity, the fair value is equal to the carrying value (Level 1). The fair value
of fixed maturity depositsis based on discounted cash flows using the difference between the deposit rate and current market
rates for deposits of similar remaining maturities (Level 2).

FHLB advances—The fair value of FHLB advancesis estimated based on discounting the future cash flows using the
market rate currently offered (Level 2).

Repurchase agreements—The fair value of securities sold under agreement to repurchase is estimated based on
discounting the future cash flows using the market rate currently offered (Level 2).

Other Financial Instruments—The mgjority of our commitments to extend credit and standby |etters of credit carry
current market interest ratesif converted to loans, as such, carrying value is assumed to equal fair value.

The following table summarizes carrying amounts and estimated fair values of selected financial instruments:

December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Amount Value
(in thousands)

Assets
Cashand duefrombanks . ................... $ 124573 $ 124573 $ 124573 $ — 3 — $ 91,364 $ 91,364
Interest-earning depositswith banks. . .......... 389,353 389,353 389,353 — — 202,925 202,925
Securitiesavailableforsale .................. 1,001,665 1,001,665 19,828 981,837 — 1,028,110 1,028,110
FHLB StOCK. . ..o 21,819 21,819 — 21,819 — 22,215 22,215
Loansheldforsde ......................... 2,563 2,563 — 2,563 — 2,148 2,148
Loans. ..o 2,864,803 2,944,317 — — 2,944,317 2,827,259 2,957,345
FDICloss-sharingasset ..................... 96,354 26,543 — — 26,543 175,071 71,788
Interest ratecontracts . .......... ... ... ... 14,921 14,921 — 14,921 — 16,302 16,302
Liabilities
DEPOSItS. . ... $ 4,042,085 $4,043221 $3549821 $ 493400 $ — $3815529 $ 3,817,013
FHLB advances. .. .......oovevevenenen.... 6,644 5,804 — 5,894 — 119,009 119,849
Repurchase agreements. .. ................... 25,000 26,464 — 26,464 — 25,000 26,580
Interest ratecontracts . . ......... ... ... .. 14,921 14,921 — 14,921 — 16,302 16,302

18. Earnings per Common Share

The Company applies the two-class method of computing basic and diluted EPS. Under the two-class method, EPS is
determined for each class of common stock and participating security according to dividends declared and participation rights
in undistributed earnings. The Company grants restricted shares under share-based compensation plans that qualify as
participating securities.



The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010
(in thousands except per share)

Basic EPS:
NELINCOME. . ... e e $ 46,143 $ 48037 $ 30,784
Less: Preferred dividends and accretion of issuance discount for

Preferred StOCK . ..ottt — — (4,947)
Net income applicable to common shareholders. . ................... $ 46,143 3 48037 $ 25,837
Less. Earnings allocated to participating securities .................. (443) (450) (244)
Earnings allocated to common shareholders .. ...................... $ 45700 $ 47587 $ 25,593
Weighted average common sharesoutstanding. . .................... 39,260 39,103 35,209
Basic earningsper commonshare .. .........ooiiiiiiee ... $ 116 3 122 3 0.73
Diluted EPS:
Earnings allocated to common shareholders(1) ..................... $ 45700 $ 47588 $ 25,593
Weighted average common sharesoutstanding. . .................... 39,260 39,103 35,209
Dilutive effect of equity awardsandwarrants. .. .................... 3 77 183
Weighted average diluted common sharesoutstanding. .. ............. 39,263 39,180 35,392
Diluted earningsper commonshare. . ...........vviiieneeennnnnn.. $ 116 $ 121 $ 0.72
Potentially dilutive share options that were not included in the

computation of diluted EPS because to do so would be anti-dilutive . .. 9 53 54

(1) Earmings alocated to common sharehol ders for basic and diluted EPS may differ under the two-class method as a result of adding common stock
equivaents for options and warrants to dilutive shares outstanding, which alters the ratio used to allocate earnings to common shareholders and
participating securities for the purposes of calculating diluted EPS.

19. Share-Based Payments

At December 31, 2012, the Company had one equity compensation plan (the “Plan”), which is shareholder approved, that
provides for the granting of share options and sharesto eligible employees and directors up to 2,891,482 shares.

Share Awards: Restricted share awards provide for the immediate issuance of shares of Company common stock to the
recipient, with such shares held in escrow until certain service conditions are met, generally four years of continual service.
Recipients of restricted shares do not pay any cash consideration to the Company for the shares, have the right to vote all shares
subject to such grant, and receive al dividends with respect to such shares, whether or not the shares have vested. The fair
value of share awardsis equal to the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant.
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A summary of changesin the Company’s nonvested shares and related information for the years ended December 31,
2012, 2011 and 2010 is presented below:

Weighted
Average
Grant-Date
Nonvested Shares Shares Fair Value
Nonvestedat January 1,2010 . ... ...ttt 278504  $ 21.34
Granted. . . ... 108,075 $ 20.68
VESEL. . oo e (25521) $ 21.38
Forfeited. ... .. e (7,775) $ 20.77
Nonvested at December 31,2010 ... ........ooiiiiiien 353283 $ 21.14
Granted. . ... 133,350 $ 19.45
VESIEU. o oot (109,033) $ 25.72
=1 P (14,925) $ 18.86
Nonvested at December 31,2011 . ... ...ttt 362,675 $ 19.24
Granted. . ..o 180,841 % 21.32
Ve, . . e (118,511) $ 21.65
FOrfEItEO . . . oottt e (40915) $ 18.60
Nonvested at December 31,2012 . ..., 384,000 $ 19.54

As of December 31, 2012, there was $5.8 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested share-
based compensation arrangements granted under the Plan. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average
period of 2.3 years. Thetotal fair value of shares vested during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010 was $2.5
million, $2.2 million, and $546 thousand, respectively.

Share Options: Option awards are generally granted with an exercise price equal to the market price of the Company’s
stock at the date of grant; those option awards generally vest based on three years of continual service and are exercisable for a
five-year period after vesting. Option awards granted have a 10-year maximum term.

Thefair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option valuation model. The
fair value of all optionsis amortized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service periods, which are generally the vesting
periods. The expected life of options granted represents the period of time that they are expected to be outstanding. The
expected life is determined based on historical experience with similar awards, giving consideration to the contractual terms
and vesting schedules. Expected volatilities of our common stock are estimated at the date of grant based on the historical
volatility of the stock. The volatility factor is based on historical stock prices over the most recent period commensurate with
the estimated expected life of the award. The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury curve in effect at the time of
the award. The expected dividend yield is based on dividend trends and the market value of the Company’s stock price at the
time of the award.

A summary of option activity under the Plan as of December 31, 2012, and changes during the year then ended is
presented below:

Weighted
Weighted Average Aggregate
Average Remaining Intrinsic
Exercise Contractual Value
Options Shares Price Term ($000)
Balance at December 31,2011................. 64,912 $ 22.76
Granted .. ... —  $ —
= 1= 1= s I (1,000) $ 23.29
EXPIred . ..o (37,444) $ 24.71
Exercised. .......... ... ... (516) $ 12.21
Balance at December 31,2012. . ............... 25,952 $ 20.13 13 % 27
Total Exercisable at December 31,2012......... 25952 $ 20.13 13 % 27
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Thetotal intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010 was $5
thousand, $65 thousand, and $154 thousand, respectively. No options were granted in 2012, 2011 and 2010.

As of December 31, 2012, outstanding stock options consist of the following:

Weighted Average

Number of Weighted Average Weighted Average Number of Exercise Price of
Ranges of Option Remaining Exercise Price of Exercisable Exercisable Option
Exercise Prices Shares Contractual Life Option Shares Option Shares Shares
12.35-15.43 6,395 08 $ 14.04 6,395 $ 14.04
15.44 - 18.51 3,240 04 $ 17.28 3,240 $ 17.28
18.52 - 21.60 7,266 13 % 18.61 7266 $ 18.61
21.61-24.68 5,000 02 $ 23.29 5000 $ 23.29
27.78 - 30.86 4,051 41 3 30.86 4051 $ 30.86
25,952 13 % 20.13 25952 % 20.13

It is the Company’s policy to issue new shares for share option exercises and share awards. The Company expenses
awards of share options and shares on a straight-line basis over the related vesting term of the award. For the 12 months ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company recognized pre-tax share-based compensation expense for nonvested share
awards of $1.6 million, $1.6 million and $1.4 million, respectively.

20. Income Tax

The components of income tax expense (benefit) are as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)

Current tax (benefit) expense .. ... $ 21,218  $ 21688 $ (13,547)

Deferred tax expense (benefit) .......... ... i (3,656) (3,783) 15,838

TotaAl. .o $ 17562 % 17905 $ 2,291

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

December 31,
2012 2011
(in thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Allowanceforloanandleaselosses . ............................. $ 30,027 $ 20,910
Supplemental executiveretirementplan................. ... ....... 6,967 6,564
Stock option and restricted stock. . . ... .o 682 989
OREQ COSIS. « . o vt ettt et e e e et 3,801 3,209
Nonaccrual interest . ... ... e 193 222
Security Impairment . ... e — 1,041
L 1= 557 632
Total deferredtax assats. . .. ... 42,227 33,567
Deferred tax liabilities:
Asset purchase tax basisdifference. . ........... ... il (19,408) (14,812)
FHLB stock dividends. . . ... (1,963) (1,977)
Purchase accounting . . . ... ...t e (745) (1,030)
Deferredloanfees. . ... ..o (1,755) (1,517)
Unrealized gain on investment securities ... ....................... (11,150) (14,291)
Depreciation . .. ... e (1,870) (1,517)
Total deferred tax liabilities. . ........ .. ..ot (36,891) (35,144)
Net deferred tax asset (liability) ... $ 5336 % (1,577
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A reconciliation of the Company’s effective income tax rate with the federal statutory tax rate is as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent
(dollars in thousands)

Income tax based on statutory rate. . . .. ... $ 22,297 3B% $ 23,080 3B% $ 11,576 35 %
Reduction resulting from:

Taxcredits. ... (504) ()% (608) ()% (808) (2)%

Tax exemptinstruments . ........... (3,906) (6)% (3,824) (6)% (3,744) (1D)%

Lifeinsurance proceeds ............ (1,001) (2% (766) (D)% (735) (2%

Bargainpurchase.................. — — % (1,036) (2% (5,383) (16)%

Other,net........................ 676 1% 1,059 2% 1,385 3%

Incometax provision .................. $ 17,562 27% $ 17,905 21% $ 2291 7%

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, we had no unrecognized tax benefits. Our policy is to recognize interest and
penalties on unrecognized tax benefitsin “Provision for income taxes’ in the Consolidated Statements of Income. There were
no amounts related to interest and penalties recognized for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011. The tax years subject
to examination by federal and state taxing authorities are the years ending December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009.

21. Regulatory Capital Requirements

The Company (on a consolidated basis) and its banking subsidiary are subject to various regulatory capital requirements
administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and
possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company
and its subsidiary's financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective
action, the Company and its banking subsidiary must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of
assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items as cal culated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts
and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other
factors. Prompt corrective action provisions are not applicable to bank holding companies.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and its banking
subsidiary to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the following table) of total and Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted
assets (as defined in the regulations) and of Tier 1 capital to average assets (as defined in the regulations). Management
believes, as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, that the Company and Columbia Bank met all capital adequacy requirementsto
which they are subject.
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As of December 31, 2012, the most recent notification from the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation categorized
Columbia Bank aswell capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well
capitalized, an institution must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based, and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in
the following tables. There are no conditions or events since the notification that management believes have changed Columbia
Bank’s category. The Company and its banking subsidiary’s actual capital amounts and ratios as of December 31, 2012 and
2011, are aso presented in the following table.

To Be Well
Capitalized Under
For Capital Prompt
Adequacy Corrective Action
Actual Purposes Provision
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
(dollars in thousands)

As of December 31, 2012
Total Capital (to risk-weighted assets):

TheCompany ..................... $ 652,704 20.62% $ 253,242 8.0% N/A N/A

ColumbiaBank.................... $ 565,677 17.87% $ 253,244 80% $ 316,556 10.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to risk-weighted assets):

TheCompany ..................... $ 612,584 19.35% $ 126,621 4.0% N/A N/A

ColumbiaBank.................... $ 525,556 16.60% $ 126,622 4.0% $ 189,933 6.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to average assets):

TheCompany ..................... $ 612,584 12.78% $ 191,778 4.0% N/A N/A

ColumbiaBank.................... $ 525,556 11.07% $ 189,986 40% $ 237,483 5.0%
As of December 31, 2011
Total Capital (to risk-weighted assets):

TheCompany ..................... $ 636,559 21.05% $ 241,955 8.0% N/A N/A

ColumbiaBank.................... $ 561,216 18.55% $ 242,028 80% $ 302,535 10.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to risk-weighted assets):

TheCompany ..................... $ 598,485 19.79% $ 120,978 4.0% N/A N/A

ColumbiaBank.................... $ 523,131 17.29% $ 121,014 40% $ 181,521 6.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to average assets):

TheCompany ..................... $ 598,485 12.96% $ 184,780 4.0% N/A N/A

ColumbiaBank.................... $ 523,131 11.45% $ 182,747 40% $ 228434 5.0%

22. Business Combinations
Bank of Whitman

On August 5, 2011 the Bank acquired certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of the Bank of Whitman from the
FDIC in an FDIC-assisted transaction. The Bank and the FDIC entered into a modified whole bank purchase and assumption
agreement without loss share.

The Bank of Whitman was afull service community bank headquartered in Colfax, Washington. We entered into this
transaction to acquire 9 branches total in Adams, Asotin, Grant, Spokane, WallaWalla, and Whitman counties to assist us with
filling in our geographic footprint in eastern Washington. We believe participating with the FDIC in this assisted transaction
was, from an economical standpoint, advantageous to expansion through de novo branching.

The assets acquired and liabilities assumed have been accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting
(formerly the purchase method). The assets and liabilities, both tangible and intangible, were recorded at their estimated fair
values as of the August 5, 2011 acquisition date. The application of the acquisition method of accounting resulted in the
recognition of a bargain purchase gain, net of tax, of $1.8 million, which isincluded in the Gain on bank acquisition line item
in the Consolidated Statements of Income, and a core deposit intangible of $3.9 million. The bargain purchase gain represents
the excess of the estimated fair value of the assets acquired over the estimated fair value of the liabilities assumed and is
influenced significantly by the FDIC-assisted transaction process. The core deposit intangible asset recognized is deductible
for income tax purposes.

The operating results of the Company include the operating results produced by the acquired assets and assumed
liahilities for the period August 6, 2011 to December 31, 2011. Due to the exclusion of the mgjority of the non-performing
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loans and 11 branch locations, as well as the significant amount of fair value adjustments, historical results of the Bank of
Whitman are not meaningful to the Company's results and thus no proforma information is presented.

The table below displays the amounts recognized as of the acquisition date for each mgjor class of assets acquired and
liahilities assumed:

August 5, 2011
(in thousands)

Assets
Cashandduefrombanks ...t $ 52,072
INVESIMENt SECUNTIES. . .. oottt e 16,298
Federal Reserve Bank and Federal Home Loan Bank stock . . .......... 3,977
Acquired l0ans. . . ... ..o 200,041
Accruedinterestreceivable. .......... .. 1,975
Premisesand equipment .. ...t 86
FDICreceivable. . ... 156,710
Coredepositintangible . ........ ... o i 3,943
OthEr @SS . . oottt e e 2,447
Total assetsacquired. . . ... $ 437,549
Liabilities
DEPOSIES. . ottt $ 401,127
Federal HomeLoanBank advances .. .............coiiiin.... 32,949
Accruedinterestpayable. . ... 213
Deferred tax liability .. ... 1,034
Other liabilities . .. ..ot e 396
Total liabilitiesassumed. . ........ ..o i 435,719
Net assets acquired (aftertaxgain) . .. ... $ 1,830

First Heritage Bank

On May 27, 2011 the Bank acquired certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of First Heritage Bank from the FDIC
in an FDIC-assisted transaction. As part of the Purchase and Assumption Agreement, the Bank and the FDIC entered into loss-
sharing agreements (each, a“loss-sharing agreement” and collectively, the “loss-sharing agreements’), whereby the FDIC will
cover asubstantial portion of any future losses on loans (and related unfunded commitments), OREO and certain accrued
interest on loans for up to 90 days. We refer to the acquired |oans and OREO subject to the loss-sharing agreements collectively
as “covered assets.” Under the terms of the loss-sharing agreements, the FDIC will absorb 80% of losses and share in 80% of
loss recoveries. The loss-sharing provisions of the agreements for commercial and single family residential mortgage |oans are
in effect for five years and ten years, respectively, from the May 27, 2011 acquisition date and the loss recovery provisions for
such loans are in effect for eight years and ten years, respectively, from the acquisition date.

First Heritage Bank was a full service community bank headquartered in Snohomish, Washington that operated five
branch locations in King and Snohomish Counties. We entered into this transaction to assist us with filling in our geographic
footprint between Seattle and Bellingham, Washington and to support our recently expanded Bellingham banking team. We
believe participating with the FDIC in this assisted transaction was, from an economical standpoint, advantageous to expansion
through de novo branching.

The assets acquired and liabilities assumed have been accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting
(formerly the purchase method). The assets and liahilities, both tangible and intangible, wereinitialy provisionally recorded at
their estimated fair values as of the May 27, 2011 acquisition date pending completion of valuation adjustments related to
acquired loans, OREO, the indemnification asset, and other assets. The initial amounts recorded for acquired loans, OREO, the
indemnification asset, and other assets were $81.9 million, $8.3 million, $38.1 million, and $1.7 million, respectively. At
December 31, 2011 these amounts were retrospectively adjusted resulting in a $369 thousand decrease to acquired loans, a $61
thousand decrease to OREQ, a $427 thousand increase to the indemnification asset, and a $1.9 million increase to other assets.
The application of the acquisition method of accounting resulted in the recognition of $4.0 million of goodwill and a core
deposit intangible of $1.3 million. The goodwill represents the excess of the estimated fair value of the liabilities assumed over
the estimated fair value of the assets acquired and isinfluenced significantly by the FDIC-assisted transaction process.

The operating results of the Company include the operating results produced by the acquired assets and assumed
liabilities for the period May 28, 2011 to December 31, 2011. Due primarily to the significant amount of fair value adjustments
and the FDIC loss-sharing agreements put in place, historical results of First Heritage Bank are not meaningful to the
Company’s results and thus no proformainformation is presented.
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The table below displays the amounts recognized as of the acquisition date for each major class of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed:

May 27, 2011
“(in thousands)
Assets
Cashandduefrombanks ..., $ 4,688
Interest-earning depositswithbanks. . ........... .. ... ... ... ... 6,689
INVEStMENt SECUNtIES. . .. .o i e e e e 5,303
Federal HomeLoanBank stock ............ ... i 477
Acquired l0ans. . . . ..o 81,488
Accruedinterestreceivable. .......... ... 476
Premisesand equipment .. ... i 5,339
FDICreceivable. . . ... e 4,751
Other real estate owned covered by losssharing. .. .................. 8,225
GoodWill .. 4,023
Coredepositintangible . ........... .. 1,337
FDIC indemnificationasset. . .. ..ot 38,531
OthEr @SS . . oot e e 3,657
Total assetsacquired. .. ...t e $ 164984
Liabilities
DEPOSIES. . ottt $ 159,525
Federal HomeLoanBankadvances .. ..., 5,003
Accrued interest payable. .. ... .. 421
Other liabilities . . ... e 35
Total liabilitiesassumed. . ......... ... i $ 164,984

Summit Bank

On May 20, 2011 the Bank acquired certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of Summit Bank from the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC") in an FDIC-assisted transaction. As part of the Purchase and Assumption Agreement,
the Bank and the FDIC entered into loss-sharing agreements (each, a“loss-sharing agreement” and collectively, the “loss-
sharing agreements”), whereby the FDIC will cover a substantial portion of any future losses on loans (and related unfunded
commitments), OREQ and certain accrued interest on loans for up to 90 days. We refer to the acquired loans and OREO subject
to the loss-sharing agreements collectively as “covered assets.” Under the terms of the loss-sharing agreements, the FDIC will
absorb 80% of losses and share in 80% of lo0ss recoveries. The loss-sharing provisions of the agreements for commercia and
single family residential mortgage loans are in effect for five years and ten years, respectively, from the May 20, 2011
acquisition date and the loss recovery provisions for such loans are in effect for eight years and ten years, respectively, from the
acquisition date.

Summit Bank was afull service community bank headquartered in Burlington, Washington that operated three branch
locations in Skagit County. We entered into this transaction to assist us with filling in our geographic footprint between Seattle
and Bellingham, Washington and to support our recently expanded Bellingham banking team. We believe participating with the
FDIC in this assisted transaction was, from an economical standpoint, advantageous to expansion through de novo branching.

The assets acquired and liabilities assumed have been accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting
(formerly the purchase method). The assets and liahilities, both tangible and intangible, wereinitialy provisionally recorded at
their estimated fair values as of the May 20, 2011 acquisition date pending completion of valuation adjustments related to
acquired loans, OREOQ, the indemnification asset, and other assets. The initial amounts recorded for acquired loans, OREO, the
indemnification asset, and other assets were $71.4 million, $2.7 million, $27.2 million, and $786 thousand, respectively. At
December 31, 2011 these amounts were retrospectively adjusted resulting in a $1.7 million decrease to acquired loans, a $509
thousand decrease to OREO, a $3.0 million increase to the indemnification asset, and a $1.0 million increase to other
assets. The application of the acquisition method of accounting resulted in the recognition of $1.9 million of goodwill and a
core deposit intangible of $509 thousand. The goodwill represents the excess of the estimated fair value of the liabilities
assumed over the estimated fair value of the assets acquired and is influenced significantly by the FDIC-assisted transaction
process.
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The operating results of the Company include the operating results produced by the acquired assets and assumed
liabilities for the period May 21, 2011 to December 31, 2011. Due primarily to the significant amount of fair value adjustments
and the FDIC loss-sharing agreements put in place, historical results of Summit Bank are not meaningful to the Company’s
results and thus no pro formainformation is presented.

The table below displays the amounts recognized as of the acquisition date for each major class of assets acquired and
ligbilities assumed:

May 20, 2011
" (in thousands) _
Assets

Cashandduefrombanks .............c .. $ 1,837
Interest-earning deposits with banks and federal fundssold. . .......... 14,198
INVeStMENt SECUNtIES. . .. .o e e e e 871
Federal HomeLoanBank stock ............ ..o 406
Acquired l0ans. . . . ... 69,783
Accruedinterestreceivable. .......... .. . 429
Premisesandequipment . ...........c. i e 42
FDICrecaivable. . ... e e 6,984
Other real estate owned covered by losssharing. . ................... 2,162
GoodWill .. 1,892
Coredepositintangible . ........... . o 509
FDIC indemnification asset. . .. ... 30,203
Other ASSES . . .o e 1,813
Total assetsacquired. . . ..ot $ 131,129

Liabilities -
DEPOSIES. . ottt $ 123,279
Federal HomelLoanBankadvances .. ..., 7,772
Accruedinterestpayable. . ... 71
Other liabilities . ... e 7
Total liabilitiesassumed. . ............c i $ 131,129

American Marine Bank

On January 29, 2010, the Bank acquired certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of American Marine Bank from the
FDIC, which had been appointed receiver of theinstitution. As part of the Purchase and Assumption Agreement, the Bank and
the FDIC entered into loss-sharing agreements whereby the FDIC will cover a substantial portion of any future losses on loans
(and related unfunded commitments), OREQ and certain accrued interest on loans. Under the terms of the loss-sharing
agreements, the FDIC will absorb 80% of losses and share in 80% of loss recoveries on the first $66 million on covered assets
and absorb 95% of losses and share in 95% of loss recoveries exceeding $66 million. The loss-sharing agreements for
commercial and single family residential mortgage loans are in effect for five years and ten years, respectively, from the
January 29, 2010 acquisition date and the loss recovery provisions for such loans are in effect for eight years and ten years,
respectively, from the acquisition date.

The Bank acquired assets with an acquisition date fair value of approximately $307.8 million, including $176.3 million of
loans, an FDIC loss sharing asset of $70.4 million, $28.6 million of investment securities, $14.5 million of cash and cash
equivalents and federal funds sold and $18.0 million of other assets. The Bank assumed liabilities with an acquisition date fair
value of approximately $292.6 million, including $254.0 million of insured and uninsured deposits, $37.7 million of FHLB
advances and $974 thousand of other liabilities. American Marine Bank was a full service commercial bank headquartered on
Bainbridge I sland, Washington that operated 11 branch locations in western Washington. In addition, as part of this acquisition,
the Bank received regulatory approval to exercise trust powers and intends to continue to operate the Trust and Wealth
Management Division of American Marine Bank. We made this acquisition to expand our geographic footprint.
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The assets acquired and liabilities assumed have been accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting. The
assets and liabilities, both tangible and intangible, were recorded at their estimated fair values as of the January 29, 2010
acquisition date. The application of the acquisition method of accounting resulted in the recognition of a bargain purchase gain,
net of tax, of $9.8 million, which isincluded in the Gain on bank acquisition line item in the Consolidated Condensed
Statements of Income, and a core deposit intangible of $4.3 million. The transaction resulted in a bargain purchase gain asthe
fair value of assets acquired exceeded the fair value of liabilities assumed.

The operating results of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2010 include the operating results produced by
the acquired assets and assumed liabilities for the period January 30, 2010 to December 31, 2010. Due primarily to the
Company acquiring only certain assets and liabilities of American Marine Bank, the significant amount of fair value
adjustments and the FDIC loss-sharing agreements now in place, historical results of American Marine Bank are not
meaningful to the Company's results and thus no pro forma information is presented.

The table below displays the amounts recognized as of the acquisition date for each major class of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed:

January 29, 2010

(in thousands)

Assets

Cashandcashequivalents. ............ ... ..., $ 14,215
Federal fundssold . ....... ... i 267
INVEStMENt SECUNTIES. . ... o e 28,592
Federal HomeLoanBank stock . ..., 3,257
Loanscovered by loss-sharing ................. i, 176,278
Accrued interestreceivable. .......... .. 1,280
Other real estate owned covered by loss-sharing .................... 8,680
Coredepositintangible . ............. . i 4,313
FDIClosssharingasset. . ...t 70,442
Other 8SSEtS . . ..ot 498
Total assetsacquired . ... ...t $ 307,822
Liabilities -
DEPOSIES. . ottt $ 253,965
Federal HomeLoanBankadvances . .............coiiiiiinnnns, 37,682
Accruedinterestpayable. . ... ... ... 337
Deferred tax liability, net. . ... ... o 5,383
Other liabilities . . ... .o 637
Total ligbilitiesassumed . ........... i $ 298,004
Netassetsacquired . ...... ...ttt $ 9,818

Columbia River Bank

On January 22, 2010 the Bank acquired certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of Columbia River Bank from the
FDIC inan FDIC-assisted transaction. As part of the Purchase and Assumption Agreement, the Bank and the FDIC entered
into loss-sharing agreements (each, a “loss-sharing agreement” and collectively, the “loss-sharing agreements’), whereby the
FDIC will cover asubstantial portion of any future losses on loans (and related unfunded commitments), OREO and certain
accrued interest on loans. We refer to the acquired loans and OREO subject to the loss-sharing agreements collectively as
“covered assets.” Under the terms of the loss-sharing agreements, the FDIC will absorb 80% of losses and share in 80% of loss
recoveries on the first $206 million on covered assets and absorb 95% of |osses and share in 95% of |oss recoveries exceeding
$206 million. The loss-sharing agreements for commercial and single family residential mortgage loans are in effect for five
years and ten years, respectively, from the January 22, 2010 acquisition date and the loss recovery provisions for such loans are
in effect for eight years and ten years, respectively, from the acquisition date.
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The Bank acquired assets with an acquisition date fair value of approximately $912.9 million, including $480.3 million of
loans, an FDIC loss sharing asset of $189.8 million, $100.7 million of investment securities, $98.1 million of cash and cash
equivalents and $44.0 million of other assets. The Bank assumed liabilities with an acquisition date fair value of approximately
$912.9 million, including $893.4 million of insured and uninsured deposits, $18.4 million of Federal Home Loan Bank
(“FHLB”) advances and $1.1 million of other liabilities. Columbia River Bank was a full service commercial bank
headquartered in The Dalles, Oregon that operated 21 branch locations, including 14 in the state of Oregon and seven in the
State of Washington. We made this acquisition to expand our geographic footprint.

The assets acquired and liabilities assumed have been accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting
(formerly the purchase method). The assets and liabilities, both tangible and intangible, were recorded at their estimated fair
values as of the January 22, 2010 acquisition date. The application of the acquisition method of accounting resulted in the
recognition in $14.1 million of goodwill and a core deposit intangible of $13.4 million. The goodwill represents the excess of
the estimated fair value of the liabilities assumed over the estimated fair value of the assets acquired and is influenced
significantly by the FDIC-assisted transaction process. All of the goodwill and core deposit intangible assets recognized are
deductible for income tax purposes.

The operating results of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2010 include the operating results produced by
the acquired assets and assumed liabilities for the period January 23, 2010 to December 31, 2010. Due primarily to the
Company acquiring only certain assets and liabilities of Columbia River Bank, the significant amount of fair value adjustments
and the FDIC loss-sharing agreements now in place, historical results of Columbia River Bank are not meaningful to the
Company's results and thus no pro formainformation is presented.

The table below displays the amounts recognized as of the acquisition date for each major class of assets acquired and
ligbilities assumed:

January 22, 2010

(in thousands)

Assets
Cashandduefrombanks ............. .., $ 33,222
Interest-earning depositswithbanks. . ............. ... ... .. ... .. 64,921
INVEStMENt SECUNTIES. . o ot e e e 100,650
Federal HomeLoanBank stock . ......... ... .. i, 3,045
Acquired l0ans. . .. ..ot 480,306
Accrued interestreceivable. .. ... 4,021
Other real estate owned covered by losssharing. .. .................. 8,714
GoodWill .. e 14,120
Coredepositintangible .. ........ .. o i 13,442
FDICIloss-sharingasset. . . ..o e 189,822
OthEr BSOS . . o vttt 615
Total assetsacquired. . . ...t $ 912,878
Liabilities -
DEPOSITS. . o vt $ 893,356
Federal HomeLoanBankadvances .. ..., 18,428
Accrued interestpayable. . . ... 524
Other ligbilities .. ... 570
Tota liabilitiesassumed. ... ........ ..o $ 912,878
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23. Parent Company Financial Information

Condensed Statements of Income—Parent Company Only

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)
Income
Dividend from banking subsidiary. . ............. ... ... $ 48950 $ — 3 —
Interest-earning dePoSitS ... ... v it e 153 712 1,319
Otherincome . ... ... e e — 17 31
Total INCOME. .. ..o 49,103 729 1,350
Expense
Compensation and employeebenefits ... ............ ... oL 182 88 96
Long-termobligations . ... ... — 579 1,029
Other eXpense. . ..ot 1,193 1,114 1,066
Total EXPENSES. . . oot 1,375 1,781 2,191
Income (loss) before income tax expense (benefit) and equity in
undistributed net income of subsidiaries ...................... 47,728 (1,052) (841)
Incometax expense (benefit) . ......... o i (435) 91 (778)
Income (loss) before equity in undistributed net income of
SUDSIAIANES . . . e 48,163 (1,243) (63)
Equity in undistributed net income (loss) of subsidiaries . .......... (2,020) 49,180 30,847
NELINCOME. .« ottt et et et e e e e e e e $ 46,143  $ 48,037 $ 30,784
Condensed Balance Sheets—Parent Company Only
December 31,
2012 2011
(in thousands)
Assets
Cash and due from banking subsidiary . .............. ... ... ... ... $ 1,729 % 3,220
Interest-earning depositS . . .. ..o oo 84,915 72,014
Total cashand cashequivalents. . ............................ 86,644 75,234
Investment in banking subsidiary . ........... ... i 676,974 683,977
OthEr @SS . . o vttt 649 510
Total 8SSEtS. . .o $ 764,267 $ 759,721
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Other liabilities ... ..o $ 259 % 383
Total liahilities. .. ..o 259 383
Shareholders equity . ...t 764,008 759,338
Total liabilitiesand shareholders equity . . ..................... $ 764,267 $ 759,721
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Condensed Statements of Cash Flows—Parent Company Only

Operating Activities
Netincome.............. ...,

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by

operating activities:

Equity in undistributed loss (earnings) of subsidiaries..........

Stock-based compensation expense . . . .. ..
Net changesin other assets and liabilities. . .

Net cash provided by operating activities................

Investing Activities
Proceeds from termination of trust subsidiaries. .

Net cash provided by investing activities ................

Financing Activities

Cashdividendspaid.......................
Repayment of long-term subordinated debt. . . . .
Issuance of common stock, net of offering costs.
Purchase and retirement of common stock . . . ..
Proceeds from exercise of stock options . ......
Downstream stock offering proceeds to the Bank

Excesstax benefit associated with share-based compensation . .. . ...

Purchase and retirement of preferred stock . . . ..

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities. ........
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents. . . . ..

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year. .
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
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Years Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)

46,143 $ 48,037 $ 30,784
2,020 (49,180) (30,847)
1,622 1,635 1,424

(264) 315 (769)

49,521 807 5092

— 774 —

— 774 —
(38,824) (10,660) (4,302)
— (25,774) —

— — 229,129

—_ (32) —_

713 848 948

— (50,000) (70,000

— 98 —

— — (80,200)
(38,111) (85,520) 75,575

11,410 (83,939) 76,167

75,234 159,173 83,006

86,644 $ 75234 % 159,173




24. Summary of Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

Quarterly financial information for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 is summarized as follows:

2012
Tota interestincome . .....................
Total interestexpense. . ...
Netinterestincome....................
Provision for loan and leaselosses. . ..........
Provision (recapture) for losses on covered loans
Noninterest income (10SS). . .. ............. ..
Noninterest exXpense. ... ..ovvvv i
Income beforeincometaxes.............
Provision for incometaxes..................
Netincome.......................
Per common share (1)
Earnings (basic). . ........... ... . ... ..
Earnings (diluted) .....................
2011
Total interestincome . .....................
Total interestexpense. . .......c.oviiinnan.
Net interestincome. . ..................
Provision for loan and leaselosses. . . .........
Provision (recapture) for losses on covered loans
Noninterestincome . ................... ..
Noninterestexpense. . ... ..
Income beforeincometaxes.............
Provision (benefit) for incometaxes ..........
Netincome.......................
Per common share (1)
Earnings (basic). . .......... . oL
Earnings (diluted) . ....................

(1) Dueto averaging of shares, quarterly earnings per share may not add up to the total s reported for the full year.

First Second Third Fourth Year Ended
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter December 31,
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

$ 69712 $ 62114 $ 59469 $ 57209 $ 248,504
2,649 2,413 2,204 2,311 9,577
67,063 59,701 57,265 54,898 238,927
4,500 3,750 2,875 2,350 13,475
15,685 11,688 (3,992) 2,511 25,892
9,574 11,828 (911) 6,567 27,058
44,352 39,825 40,936 37,800 162,913
12,100 16,266 16,535 18,804 63,705
3,198 4,367 4,655 5,342 17,562
$ 8902 $ 11899 $ 1180 $ 13462 $ 46,143
$ 022 $ 030 $ 030 $ 034 $ 1.16
$ 022 % 030 % 030 % 034 % 1.16
$ 54611 $ 53309 $ 68432 $ 74919 $ 251,271
4,162 3,934 3,644 2,795 14,535
50,449 49,375 64,788 72,124 236,736
— 2,150 500 4,750 7,400
(422) 2,301 433 (3,960) (1,648)
(5,419) 3,542 2,196 (9,602) (9,283)
37,346 37,164 39,935 41,314 155,759
8,106 11,302 26,116 20,418 65,942
2,327 2,670 7,244 5,664 17,905
$ 5779 $ 8632 $ 18872 $ 14754 % 48,037
$ 015 $ 022 % 048 $ 037 % 1.22
$ 015 $ 022 $ 048 $ 037 $ 121
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

An evaluation was carried out under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s management, including
the Chief Executive Officer (*CEO") and Chief Financial Officer (*CFQO"), of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(€) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934). Based on that evaluation, the
CEO and CFO have concluded that as of the end of the period covered by this report, our disclosure controls and procedures
are effective in ensuring that the information required to be disclosed by usin the reports we file or submit under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 is (i) accumulated and communicated to our management (including the CEO and CFO) to alow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure, and (ii) recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in the SEC's rules and forms.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Management’s Annual Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting. The internal control system has been designed to provide reasonabl e assurance to the Company’s management and
Board of Directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of the Company’s published financial statements. Internal
control over financial reporting includes maintaining records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the
Company’s transactions; providing reasonabl e assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary for preparation of the
Company’sfinancia statements; providing reasonabl e assurance that receipts and expenditures are made in accordance with
management authorization; and providing reasonabl e assurance that unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of company
assets that could have a material effect on the Company’s financial statements would be prevented or detected on atimely
basis. Because of itsinherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting is not intended to provide absol ute assurance
that a misstatement of the Company’s financial statements would be prevented or detected.

Management has eval uated the effectiveness of itsinternal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012
based on the contral criteria established in areport entitled Internal Control-Integrated Framework, issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on such evaluation, management has concluded that the
Company’sinternal control over financial reporting is effective as of December 31, 2012. There were no changesin our internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act) during our most recently
completed fiscal year that materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect internal control over financial

reporting.

Our independent registered public accounting firm has issued an attestation report on our internal control over financial
reporting, which appears in this annua report on Form 10-K.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Columbia Banking System, Inc.
Tacoma, Washington

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Columbia Banking System, Inc. and its subsidiary (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2012, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Because management’s assessment and our audit were
conducted to meet the reporting requirements of Section 112 of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act
(FDICIA), management’s assessment and our audit of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting included controls
over the preparation of the schedules equivalent to the basic financial statements in accordance with the instructions for the
Consolidated Reports of Condition and Income for Schedules RC, RI, and RI-A. The Company’s management is responsible
for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of interna control
over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report On Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding
of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides areasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’sinternal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s
principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company’s
board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financia
reporting and the preparation of financia statements for external purposesin accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’sinternal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have amaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a
timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financia reporting as of
December 31, 2012, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have not examined and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on management’s
statement referring to compliance with laws and regulations.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2012 of the Company and our report
dated February 28, 2013 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

/s Deloitte & Touche LLP
Seattle, Washington
February 28, 2013
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART 111

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information regarding “ Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance” is set forth under the headings
“Proposal No.1: Election of Directors’, “Management—Executive Officers Who are Not Directors’ and “ Corporate
Governance’ in the Company’s 2013 Annual Proxy Statement (“Proxy Statement”) and isincorporated herein by reference.

Information regarding “ Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act” is set forth under the section “ Section 16(a)
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” of the Company’s Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.
Information regarding the Company’s audit committee financial expert is set forth under the heading “Board Structure and
Compensation—What Committees has the Board Established” in our Proxy Statement and is incorporated by reference.

On February 25, 2004, consistent with the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the Company adopted a Code
of Ethics applicable to senior financial officersincluding the principal executive officer. The Code of Ethics wasfiled as
Exhibit 14 to our 2003 Form 10-K Annual Report and can be accessed electronically by visiting the Company’s website at
www.columbiabank.com.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information regarding “ Executive Compensation” is set forth under the headings “ Board Structure and Compensation”
and “Executive Compensation” of the Company’s Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Information regarding “ Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockhol der
Matters’ is set forth under the heading “ Stock Ownership” of the Company’s Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by
reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

Information regarding “ Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence” is set forth under the
headings “ Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” and “ Corporate Governance—Director Independence” of the
Company’s Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Information regarding “Principal Accounting Fees and Services’ is set forth under the heading “Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm” of the Company’s Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(8)(1) Financial Statements:

The Consolidated Financial Statements and related documents set forth in “1tem 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data” of this report are filed as part of this report.

(2) Financial Statements Schedules:

All other schedules to the Consolidated Financial Statements required by Regulation S-X are omitted because they are
not applicable, not material or because the information is included in the Consolidated Financial Statements and related notesin

“Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this report.
(3) Exhibits:

The response to this portion of Item 15 is submitted as a separate section of this report appearing immediately following
the signature page and entitled “Index to Exhibits.”
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on the 28th day of February 2013.

COLUMBIA BANKING SYSTEM, INC.
(Registrant)

By: /s’ MELANIE J. DRESSEL

Melanie J. Dressel

President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated, on the 28th day of February 2013.

Principal Executive Officer:

By: /s’ MELANIE J. DRESSEL

Melanie J. Dressel

President and Chief Executive Officer

Principal Financial and Accounting Officer:

By: /s CLINT E. STEIN
Clint E. Stein
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Melanie J. Dressel, pursuant to a power of attorney that is being filed with the Annual Report on Form 10-K, has signed
this report on February 28, 2013 as attorney in fact for the following directors who constitute a mgjority of the Board.

[John P. Folsom] [S. Mae Numata]
[Frederick M. Goldberg] [Daniel C. Regis]

[Thomas M. Hulbert] [Donald Rodman]
[Michelle M. Lantow] [William T. Weyerhaeuser]
[Thomas L. Matson] [James M. Will]

/Y MELANIE J. DRESSEL
Melanie J. Dressel
Attorney-in-fact

February 28, 2013
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Exhibit No.

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit

21

31

3.2

41

4.2

10.1*

10.2*

10.3*

10.4*

10.5*

10.6*

10.7*

10.8

10.9*

10.10*

10.11*

10.12*

10.13*

10.14*

10.15*

10.16*

10.17*

Agreement and Plan of Merger between the Company and West Coast Bancorp dated as of September 25,
2012 (1)

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation (2)
Amended and Restated Bylaws (3)

Specimen of common stock certificate (4)

Pursuant to Item 601(b) (4) (iii) (A) of Regulation S-K, copies of instruments defining the rights of holders of
long-term debt and preferred securities are not filed. The Company agrees to furnish a copy thereof to the
Securities and Exchange Commission upon request

Amended and Restated Stock Option and Equity Compensation Plan (5)

Form of Stock Option Agreement (6)

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (6)

Form of Stock Appreciation Right Agreement (6)

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (6)

Form of Long Term Restricted Stock Agreement (7)

Amended and Restated Employee Stock Purchase Plan (8)

Office Lease, dated as of December 15, 1999, between the Company and Haub Brothers Enterprises Trust (9)
Employment Agreement between the Bank, the Company and Melanie J. Dressel effective August 1, 2004 (10)

Amendment to Employment Agreement between the Bank, the Company and Melanie J. Dressel effective
February 1, 2009 (11)

Amendment to Employment Agreement effective December 31, 2008 among the Bank, the Company and
Melanie J. Dressdl (12)

Change in Control Agreement between the Bank and Gary R. Schminkey effective November 15, 2010 (13)

Form of Change in Control Agreement between the Bank and Andrew McDonald dated June 1, 2009 (6)

Change in Control Agreement between the Bank and Kent L. Roberts dated December 4, 2011 (13)
Change in Control Agreement between the Bank and Mark Nelson dated as of October 23, 2012 (14)
Change in Control Agreement between the Bank and Clint Stein dated as of October 24, 2012 (14)

Form of Long-Term Care Agreement between the Bank, the Company, and each of the following directors. Mr.
Folsom, Mr. Hulbert, Mr. Matson, Mr. Rodman, Mr. Weyerhaeuser and Mr. Will (15)
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Exhibit No.

Exhibit

10.18*

10.19*

10.20*

10.21*

10.22*

10.23*

10.24*

10.25*

10.26*

10.27*

10.28*

10.29*

14

21+

23+

24+

31.1+

31.2+

32+

101**

Amended and Restated Executive Supplemental Compensation Agreements dated as of May 27, 2009 among
the Company, Columbia State Bank and Melanie J. Dressel, Gary R. Schminkey and Mark W. Nelson,
respectively (16)

Amended and Restated 401 Plus Plan (Deferred Compensation Plan) dated December 14, 2011 for directors
and key employees (13)

Form of Supplemental Compensation Agreement between the Bank and Mr. Andrew McDonald (6)

Form of Amendment to Supplemental Compensation Agreement effective December 31, 2008 between the
Bank and Andrew L. McDonald (12)

Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Company and its directors (12)

Town Center Bancorp 2004 Stock Incentive Plan (17)

Town Center Bancorp Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (17)

Mountain Bank Holding Company Director Stock Option Plan (18)

Mountain Bank Holding Company Form of Non-employee Director Stock Option Agreement (18)
Mountain Bank Holding Company 1999 Employee Stock Option Plan (18)

Mountain Bank Holding Company Form of Employee Stock Option Agreement (18)

Mt. Rainier National Bank 1990 Stock Option Plan (18)

Code of Ethics (19)

Subsidiaries of the Company

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP

Power of Attorney

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification Filed Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

Thefollowing financial information from Columbia Banking System, Inc.'sAnnua Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2012 isformatted in XBRL: (i)Audited Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii)
Audited Consolidated Statements of Income, (iii) Audited Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income,
(iv) Audited Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity, (v) Audited Consolidated Statements
of Cash Flows, and (vi) Notes to Audited Consolidated Financial Statements.**
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(1)  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 25, 2012
(2)  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008
(3)  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 2, 2010

(4)  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of the Company's S-3 Registration Statement (File No. 333-156350) filed December 19, 2008
(5)  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 of the Company's S-8 Registration Statement (File No. 333-160370) filed July 1, 2009

(6)  Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.2-10.5, 10,10 and 10.16 of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007
(7)  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 5, 2010

(8)  Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010

(9) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000

(10) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004

(11) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 19, 2009

(12) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.2-10.4 of the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2009

(13) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.10, 10.14 and 10.15 of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011
(24) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.1 and 10.2 of the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 29, 2012

(15) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2001
(16) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.1, 10.2 and 10.3 of the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 2, 2009

(17) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.1 and 10.2 of the Company's S-8 Registration Statement (File No. 333-145207) filed August 7, 2007

(18) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 99.1-99.5 of the Company's S-8 Registration Statement (File No. 333-144811) filed July 24, 2007
(19) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14 of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003

* Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement

+ Filed herewith

** Furnished herewith
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
Deloitte & Touche LLP

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR
American Stock Transfer & Trust Co.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Columbia news and financial results are
available through the Internet and mail.

REGULATORY & SECURITIES COUNSEL
Graham & Dunn PC

STOCK LISTING

The Company’s common stock trades on the
Nasdag Global Select market tier of The Nasdaq
Stock Markets under the symbol: COLB

INTERNET

For information about Columbia Banking
System, Inc., including news and financial
results, product information and service
locations, access our home page on the World
Wide Web at www.columbiabank.com. You
can also view or retrieve copies of Columbia’s
financial reports on the Internet by connecting
to www.sec.gov. Immediate access to the
Company’s quarterly earnings news releases
via the Internet is provided by Company News
On Call at www.prnewswire.com.

(%) Columbia Banking System Inc.

1301 A Street, Tacoma, WA 98402
253-305-1900 / 800-305-1905
ColumbiaBank.com



® Board of Directors

William T. Weyerhaeuser Melanie J. Dressel David A. Dietzler John P. Folsom
Chairman of the Board President & Chief Executive Officer
Frederick M. Goldberg Thomas M. Hulbert Michelle M. Lantow Thomas L. Matson
S. Mae Fujita Numata Daniel C. Regis Donald H. Rodman James M. Will
® Executive Officers
Andy McDonald Mark W. Nelson Kent L. Roberts Clint E. Stein
Executive Vice President & Executive Vice President & Executive Vice President & Executive Vice President &

Chief Credit Officer Chief Operating Officer

Human Resources Director

Chief Financial Officer
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